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October 11, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors listed
below to continue providing Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals
with opioid and/or stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $316,000 from
$848,936 to $1,164,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2022 to
September 29, 2023, effective retroactive to September 29, 2022 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Archways
(FKA: Greater

Tilton Area

Family
Resource

Center)

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$351,063 $130,000 $481,063

0: 08/14/19

(Item #10)

A1:02/17/21

(Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

Granite

Pathways,
Concord NH

228900-

B001
Statewide $497,873 $186,000 $683,873

0: 09/18/19

(Item #19)

A1:02/17/21

(Item #20)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

Total; $848,936 $316,000 $1,164,936

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat>le Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agency on September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract completion
date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding agency, the
Department was unable to present this request to the Governor and Council prior to the contract
expiring.

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there are no renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the funding notification from the Federal avyarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to re>procure for these services. Any delays or gaps
In service provision may result in reduced or loss of access to services and supports for individuals
in need of these critical services.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals with opioid and/or stimulant use disorders
who are in treatment and recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce.
In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, which empowers workplaces to
provide support for people recovering from substance use disorder, services provided through the
contracts support individuals in attaining gainful employment, v/hich is a critical aspect of continued
recovery.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from September 29, 2022 to September 29,
2023.

The Contractors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's skill
level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking individuals
to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources that assist the
individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing assistance with resume
writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of data reports and
periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain
in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085759

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not fc>e
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-92-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% Federal Funds

Vendor Nam Archways Vendor #297434

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00
2022 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $31,000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00
2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 $97,500.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00

Sub Total $351,063.00 $130,000.00 $481,063.00

iVendor Nam
.. ... . -

Granite Pathways Vendor #228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class TKIe Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Serwces 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00
2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00
2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total $497,873.00 $186,000.00 $683,873.00

Overall Total $848,936.00 $316,000.00 $1,164,936.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019, (Item #10), as amended on February 17, 2021, (Item #20) and as amended October
13, 2021, (Item #35). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Archways

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2023

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$481,063

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding subsection 5.14 to read:

5.14. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded Contractors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve Government Performance and
Results Act (GPRA) data collection.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.4. to read:

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.7. to read:

5.1.3.1.7. RESERVED

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. -100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awSfa^ on
09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substamclk^use

Archways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF-02-A03

10/13/2022
Page 1 of 4 Date
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and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79TI083326, as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA
#93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, and as awarded on September 23, 2022, by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN H79TI085759.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-9 Amendment #3 SOR III Budget.

10. Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #3, SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-9 Amendment #3, SOR III Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

H
Archways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF^32-A03

10/13/2022
Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 29, 2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

10/14/2022

Date

OocuSlgnvd by;

S-
EOi»D05B04C63442...

Name:

Title: oi rector

10/13/2022

Date

Archways
—DocuSigntd by:

Name" Michelle Lennon

Title: Executive Director

Archways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

10/17/2022

'OocuSKin«d by:

• 748734S44M14S0..

—DocuStgnM by:

i,

Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Archways A-S-1.2

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A03 Page 4 of 4
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-8, Amendment #3, SOR III Budget RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A03

Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Archways

Workforce Readiriess & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

Fy23 ■ (September 30. 2022 ■ June 30.2023)

0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS
Program Cost - Contractor Share/

Match
TOTAL Program Cost

1. Salary &Waqes

$59,897.53 $0 $59,898

2. Frinoe Benefits

$10,781.55 $0 $10,782

3. Consultants

$9,000.00 $0 $9,000

4. Eauioment $0.00 $0 $0

S.fa) Suoplies - Educational $0.00 $0 $0

S.(b) SuDDlies-lab $0.00 $0 $0

5.(c) SuDOlies - Pharmacy $0.00 $0 $0

S.fd) SuDplies - Medical $0.00 $0 $0

5.(e) Suoplies Office $0.00 $0 $0

6. Travel
$1,500.00 $0 $1,500

7. Software $0.00 $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Markeiinq/Communicati $0.00 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $0.00 $0 $0

8. (c) Other • Other (please specify)

Other Peer Resources

$6,570.92 $0 $6,571

Other (olease soecifv) $0.00 $0 $0

Other (olease soecifv) $0.00 $0 $0

Other (olease soecifv) $0.00 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $0.00 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $87,750.00 $0 $87,750

Total Indirect Costs

$9,750.00 $0 $9,750

TOTAL $97,500.00 $0 $97,500

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials.

Dale

10/18/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-g, Amendment #3, SOR III Budget RFP-2019-BDAS-12.WORKF-02-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp/ere one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name:

Archways

Budget Request for:

Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for
Individuals with OUD

Budget Period FY24 - (July 1. 2023 September 29, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0.00%

!

Line Item
Program Cost •

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost •
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

$19,965.85 $0 $19,966

1. Salary & Wages

2, Fringe Benefits
$3,593.85 $0 $3,594

$4,000.00 $0 $4,000

3. Consultants

4. Eouloment $0.00 $0 $0

5.(a) SuDDties • Educational $0.00 SO $0

5.(b) SuDPlies - Lab $0.00 $0 $0

5.(0) SupDlies - Pharmacy $0.00 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0.00 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0.00 $0 $0

6. Travel $500.00 $0 $500

7. Software SO $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0.00 $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0,00 $0 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (please specify)

Peer Resources

$1,190,30 $0 $1,190

Other (please specify) $0.00 $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0.00 $0 $0

, Other (please specify) $0.00 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $0.00 SO $0

Total Direct Costs $29,250.00 $0 $29,250

Total Indirect Costs

$3,250.00 $0 $3,250

TOTAL $32,500 $0 $32,500

Page 1 of 1

1%

Contractor Initials

Date

10/18/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secrelar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ARCHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 09, 2015. 1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Secreiaiy of State's ofllce have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofilce is

concerned.

Business ID: 733566

Certificate Number: 0005882465

0&

Ik

5^

d

IN TI-STIMONY WHERl-OF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be afll.\cd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 12th dav of October A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretar)' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Brad Davis, President of the Board of Directors of Archways, hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secfetary/Officer of Archways
(Cofporalion/LLC Name)

2. The follwing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Ocr. /^ 20.22. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That M ichelle J. Lennon, Executive Director of Archways,
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Archways to enter into contracts or agreements with the Stale
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed arid remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/coritract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood'that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) Indicated and that they have ftjil authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the' authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contragts^with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signaturd^f Elwted Officer

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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^  GREATIL-01

ACOKD- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
LCOONEY

DATE {MM/Dorrmf)

10/12/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

A W Frost Agency, Inc.
354 Central Street
Franklin, NH 03235

CONTACT
NAME;

rKaEM); (603) 934-3319 (^.no);(603) 934-7227

insdrfr/s) affording coverage NAIC*

INSURER A Mount Vernon Fire Insurance

INSURED

Archways
5 Prospect St
Tllton, NH 03276

INSURER B Proaressive Insurance Grouo 24252

INSURER C Wesco Insurance ComDanv

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERHFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB.
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
JllSD.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UASILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PGR;

POLICY □ sift □ LOC
OTHER:

SUBR
VWD

NPP2567856D

POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

2/1/2022 2/1/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

MED EXP lAnv ofw pefwi)

PERSONAL « ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000
100,000

5,000

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
.(Ea.ascidMO

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

00943918-5 1/24/2022 7/24/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per pysoni

SCHEDULED
AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Pef accMenll

fWPERTY DAMAGE
(Py acddantT

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE
Exauoeo?

Y/N I/VWC3579039 4/2/2022 4/2/2023

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
100,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
100,000

If yos. oMCriM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addltlonel Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)
HIrod & Non-Owned Auto Liability Included In General Liability limits.

RE: 175 Central St, Franklin, NH 03235 & 5 Prospect St, Tllton, NH 03276 & 202 North State St, Concord, NH 03301

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MISSION STATEMENT OF ARCHWAYS (Formerly Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center)

The mission of Archways is to strengthen and empower individuals, families and community by

promoting health, weJI-being, and self-sufficiency through positive relationships, support,
collaboration and education.
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Archways

For the period ended December 31, 2021

Prepared by

Erica Lane Consulting, LLC

Prepared on

September 21, 2022

For management use only - Non Audited
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Profit and Loss
January - December 2021

Total

INCOME

4000.00 Income

4100.00 Training Income. 45,503.19

4200.00 Grants Income

4200.20 Grants Income-State 144,994.02

4200.21 Grants Income-State -Sub Contract 600,439.74

4200.30 Grants Income-Local 155,646.90

4200.50 Grants Income-Foundation 272,073.77

Total 4200.00 Grants Income 1,173,154.43

4300.00 Donations 1,929.42

4300.10 Donations-Corporate 775.00

4300.20 Donations-Individual's 1,710.00

Total 4300.00 Donations 4,414.42

4400.10 Rental Income 19,100.00

4400.20 Medicaid Income 63,846.58

Total 4000.00 Income 1,306,018.62

4500.00 Other Income

4500.60 Stipends 500.00

4500.80 PPP Loan Forgiveness. 14,335.46

Total 4500.00 Other Income .  14,835.46

Doorway Reimbursement 1,083.91

Golf Tournament 1,250.00

Golf Players 8,649.00

Golf Sponsor 13.623.30

Total Golf Toumament 23,522.30

Grant Revenue

Covid Staff Coverage at Dube Ct 57,323.81

New Futures Inc. Fiscal Sponsor 3,000.00

Recovery Works - OJT Reimbursem 6,473.70

Total Grant Revenue 66.797.51

Miscellaneous Income 22.962.96

Neighbors in Need 425.83

Peer Support Income 611.78

Total Income 1,436,258.37

GROSS PROFIT 1,436,258.37

EXPENSES

5000.00 Administrative Costs

5000.01 Office Expenses

5000.02 Office Supplies 3,097.42

5000.03 Software 957.90

5000.06 Color Copier Maintenance Contract 6,191.52

5000.07 Small Equipment/Office Furniture 8,706.70
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Total

5000.08 Postage/Shipping 1,748.59

5000.09 Due & Subscriptions 1,424.90

Total 5000.01 Office Expenses 22,127.03

5000.10 Advertising/Marketing 10,219.69

Total 5000.00 Administrative Costs 32,346.72

5000.006 Color Copier-Capital Purchase (deleted) 8,145.27

5300.00 Contract & Consulting Expenses 4,800.00

5300.01 Accounting 7,061.14

5300.02 Bookkeeping 19,556.79

5300.03 Fiscal Manager 49,085.86

5300.04 Non-Profit Management 22,000.00

Total 5300.00 Contract & Consulting Expenses 102,503.79

5800.00 Miscellaneous Expense 6,768.31

5800.01 Interest Expenses

5800.02 Mortgage Interest 2,240.84

Total 5800.01 interest Expenses 2,240.84

5800.04 Payment Source /Processing Fees 236.00

Total 5800.00 Miscellaneous Expense 9,245.15

6000.00 Operating" Expenses

6000.02 License/Filing Fees 1,913.50

6100.00 Rental Expense 44,100.00

6100.10 Professional Development/Educational Supplies 4,275.48

6100.20 Meals and Entertainment 131.58

Total 6000.00 Operating Expenses 50,420.56

6200.00 Insurance Expense 114.50

6200.01 Automobile Insurance 1,730.00

6200.02 Liability Insurance 7,401.50

6200.03 Workers Comp 20,885.36

Total 6200.00 Insurance Expense 30,131.36

6300.00 Buildings & Grounds

6300.10 Repairs and Maintenance 12,469.79

Capital Improvements 22,686.00

Total 6300.10 Repairs and Maintenance 35,155.79

Total 6300.00 Buildings & Grounds 35,155.79

6400.00 Automobile Expenses

6400.03 Gas 127.50

6400.04 Mileage 435.48

Total 6400.00 Automobile Expenses 562.98

6500.00 Utilities 6,007.61

6500.01 Telephone/Internet Expense 28,583.03

6500.02 Electricity & Gas 4,997.41

6500.03 Oil 5,228.11

6500.04 Water/Sewer 833.74

6500.05 Sanitation 668.00
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Total

Total 6500.00 Utilities 46.317.90

6800.00 Payroll Expenses

6800.01 Payroll Expenses-Wages

6800.02 Payroll Wages-Administrative 240.00

6800.10 Payroll Wages-Management 206,337.76

6800.11 PTO Wages-Management 2,116.88

6800.12 Overtime Wages-Management 55.20

6800.15 Holiday Wages-Management 386.82

6800.16 Covid Pay 47,320.93

6800.20 Payroll Wages-Program 418,019.75

6800.21 PTO Wages-Program 39,126.63

6800.23 Overtime Wages-Program 1,271.01

6800.26 Holiday Wages-Program 1,666.56

Total 6800.01 Payroll Expenses-Wages 716.541.54

6800.30 Payroll Benefit Expenses

6800.31 Health Insurance 43,344.18

6800.40 Payroll Processing Fees 3,695.60

Payroll Taxes 0.00

SUTA Taxes 3,330.47

Total Payroll Taxes 3,330.47

Wages

Assistant Director 2,378.52

Executive Director Salary 0.10

Office Manager -0.10

Recovery Coach Wages -2,378.52

Total Wages 0.00

Total 6800.30 Payroll Benefit Expenses 50,370.25

Total 6800.00 Payroll Expenses 766,911.79

6800.50 Payroll Tax Expenses

6800.51 Payroll Tax-Social Security 43,851.18

6800.52 Payroll Tax-Medicare 10,173.01

6800.53 Payroll Tax-NH -SUI 5,880.19

6800.54 Payroll Tax-NH Admin Contribution Tax 1,199.51

Total 6800.50 Payroll Tax Expenses 61,103.89

7000.00 Program Expense

7000.01 Program Expense-Peer Resources 18,844.28

7000.02 Peer Resources-Gas Cards 1,400.59

7000.06 Peer Resources-Housing/Utilities 700.00

7000.08 Peer Resources-Phone Services for Recovery Support 30.75

Total 7000.01 Program Expense-Peer Resources 20,975.62

7100.00 Program Expense-Training Expense

7100.02 Training Expense-Consultants 5,000.00

Total 7100.00 Program Expense-Training Expense 5,000.00

Total 7000.00 Program Expense 25.975.62
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Total

Auto Expense 953.98

Billing Services 4,196.09

Computer and Internet Expenses 3.413.86

Laptop and Desktop Computers 13.213.72

Total Computer and Internet Expenses 16,627.58

Food 1,009.13

Gas 577.79

Golf Tournament Expenses 5,725.63

Interest Expense 7,259.01

License's/Permits/Registrations/Inspections 151.20

Membership 63.49

Mileage 8,107.81

Outside Maintenance 750.00

Printing and Copying 25.71

Processing Fees 311.26

Professional Fees 1,048.25

Property Taxes. 3,423.81

Small Equipment 943.99

Sponsor/donation 400.00

Stipends

Other Stipends 450.00

Total Stipends 450.00

Supplies 26,849.29

TRAINING 587.96

Recovery Coach Academy 1,320.00

TRAINING. 11,453.93

Total TRAINING 13,361.89

Total Expenses 1,261,056.73

NET OPERATING INCOME 175,201.64

NET INCOME $175,201.64
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Balance Sheet
As of December 31. 2021

Total

ASSETS

Currant Assets

Bank Accounts

1000.00 FSB - Operating 8766 73,474.03

1000.01 FSB - Reserve Account - 0000 15,000.00

1000.02 FSB - Account Ending 2400 61,200.00

1000.03 Franklin Savings Bank - Golf 29,133.58

1000.04 6ill.com Money Out Clearing 109.99

1000.06 Prefunding Medicaid Account - Northway 348 58,422.46

1000.07 GTAFRC - Northway #1009 3,536.71

1000.08 GTAFRC - Northway SOBER THREADS #6759 8,012.41

Total Bank Accounts 248,889.18

Accounts Receivable

1100.00 Accounts Receivable 328,956.27

Total Accounts Receivable 328,956.27

Other Current Assets

1200.50 Real Estate Tax Escrow 4,306.04

1200.60 Undeposited Funds 8,263.26

1300.00 Cost of Goods Sold

1300.10 Gift Cards

1300.19 Visa Gift Cards -40.00

Total l 300.10 Gift Cards -40.00

Total 1300.00 Cost of Goods Sold -40.00

1300.25 Gift Cards for Participants 250.00

Grant Receivable

Grant #3 - Workforce -531.50

Grant 1 - PRSS 696.78

kinship Contract. -45,393.36

Klnship-2 Contract. -16,726.46

Total Grant Receivable -61,954.54

Total Other Current Assets -49,175.24

Total Current Assets 528,670.21

Fixed Assets

1400.00 Fixed Assets

1400.01 175 Central Street, Franklin, N 157,500.00

1400.02 Construction -175 Central Ave. 178,810.16

1400.03 Kinship Closet Construction 20,000.00

1400.04 Settlement Charges 6,140.50

1400.06 Participant Meeting Area - Construction 5,832.00

Total 1400.01 175 Central Street, Franklin, N 368,282.66

1400.05 2016 Grand Caravan 15,000.00

1400.10 Furniture and Equipment 16,764.66
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Total

1400.11 Computers/Computer Setup 5,000.00

1400.13 Leasehold Improvements 7.348.92

1700.00 Accumulated Depreciation -4,803.81

Total 1400.00 Rxed Assets 407,592.43

Total Rxed Assets 407,592.43

Other Assets

1400.20 Security Deposits Asset 2.500.00

Total Other Assets 2,500.00

TOTAL ASSETS $938,762.64

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Uablltties

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000.00 Accounts Payable 4.534.26

Total Accounts Payable 4,534.26

Other Current Liabilities

2200.00 Deferred Revenue

2200.01 Deferred Rental Income 16.000.00

2200.02 Harbor Homes (d/b/a Harbor Care) 9,000.00

Total 2200.01 Deferred Rental Income 25,000.00

2200.15 Deferred Children's Trust Grant 32,812.50

Total 2200.00 Deferred Revenue 57.812.50

2800.00 Payroll Liabilities

2800.01 Payroll Liabilities-Federal Income Tax -81.24

2800.02 Payroll Liabilities-Social Security -456.40

2800.03 Payroll Liabilities-Medicare 41.24

2800.04 Payroll Liabilities-Reg-Medical 7.671.10

2800.05 Payroll Liabilities-FSA Medical 442.45

2800.06 Payroll Liabilities-Child Support 469.75

Total 2800.00 Payroll Liabilities 8,086.90

Payroll Liabilities 0.00

EE Federal Income Tax -18.79

EE Medicare 918.12

EE Social Security -33.98

ER Medicare -939.53

ER Social Security -37.21

SUTA Taxes Payble 1,133.67

Total Payroll Liabilities 1,022.28

Total Other Current Liabilities 66,921.68

Total Current Liabilities 71,455.94

Long-Term Liabilities

2100.00 Loans Payable

2100.01 Mortgage -175 Central Street 187.107.70

Total 2100.00 Loans Payable 187,107.70
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Total

Total Long-Tarm Liabilities 187,107.70

Total Uabiiities 258,563.64

Equity

3000.01 Unrestricted Net Assets 504.997.36

Net income 175,201.64

Total Equity 680,199.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $938,762.64
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Statement of Cash Flows
January - December 2021

Total

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income 175,201.64

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

1100.00 Accounts Receivable -157,620.94

1200.10 Prepaid Expenses.:Prepaid Insurance 1,186.36

1200.50 Real Estate Tax Escrow -3,325.94

Grant Receivable:Grant #3 - Workforce 531.50

Grant Receivab!e:kinship Contract. 29,783.00

Grant Receivable:Kinship-2 Contract. 34,015.00

2000.00 Accounts Payable -12,492.71

2100.50 Payroll Protection Loan -49,000.00

2200.01 Deferred RevenueiDeferred Rental Income 16,000.00

2200.02 Deferred RevenueiDeferred Rental IncomeiHarbor Homes (d/b/a Harbor Care) 9,000.00

2800.01 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-Federal Income Tax -81.24

2800.02 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-Social Security -456.40

2800.03 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-Medicare 41.24

2800.04 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-Reg-Medical 7,671.10

2800.05 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-FSA Medical 442.45

2800.06 Payroll LiabilitiesiPayroll Liabilities-Child Support 469.75

Payroll LiabilitiesiEE Federal Income Tax -6,082.68

Payroll LiabilitiesiEE Social Security -3,960.09

Payroll LiabilitiesiER Medicare -1,852.20

Payroll LiabilitiesiER Social Security -3,960.09

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: -139,691.89

Net cash provided by operating activities 35,509.75

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1400.03 Fixed Assets:175 Central Street, Franklin, NiKinship Closet Construction -20,000.00

1400.06 Fixed Assets:175 Central Street, Franklin, NiParticlpant Meeting Area - Construction -5,832.00

1400.13 Fixed AssetsiLeasehold Improvements -3,850.00

Net cash provided by investing activities -29,682.00
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Total

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2100.01 Loans PayableiMortgage -175 Central Street -6,272.60

Net cash provided by financing activities -6,272.60

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERiOD -444,85

Cash at beginning of period 257,597.29

CASH AT END OF PERiOD $257,152.44
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ARCHWAYS BOD LIST 2022

2021 Board of Directors

Brad Davis, President Attorney

Kandyce Tucker, Vice President Franklin Mayors Task Force

Lori Bolduc, Treasurer Franklin Savings Bank

Andrea Jergensen, Secretary Counselor

Nancy Nemcovich, Board Member LDAC, HealthFirst
FQHC/MAT Program

Marci DeCarli Concord Hospital
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Glenn D. Mallon

Professional History

Construction Contractor - Self Employed

2000-2008 as well as 2016-2022

Owned and operated a construction company, handled day to day scheduling, sales, employees, estimating,

budgeting, payroll, customer relations, marketing and advertising, business development, profit and loss analysis,
as well as on hand labor and Installations for services provided.

Sober House Peer Leader - White f^ountalns Recovery Homes LLC

2018- CURRENT

Been a Peer leader for White Mountains-Recovery Homes at two different locations both In Northfield NH as well

as Plymouth NH, dally tasks Include but weren't limited to the following.

Phone screening for prospective residents, intake processing, dally scheduling, allocating resources within the

community, connecting them with recovery coaching services, working with NH Drug Court Programs as well as

Federal Drug Court Programs, working with NH State Probation and Parole, keeping track of funding and collecting
program fees and making weekly bank deposits, helping residents to apply for funding to cover housing costs,

performing regular drug screening, being an example as a person In recovery, linking them up with local recovery
within the community, as well as helping them with dally living tasks.

Volunteer Work

Public Speaking • Blueprint Treatment Facility
2019-2021

Though Alcoholics Anonymous District 81 became part of the Treatment Chair, I held a 2yr position called Bridging

The Gap, I would take a stand in bi-weekly commitment Into the treatment facility where I would discuss with the

residents what life was going to look like after they left treatment. I would ask them what their plans were. If they

wanted further services such as sober living. I would help connect them with those services In the areas of the

state of New Hampshire where they were trying to live. I would share with them my personal experiences and

offer support for them and the decisions that they came up with.

Recovery Coach - PARC Plymouth Area Recovery Connection
2022-CURRENT

I took the CRSW course back In September of 2021 and have been a volunteer at PARC while getting my supervision

hours logged, I am engaging In daily operations with my supervisor and shadowing an existing coach

I am also operating as the face of the RFW Recovery Friendly Workplace Innltlatlve



DocuSIgn Envelope P: 498C91A&«F06-422E-9214-e644EC65B864

Skills

MS Office • QuickBooks • Powerpoint - ProCreate • Payrol) • Business Development • Marketing and
Advertising - Price Comparison - Buyer • Employee Management - Payroll • Budgeting • Sales

Customer Relations - Insurance Claims - Finance - Peer to Peer leadership skills

Communlcatlonal Skill - Organizational Skills - Profit and Loss Statements
Ability to Navigate Problems and Quickly Find Solutions

Education

Newfound Regional High School < Diploma

Highest Level Completed • Graduate

Plymouth Regional Vocational Program
2yrs of Marketing Education

4yrs of Building Trades

Certification Programs

Narcan Nasal Spray Administration Training 4-23-19
NHCORR'S MAT/MAR Training 8-31-21

CCAR Recovery Coach Academy September 13-17.2021
CCAR Ethical Considerations September 20-22,2021

SOS Suicide Prevention For Peers 9-27-21

SOS - HIV, AIDS, and Hepatitis Prevention 9-30-21
UNHHIPAA 2-3-22

Science of Addiction and the Path to Emotional Sobriety 2-10-22

SOS Recovery Peer Specialist In a Hospital Setting 2-11-22,2-18-22
NHCORR Leadership Development Collaborative

Recovery Coaching a Harm Reduction Pathway
Motivational Interviewing
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Hilary Stark

Objective
To assist in filling the gaps in recovery services in my community.

Experience

CERTIFIED RECOVERY SUPPORT WORKER / KINSHIP NAVIGATOR 1 GREATER TILTON AREA

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER j APRIL 2020 - CURRENT

•  Work with individuals and their families to remove personal and environmental obstacles
to recovery, support the establishment of connections to the recovery community, and
support individual's recovery goals.

SHELTER SUPPORT STAFF | THE DUBE SHELTER 1 APRIL 2020 - CURRENT

•  Ensure individuals who must isolate or quarantine and who are homeless in the state of
New Hampshire, follow and comply with COVlD-19 protocols.

CRSW IN TRAINING 1 AMERICORPS 1 JANUARY 2020 - JUNE 2020

•  Engaged in paid training to earn CRSW certification, by offering peer mentoring and
helping participants to connect with community resources.

Education

Building futures together program - University of new Hampshire

•  18-21 month program for paraprofessionals to provide specialized care coordination to
children, youth, and their caregivers impacted by opioid use disorders, and other substance
use disorders.

•  January 2021 graduation on may 24 2022.

Lakes region community college - 2011

•  Major: Social Work

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA - 2010

Trainings

Standards of quality for family strengthening & support

MEN & TRAUMA: BREAKING THE SILENCE

REORIENTING ANGER TO PROMOTE HEALING

SMART RECOVERY - FACILITATOR/FAMILY & FRIENDS TRAINING
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Trainings - Continued

51" NE SCHOOL OF ADDICTION AND PREVENTION STUDIES - 25 ECUS:

SUPPORTING YOUNG PEOPLE IMPACTED BY THE OPIATE CRISIS

MENTAL WELLNESS FOR RECOVERY COACHES

DESCALATION AND ENGAGMENT STRATEGIES: A TRAUMA INFORMED APPROACH

PROVENTION & ETHICS

HARM REDUCTION.

Recovery and Resiliency with real students for prevention 1.50 ceu

Young child sexual abuse learning session 2.0 contact hours

NH-ME ECHO SCOPE SUPPORTING CHILDREN OF THE OPIOID EPIDEMIC 15 hours of training.
FEB3T0 APRIL 14, 2022.

Families & Addiction 3 contact hours.

Addressing the stigma around substance use disorder - A course for judicial leaders.
Novl7 2021.

Moral injury 1.5 hours

Community Engagement

Harm reduction - community of practice

TRAUMA INFORMED CARE - COMMUNITY OF PRACTICE

homeless coalition meetings

VOLUNTEER AT ISAIAH CAFE • LACONIA NH

•  Made community dinners for those accessing the cafe; these individuals are experiencing
homelessness and are able to access bathroom facilities, clothing, and food at this location.

•  1 am a counsel member for Our Story NH.
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Narhe Job Title Salary Amount Paid

from this Contract

Glenn Mallon IFTE Employment Specialist 45,760.00

Hilary Stark .5FTE (Part-time Staff) Recovery Coach 10,608
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Lort A. SblbiMRc
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KatJaS.Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 l•80O«S^3345Ext9544

Pex: 603-2714332 TDD Accas: 1-800-735-2964 wim.dhbx.Dti.gov

September 3. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonoraUe Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Drvision for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing Worlcforce
Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $310,000 from
$538,936 to $848,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2021 to
September 29,2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current
Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tilton

Area Family
Resource

Center.
TUlorVNH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$227,063 $124,000 $351,063

0: 08/14/19

Item #10

A1:02/17/21

Item #20

Granite

Pa^ways,
Concord/NH

226900-

B001
Stat^de $311,873 $186,000 $497,873

0. 09/18/19
Item #19

A1:02/17/21

Item #20

Total: $538,936 $310,000 $846,636

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if need^ and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractors continue to provide vocational
training supports and workforce'readiness programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders who are in treatment and recovery settings and Nvho are seeking to join and/or re-

Tht tkparlmtnlcf HtoUh and Human Stridou'M'mion is lojoih communitiet ondfamilits
in providing opportuniliet for cilutnt to ocftieve health ond indtpenaehet.
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Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

join the worltforce. Services provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainfui
empioyment, which Is a criticdl aspect of continued sobriety.

.  . Approximately 200 individuals will be served from September 30. 2021 to September 29.
2022.

The Contractors will continue Integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocationa) training may Include, but is not
limited to. providing assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and Improving
interviewing skills.

The Department will continue monftoring contracted senrlces by reviewing monthly.and
quarterly reports submitted by the Contractors and monitor the follbvylng performance measures:

•  Ensuring ninety percent (90%) of individuais complete provided training programs.

•  Ensuring seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain employment.

•  Ensuring contact and coordination wHh one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Rervewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Councli approval. The Department la exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) year of the one (1) available year remaining.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, individuals In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing ff93.788, FAIN #H79TI083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-92-g2-920510-7MOOI)00 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds

iVendor Name Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Vendor U 297434

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 02057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00
2021 102-300731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057046 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 02057046 $0.00 $93,000.00 $93,000.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst artd Rel 92057046 $0.00 $31,000.00 $31,000.00

Sub Total $227,003.00 $124,000.00 $351,063.00

(Vendor Name Granite Pathways Vendor It 228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,663.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,336.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services . 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 SO.OO $139,500.00 $139,500.00

2023 .  074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00
Sub Total $311.$73.00 $186,000.00 U97.e73.00

Ovorati Total $SS8.d36.00 $310,000.00 $S48.93e.OO

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Siervlces

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with ODD
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14. 2019, (Item #10), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P'37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$351,063.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.2., to read:

5.2. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.11., to read:

5.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

5.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides
or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental
disorders.

5.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memoranda of
understanding (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

' 5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 5.12., to read:

5.12. The Contractor shall provide a Fentanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes:

5.12.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips:

5.12.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

5.12.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

, H
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Grealer Tillon Area Family Resource Cenler Contractof Initials
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6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding Subsection 5.13., to read:

5.13. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

5.13.1. Invoicing:

5.13.2. Funding restrictions; and

5.13.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, to
read;

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as avkrarded on
09/30/2018. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788; FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN"
H79TI083326, and as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA
#93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3. to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice and supporting backup documentation In a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department In
order to Initiate payment. Invoices shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;
^  09

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs. ( .

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-O2-A02 Greater Tilton.Area Family Resource Center Contractor Initials
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5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provlde

marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they are an Integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for

clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses s^thin the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need

to be supplied v/ith the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.6. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other

financial information as requested by the Department.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 11, to
read;

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 12, to
read:

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quarterly reports.

12. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2. SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2. SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center Contractor Initials
8/27/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of'the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/2/2021

Date

C—0*eu$>on«4 br;
F«e

- EMDOWMCftMr..

Title: Director

8/27/2021

Date

Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center

^■^(>»cu9lsn«4 by:

^^7C0eA321M3W2l„-7COeAJ21M3M2V.

Name: tennon
Title: executive Director

RFP-2019.BDAS-12-WORKF-02-A02
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-0ecu9>9n*dtiy;

9/3/2021
.ottomtmcMtfti

Date Name:3- Christopher Marshall
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

I

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title;

RFP-2019-BOAS-12'WORKF-02-A02 Greater Tilton Area Family Resource Center
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Kitja S.
Dirtcier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/yJSIOr^ FOR BEHA ViORAL HEALTH.

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, mi 03Wr
603-271.9544 (•g00-8S2.3345 Ext. 9544

Fai:60}-27M332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov

December 3. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Wodrforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with Opiold Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.46 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2020 to
September 29, 2021 effective retroactive to September 29. 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

' The Individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified In the table
below.

Vondof Namo Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

- Amount

Increaeo

(Oecreaee)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tilton

Area Family
Resource

Center,
Tillon/NH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
5138,740 $86,323 $227,063

0: 08/14/19.
Item #10 '

Granite

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

B001
Statewide $195,234.48 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19,
Item #19

Total: $333,974.48 1204.862 $536,936.48

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encurnbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Dtportmtnicf lltallh bad Human S«riMi$' Miuian i< la Join communiiiti'ond familiti
in prouiding opporluniiie$ fo' eilixent la ochitut heotik and indtptndenet..
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Hli ExoeDency, Governor CMfttopher T. Sununu
'  and (he HonoraUe Cound)
Pao^ 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because sufficient funds in State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available In the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, end due to delay by the
Substanoe Abuse and Mental Health Servloes Administration (SAMHSA) In approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the
state appropriations were deferred.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocational training supports and
workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders who are in treatment and
recovery settings artd who are seeking to join end/or rejoin the workforce. Employn>ent has long
been recognized as a critical'element In the recovery process, providing people with hope and
opportunity to move forward in the recovery process determined by principles of self-
determination.

. Approximately 100 indivlduais will be served from Septemb6r-29.2020 to September 29
2021.

This vendors will continue integrating workforce readiness programming Into treatment
and recovery 8ettlr>g8. Including creating vocationsl profiles In order to determine an Indhridual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tKe individual to
appropriate vocationsl trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid
the Individual on the path to employment. Vocational training may Include, but Is not limtted to.
assistance with resume writing, completing Jpb applications, and Improving Interviev^ng ekills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of client-specific data that will be available, which
will be collected in coordination wHh the Regional Doo^ays. The State Opioid Response grant
requires that all individuals served receive a comprehensive assessment at several time Intervals,
specifically at intake, six (6) months after Intake, and upon discharge. Through collaborative
agreements with the vendors under these contracts.-the Regional Doonvays gather data on clientr
related outcomes including; recoveiy status, criminal Justice Involvement, employment, arkj
housing needs at the time Intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short end long-term outcomes associated with Slate Opioid Responee-funded initiatives
and to determine which programs are generating the best resists for the clients served.

The Department vriil monitor contracted servloes using the following performance
measures;

• The Contractors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided
training prograrns.

•  The Contractors will ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Indlviduats gain
employment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-l, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for.up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) yaare available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals In
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an Individual's
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.788, FAIN #11081685 and FAIN tfri083326.

In the event (hat the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this progran^.

Respectfulty submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05^5-62-62031(LrM0 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OP HKS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF BUREAU OP DRUO S ALCOHOL SERVICES/STATE OPIOlO
RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Punda CPDA #6X768 PAM H7#TI081689 end K7#T108332«

Greter TtHon Are* Femlly Reaource Certfer. TttoiVNH Vendor#

Stele Piscel

Year
CI»m/Account CluaTiOe Job Number Current Amount tncrease (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proofwn Services 92057040 5110.992 (540,911) 570.081

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proorwn Services 92057040 527.748 SO 527,748

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services' 92057046 50 529,234 529.234
2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Prcgram Semtoes 92057041 50 566,667 566.667

2022 103/500731 Contracts lor Precram Services 920S7048 50 533.333 533.333

SuO Total 51)8,740 588.323 5227,063

Granite Pathwra. Concord/Nh Vendor#

State Placal

Year
Cteu/Accomi Cless TlOe Job Number Curreni Amount increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 5149.696 (577.213) 572.683
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 545.338 50 545,338

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92057046 50 543,652. 543,852

2021 102/500731 . Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 5100.000 5100,000
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 550,000 550.000

Sub Total 5195.234 5116,639 5311,873

I  Overall Total S333.974I ■ S204.962I • >538.6361

Anadvnanl • Bureau 9i Behavtord HedVi

FinanddOeiM

Pa0a 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals
with OLIO Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Slate" or "Department") and
Greater Tillon Area Pamlly Resource Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a rton'profit with
a place of business at 5 Prospect St, Tilton, NH 03276.

WHEREAS, pureuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019, (Item #19). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit 0-1,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Coritracl Language. Paragraph .2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual cover\ants and conditions contained
in the Contract arxJ set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P«37 General Provisioris. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

Septeniber29. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Prdvlsions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$227,063.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 3. Reporting, by adding Subsectton 3,2. to read:

3.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Departrnent and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 4. Performance Measures, by adding Subsectton
4.4. to read:

4.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enharice contract management,
Improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services. Section 5. State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

5. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

5.1.1. Establishes formal information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substarKe use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality lav/s,
Including 42 CFR Part 2.

09

Greater TIHon Afea Family Resource Center Amendments Inttlats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with ODD

5.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract elective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
asspciated with SOP funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs fur)ds
.  ̂ ^ and respite shelter funds are In compliance with the Department and SAMHSA

requirements.

5.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall assist clients with enrolling In public or
private health insurance, if the client Is determined eligible for such coverage and will,
have staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for 'Medicaid.

5.7. The Contractor and/or referred providers shalLaccept clients on Medicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT on-slte or through referral for all clients
supported with SCR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

5.6. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall, coordinate v^th the NH Ryan White
HIV/AlOs program for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

5.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLlne as part of
treatment planning.

5.10. The Contractor shall coll3t)orate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department, State of NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

5.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using

, marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

5.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

5.11.2.Grant funds also'cannot be provided to anyindividual who or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders.

5.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understarxJing (MOD) that receive SOR funding.

5.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

5.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department writhin
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

5.12. .The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terrns and conditions including, but not
limited to:

5.12.1. Invoicing:

Greats Triton Area Family Resource Center Amendment U\ Coniraclcr Iniilais
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5.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

5.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing In its entirety with
Exhibit 8 Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. In order to bring
payment terms into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit 8-1 by reducing the total budget amount by $40,911, of vs4iich $29,234 is identified
as unspent funding that is being carried forward to fund the activities In this Agreement for SPY 21
(September 30. 2020 through December 31. 2020). as specified in Exhibit 8-3 Amendment #1
NCE and for SFY21 (January 1. 2021 through June 30. 2021) in the amount of $11,677. as
specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment SCR II.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment SOR II. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

M

HGrealer Tilloo Ares Family Resource Center Amendment Contrdctor initials
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All terms and condllions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective-September 30.2020, upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
I

State of New Hampshire
Departrr^ent of Health and Human Services

C~Oacw9lgn*4
Namef»?at5Ttox

12/4/2020

Date

Title: Director

Greater Tillon Area Family Resource Center

12/4/2020

Date Lennon

Title: Executive Director

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center Amendment
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . ' .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/11/2020

/—OxMlfcwiifcir:

Dale * Nam&'i^it^eVine Pinos
Tille. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:

Title:

Greater niton Area Family Resource Ccnier Amendment «l
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EXHIBIT B Amendnnent #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement Is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opiold Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.768, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded
on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Adminlstratjon, CFDA #93.786. FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subredpient, In accordance with 2
CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, In accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3. Thede minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-5 Amendmerit #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek payment for services, as follows:

4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2'. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. Third, the Contractor shall charge Medlcaid enrolled individuals, as follows:

4.3.1. Medicaid Care Management: If enrplled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCO), the Contractor shall be paid In accordance with its contract with the

■ MCO.

4.3.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client In accordance with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the Stale by the fifteenth (15lh)
viforking day of the following month, which ident'fies and requests reimbursement for

-M

Grostor Tlion ATM FsfnOy Raaoiirc* Contor Ei^lbil 6 Amendmool PI Conirsctor Inlliais j
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

authorized expenses Incurred In the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice Is
completed, dated and returned to the Department In order to initiate payment. Invoices shall
be net any other revenue received towards the services billed In fulfillment of this agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1 ■ Backup documentation Includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. Genera) Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for

wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(1)0) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking lerhplales. which are available to the

Department upon request. n

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective date of contracl.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for .employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to .purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally

unallowable unless they are an integral part of a conference
grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the
FOA. Grant funds may be used for fight snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

AU
drostor TWon Aroa FsmBy Resource Cenler Ei^it B Amendment 01 Contrsctor tnitiels f ^
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EXHIBITS Amendment#1

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.6. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

melissa.girard@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after twenty (20) business days of (he
last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The Slate shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in
compliance \A/ith funding requirements.

• 12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with, the terms and conditions of Exhibit A. Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

13. Nohwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both

parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council. If needed and
justified.

14. Audits

CfMlv Tlion A/M Family Resource Cenlo/ Ei^lbU B Amendment 01 Contractor Ir^tiste H
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14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the
following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds

received as a subrecipienl pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition 6 • The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
■  • Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by
an independent Cenified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the

Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
independent CPA if the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the

Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to. and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

HOrtHtr TIloo Affts FamOy Rosourco Ceniar 6 Amendment 01 Centractor Irtftials
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

1 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NM 63MJ
i0)>17|.>544 I400-<S]0>45 Ell 9544

Fit; (03*]7M331 TOD A«ecii: I400-73S-2K4 «rWw.4lib*.B(>.g»v

July23. 2019 ^

H)s Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House.
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heatth end Human Services. Division For Behavorial Health, to enter into
aQreement with Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center (Vendor 0 297434-R001), 5 Prospect St
-Tilton. NH 03276. in an amount not to exceed $138.740. to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of Governor and Council
approval, through September 29, 2020,. .100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
' Vendor

Number
Location Contract Amount

Greater Titton Area

Family Resource Center
297434-RaOI 5 Prospect Si.

Tllton. NH 03276
$136,740

Total: $138,740

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for Slate
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget,'with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust-encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

0S-9S-92-920610-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account CUss Title Job Numtxtr Total Amount

■  2020 102-500731 Contracis for Prog Svc 92057040 $110,992

2021 102-500731; Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $27,748

Total: $138,740
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'  explanation

. The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational training supports
and yyortdorce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seekir>g to join and/or re-join the workforce. Employment has long been recognized as
a critical element In the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to move forward
in the recovery process that is determined by principtes of self-determination.

This request represents one (1) of two (2) anticipated contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Department anticipates awarding one (1) more
conlrect at the next available Governor and Executive Council meeting, upon receipt of the fully executed
contract documents.

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA) State Opioid Response (SOR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
will use evidence-based methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention sen/Ices to IndividMals
with CUD in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as .expand the capacity for programs that have shown promise in hejping

-  individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017.
NH had 468 opioid-related deaths, 2.774 emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6,684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked, as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 Individuals per 100.000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identiried gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with QUO. The services provided through these fur>ds should leverage resources and
facilitate connections writh the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUD/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
the Department of Labor National Health Emergency OBmonstrailon grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation and Oppoflunity Act of 2014.

This agreement will require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings. Including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employmenl. The vendor will link the individual to appropriate
vocational trainings with the prowsion of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resumie writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of clienl-specinc data that will be available, which will
be collected in coordination with the Regional Hubs that were approved by Governor ar>d Executive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SOR grant requires that all individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessment at several time intervals, specincaily at intake.^.slx (6) months and upon
discharge. Through colla^rative agreements yyith the vendor under this conir'act. the Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gathering data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice
involvement, employment,*and housing needs at the time intenrals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short arid long-term outcorhes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

Approximately one hundred (100) individuals will be served from Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29. 2020. ' , ■

This vendor was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services* web site from November 15.
2018 through December 13. 2018. In addition, a rjolice was sent by email to a wide variety of
stakeholders and potential vendors. The Oeparlment received four (4) proposals. The proposals were
reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a
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Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council..

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, irtdividuals in recovery
se.eking a better quality of- life and employmeni opportunities-would have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are chlical components of an individual's ability to remain in
recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Menial Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFOA ff93.768, FAIN TI081685)

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not-be requested to support this program. -

Respectfully submitted,

rnrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Diparlmtnt *1 HtoUh andHuwiCfi SttuktlMhaon u («>n«Mn«unir»i vtd familitt
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New Hampshire Department olHeatth and Human Services
.Office of Business Operatiorts

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

RFP-20tS^AS-12JN0PKP

RFP Number Revtewer Names

JBUdar Name Pass/Fefl

BSsifTRUxn

PotntB

Actual
Points

2.

QreatBrTIUon Ares Fsmltv Resource Centar 7B0 m
.

^ Headrest, Irtc. 760 616
4.'

Oranlte Pathways, Inc. 760 669
5.

FamDv Resource Center al Goftiam 760 449
6.
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Notice: Thu ogrecmeni end ell of iu ituchmcnu shall become public upon lubmission to Governor and
. Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprieia/y must-
be clearly identified to (he agency arid agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

ACReEMENT

The Stele of New Hampshire and the Comraclor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENCRALPROVISIONS

I. lOENTIPICATtON.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Oepa/tmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03)01-3837

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Ccruer
1.4 Coniracior Address

S Prospect Si
Tilton, NH 03276

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

603-286-42S3

1.6 Account Number

297434-ROOI

1.7 Completion Date

Speiember 29,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

SI38.740 .

1.9 ComraciingOITicer for State Agency
■ Nathan D. White, Director

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-27(.963l

1.11 Contractor Signatory 1.12 Name and Title cfContractor Signatory

df^rM^to. Cook^jreoSurer
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of ■ .Couniyof /^^j^CL/O

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person ideniified [jP^di^T'l ̂VoV^Kit&torily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and ocknowledged that s/he executed iJ^^^'uneAfYn the UQP^iy
mdicaicd in block 1.12. 5 ' =
I.I3.I Signature o^oury Public or Justice of the Peace | i 007.1^*^10 j §

,  AJa7?}^u

J.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ' *

1.14 Stole Agency Signature —, 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by (he N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Persdhriel O/appHcabU)

By: Director, On:

1,17 Approval by (he Attorney General (Form, Substance and E.xecutlon) (ifopplicobU)

1.18 ApproN^il by the Q6vert(or and Executive Council fi/opp/«co8/r,J

By: On:
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1. eMPU)VMENTOFCONTRACTOR/SCRVIC€STO
BE PERFORMED. The Sute ofNew Htmpshirc, icitn(
ihrough the agency ideniiftcd in block I.I C'Stsie"). engages
coniraclor idenUrted in block 1.3 (^Comrecior**) to perform,
and ibc Contractor shall perform, the work or sale ofgoods. or
both, identiried and rnort pankuiarly described In the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporalcd herelrt by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
,3.1 Horwiihiianding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Covemor and
Executive Council ofihe State of New Hampshire, if

applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics
hereundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1. 11. unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shell become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
l.l4C*Efreeiive Date").
3.2 If the Coniraciof commences the Servkes prior to (he

- Effective Date, all Services perfonned by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including wiihdui limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs Incurred or Services performed.
Contractor mutt complete all Services by (he Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.'
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to (he
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including,
without limiiation, the continuance of poymenis hereunder, ere
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriai'ion
of funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hereundcr In excess of Such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have (he right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have (he right to (crrninaie this Agreement immediately upon
•giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account idcnlined in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. contract price/price limitation/
PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, dnd terms of
payment ̂  identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 6 which is incorporated herein by referenec.
5.2 The payrqent by the State of (he contract price shall be (he
only and iIk complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to (he Contractor for the Services. The Slate
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTsci from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
t0:7 through R$A 90:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Norwiihtianding imy provision in (his Agreement to the
cofllrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the loul ofall payments authorized, or actually
made hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block
1.9.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND Regulations/ equal employment
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the.
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or munkipal authorities
whkh impose any obligation or duty upon the Contracier,
including; but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
lawrs. This may include the requiremni to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure thai persons with eommunicaiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communkatc with, receive information from, artd convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

. shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of (his Agreement, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment b^uieofrace. color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or ruiiortal origin and wil.l take
affirmaiivc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisioru of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Emptoymeni Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Oepanment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he Stale or United Steles access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms end conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall ot its own expense provide ell
personnel necessary (o perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants (hat all personnel engaged in (he Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be.propcrl'y
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) nsonihs afler the
Completion Date in block (.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any lubconiraclor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

or 4
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Agreemeni. This provision shall survive lermintiion of ihii
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Offtcer speciHed in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's reprcseniaiive. In the event
ofatty dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

8. EVENT OF OEFAULTfREMEOIES.
8.1 Anyone or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constiruie an event ofdcfault hereundcr
("Event of Oefauli"):
II. I failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

B.I .2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to pcrformany other covenant, term or cocsdiiion
.of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Oefault, the State
may take any one. or rrwre, or all. of (he following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying' the Event
of Default and requiring li to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser speciricat'ron of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if (he Event of Default it
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving (he Contractor notice of termintiion;
8.2.2 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event
of Default and suspersding all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering (hat the portion of the conlraci price
which would otherwise accrue lO the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as (he Siaic
determines thai ihe Contractor has cured the Event of Defauli

shall never be paid to the Coniraetor;
8.2.3 set olT against any other obligations (he State may owe to
(he Contmctor any damages (he Stale suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached ar>d pursue any of its
remedies at lew or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/ .

preservation.

9.1 As used In this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
inrormation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all iludies, rcpons,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, ietten, memoranda, pipcn, and documents. '
•II whether Hnished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with furtds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
(ermination ofthis Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9)-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approvsl of the State.

10. termination. In (he event of en early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to (he Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (13) days after the date of
termlnstion, a report ("Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including Ihe date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of Ihe Termination
Report shall be identical to (hose of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
(he performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
rcipccis an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contraaor'nor any of its
officen, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bir>d the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its ernployees.

12. ASSlCNMEffT/DELECATlON/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise irarufer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice and
consem of the State. None of (he Services shall be

lubconiracicd by the Contractor without Ihe pr'ior wrritten
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmleis (he Slate, its ofTiccrt and
employees, from end against any and all losses suffered by the
State, iu oflicers end employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assened against the State, Its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out qO the acts or omissions of Ihe
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of (he
soviereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant In paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force. or>d shall require any subcontractor or
assigrtee to obtain and maimain in force, (he rotlowing
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage. In amounu
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; end
14.1.2 Special ̂ uie of loss coverage form covering all .
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80V«of(he whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shell
be on policy forms end.endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of.Ncw Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew
Hampshire.

Page 3 of4
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I *.y The Connetor thell furnish lo Ihe Contreciing OfTKcr
idemincd in block 1.9. or his or her luccessor. e ceniftcBie<t)
ofinturenec for til inturencc required under this Agreemeni.
Contncior shell also furnish to the Cohiraeting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certiricete(s)or
insurance for all reneviral(s) of insurance required under ihis
' Agreemerti no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certirtc«te{t) of
insuranee end any renewals thereof shall be aiiach^ artd are
incorporated.herein by reference. Each c«nirieaie<s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identifted in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contraetor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSa chapter 2tl>A
("Workert' Comptnsoiion ").
15.2 To the extern the Contractor is subject to (he
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall .
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish (he Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A and any
applicable rcAewat(s) thereof, which shall be anachcd and ere
incorporated herein by referertcc. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Coniraaor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
On the pan of (he Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by cenified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Orfice addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

ifi. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be omcnded,
waiWd or discharged o.nly by on instrument in writing signed
by ihe panies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of Ihe State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law.,rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agrecmeni
is (he wording chosen by (he parties to express (heir mutual
intent, and no rule of consirvcilon shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.'

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any luch bencfii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughouiihe Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, rhodify, amplify or
aid In the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in (he attached EXHIBIT Care incorporated herein by
refererKe.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdici ion to
be coniri/y to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisionsofthis Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, ettch of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes (he entire Agreement and
understanding beiwcjcn the parties, and supersedes ell prior
Agreements artd understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readlneae and Vocational
Training Programe for Individuate with OUO

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shell submil o detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English pronclency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future leglsletive action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court ordora may hove an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service prloritlBs
end expenditure raeuirements under this Agreement ao as to achieve comptiar>ce
therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as
a Subreclpient. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. el scq.

1 .A. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness end Vocational Training Programs
for a minimum of one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use Disordef(OUD) in the
Greater Tilton Area, which includes:

1.4.1. Tlfton.

1.4.2. Northfield.

1.4.3. Franklin.

1.4.4. Sanbomton.

1.4.5. Surrounding smalMowns.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce Readiness end
Vocational Tfalnli>g programs are referred to treatment ar»d recovery services when
applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming'to individuals with
OUD who are receiving treatment or recovery support services. The Contractor shall
ensure workforce readiness programming shall Include, bui is not limited.to:

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.

2.2.2. Resume and cover letter assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skiPs..

2.2.5. Budgeting and rmancial management skUls.

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retenlion approaches.

2.2.6. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and Interview assistance, including mock Interviews.

CreatarTlUonAfoa Family Resource Center EkTiWia Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

.Exhibit A

2.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

2.3. The Contractor shall implement a process to identify, recruit and engage individuals
with an OUD. Including Indivlduais not currently receiving services from the Contractor,
who may be interested In pursuing employment and/or educational opportunities or
v^o may be underemployed and are seeking a Irving wage.

2.4. The Contractor Shall provide the Recovery Works Curriculum based on nine (9)
modules as follows:

2.4.1. Financial Basics and Time Management 101.

2.4.2. Employment Risks to Early Recovery.

2.4.3. Transferable Skills and Resume Development.

2.4.4. Cover Letter end Job Search Strategies.

2.4.5. Computer Skills and Online Job Search Basics.

2.4.6. Interview Skills.

2.4.7.. Practice Interviewing with a Positive Attitude.

2.4.6. Recovery Thinking and Workplace Ethics.

2.4.9. Common Work Challenges.

2.5. The Contractor shall offer individualized trainings to employers and community groups
utilizing curriculum from Recovery Works, which includes, but is hot limited to:

2.5.1. Opioids and their effects on the'brain.

2.5.2. Stigma.

2.5.3. Stages, of Recovery.

2.5.4. Pathways to Recovery.

2.5.5. Resources and Referral.

2.6. ,^The Contractor shall develop a cuslomized plan for each Individual, based on the
individual's seven dimensions of weDness of physical, emotional, intellectual, social,
spiritual, environmental and occupational. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Screen individuals for strengths and weaknesses, capacity for work and
necessity of work.

2.6.2. Conduct an Intake process that shall Include, but Is not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Interview with a Recovery Coach.

2.6.2.2. Assess the individual's dimensions of weilness. -

2.6.2.3. Assess the individual's occupational weilness.

2.6.3. Address barriers to employment with Individuals and provide assistance in
overcoming those barriers.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are enrolled in other services and supports
that aid individuals In recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce for which they
ere eligible, as appropriate, Including, but not limited to:

Groator TUion Area FsmOy Resource Center Exl^i A Contractor Initials
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Workforce Readinooa and Vocational

Training Programs for Individuals with OUO

Exhibit A

. 2.7.1. The Community Oevelopmen! Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace initiative Program Development Pilot.

. 2.7.2. The NH Department of Labor Nationai Health Emergency Demonstration
grant for Individuals in recovery.

2.7.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.7.4. NH Works.

2.7.5. NH Employment Security.

2.6. The Contractor shall coliaborete wKh local higher educational and vocational .training
institutions In order to provide individuals with vocational irainlng end educational
opportunities in the treatment and/or recovery Mrvice setting, the Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Conduct a comprehensive vocational essessmeni to determine en
individual's level of skills, strengths, arid readiness lo seek end enter the

^  workforce.

2.8.2. Ensure the process is person-centered and based on individual choice and
self-determination.

2.6.3. Utilize (he vocational assessment along with the client's input to design a
vocational plan of action.

2.6.4. Link individuals to the appropriate level of services and* resources which
must include, but are not limited to: ■

2.6.4.1. Resume writing.

2.6.4.2. Job application writing.

2.6.4.3. Improving client-interviewing skills.

2.8.5. Conduct Motivational Interviewing to increase individuals' willingness ar^d
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities.

2.9. The Contractor shall utilize the 0*N£T OnLine career execration and job analysis and
(he NH Employment Security website to assist participants with:

2.9.1. Planning career goals.

2.9.2. Choosing a training path.

2.9.3. Searching for a new career.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are assessed for and receive, as appropriate:

2.10.1. Financial assistance for trsnsportatlon to classes.

2.10.2. Educational supplies, including but not (imited to textbooks, as necessary.

2.10.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search (unctions. ,

2.11. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan (or each participant that addresses
^  previous barriers to employment. Including but not limited to:

2.11.1. Poorjob history.

2.11.2. Substance use disorder Impacting performance.

GreotorTilionAreaFomilyResourooOniof ExhbiiA ConUodof IniUali^^ d
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2.11.3. Criminal background.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources end
assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.12.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.12.2. Providing opportunities to meat with job coaches.

2.12.3. Providing individuals with job-shadowing and internship opportunities.

2.13. The Contractor shall, ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education ere provided with resources that .support those goals.
Including but not limited to:

2.13.-1. Training and class stipends.

■2.13.2. F'inenclal Bid and grant applications.
2.13.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.14. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative to offer
opportunities for local businesses to engage v^th potential employees in recovery as
a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities, and increase the
number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.15. The Contractor shall build on current relationships with the local community and
employers as well as outreach to others.

2.16. The Contractor shall develop a community outreach plan using the Recovery Friendly
Workforce Initiative materials and processes with community organizations.

2.17. The Contractor shall provide staff, including a designated program lead, that possess
the expertise and knowledge in providing vocational trelnlng to Individuals of spedai
larget populations who experience barriers to employment.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall, on a quarterly basis, track and report Departmenl dala
requirements for the programs including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for Individuals with an opioid use
disorder.

3.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age.
gender, race, and ethnicity.

3.1.3. ' Vocational services provided per individual.

3.1.4. Start date of employment per individual.
3.1.5. Type of position per individual. *

3.1.6. Name of employers per Individual.

3.1.7. Length of emptoyment per individual.
3.1.8. Aggregate' percentage of individuals employed per month.

Grootor Tilion Area Fomiy Roaourc« CorUcr Exhibit A Contractor (niiioh
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3.1.9. Number of employers recruited per month.

3.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
Ihdividuats in recovery per month.

4. Performance fVleasures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of (ndividuats In the program, who
have not attained gainful em^oymerU, complete provided training programs.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall repon all. If any. exceptions for individudls who do not
attend available training programs. ^

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy>f]ve percent (75%) of individuals gain
employment.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact end coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

5. State Opioid F^esponee (SOR| Grant Standards

5.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
Initiatives, the Contractor shell establish fornial Information sharing and referral
agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with all
applicable conftdentlatity laws, including 42 CFR Pah 2.

5.2. The Contractor shad complete client referrals to applicable. Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the
program.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated y^th SOR funded activities to ensure services are In place vwthin thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3.1. If the Contractor Is unable to offer services within the required timeframe.
the Contractor shall submit en updated implementation plan to the
Department for approval to outline anticipated service stah dates.

5.3.2. The Oepahment reserves the right to terminate the contraci and liquidate
unspent funds if services are not In place within ninety (90) days of the
contract effective date.

Crcoltir roion Area Femtty Resouru Center E)ihKdl A Contrador Inltieb Cap _
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Slate shall pay the Contractoran amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement Is funded with Federal funds as follows; 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and'Mental Health Services Administration, CFOA #93.788. Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN), TI081665

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
iri the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as spedfied in Exhibits 8-1. Budget through Exhibit B-3.

4.2.The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a "form satisfactory to the Stale by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses Incurred in the prior month.

4.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to iniiiate payment.

4.4.The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Departmenl review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after Ihe contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Melissa.Glrard@dhhs.nh.90v, or invoices rriay be mailed to:

SDR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant SI, 4*^ Ft
Concord, NH,03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-

GfoalOf TUioftAfM Eitfiiblia ConUoctw tnEiia]» _CJJ£c
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compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 16 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line Items.- related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limliaiion, and lo adjusting encumbrances- between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by wrihen agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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SPgClAL PRQVISIOMS

Coniractors Obligattons; The Conlraclor covenants and agrees that ell furxls received by the Contractor
under the Contract shell be uMkt only as payment to the Contractor for eeryices provided to eiiglbie
individuals and. in the furthersr>ce of the aforesaid ccvenanis, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Fcdemt and State Laws: If (ho Contractor is permitted to determine the ePgibUily
of individuals euch eligibility doterminailon shall be mode in occordanco with appPcable federol and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies end procedures.

2. Time end Manner of Determination: Eligibility doterminaiions shall be made on forms providod by
the Departmeni for that purpose end shall be made end remade ai such times as ere prescribed l>y
the Departmeni.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by (he Oepartment. the Contractor
shell maintain a data file on each recipieni of services hereunder. which file shall include'all
inlormation necessary to supped an eligibility determination end such other Information as the •
Oepadment requests. The Contractor shell furnish the Department with all forms ar>d documentation
ragardir^g eligibility determinalions thai the Oepartment may request or require.

4. Fair Haaringa: The Contrector understands that all epplicdr\t6 for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a ftfr hearing regarding that determination. The
Cofttraetor hereby covenants end agrees thai all applicants for services shall be permitted to nil out
an epplicalion form and that each eppPcant or re-appUcant shall be informed of his/her right to ofair
hearing in accordance with Oepadment regulations.

5. Oralulties or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees thai ft is a breach of (his Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of emptoyment on behalf of (he Contractor, eny Subcontractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhbit A of this
Contract. The State may lorminato (his Contract end eny sub<onireci or 8ub<egreement if it-is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of emptoymeni of eny klrtd were offered or received by
any ofTictals. officers, employees or agents of the Controctor or Sut^ontractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or Inany
other document, contract or understanding, k is expressly understood end agreed by the padies
hereto, thai no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided lo any individual prior to the Effective Date of (he Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for eny services provided
prior to Ihe date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to o determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwilfuianding enylhi/>g to ihe contrary contained in the Contract nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo obligate or require Ihe Oepartment to purchese services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of ihe Contractors costs, at a rate •
which exceeds the amounts reasonable end necessary lo assure Ihe quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at eny time during the terrri of Ihis Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Oepartmant shall determine that (he Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse hems ol expense other than such costs, or hos..received payment

'  In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contrector to ineligible ind'rviduats
or other third party funders. (he Department may elect to: '

7.1. Renegotiate (he rales for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall bo established:
7.2. Deduct from eny future payment to the Cofltractor the amount ol any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ^
ExNbll C - SpMUl Prev(ilOA» Contractor inlilatt
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7.3. Demand repaymeni of (he excess peymeni Oy (he Contractor in wttich event failure to mafce
such repayment shell constKute an Event of Default hereunder. When (he Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility ol individuals for services, the Contrector agrees to
reimburse (he Department for ell funds paid by the Department to the Contrector for services
pfovkled to any individual who is found by (he Department to be Ineligible for such aervtcesat
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Molnienerteo of Rocorde: in eddiiksn lo the eligbllity records specified above, the Contractor
covenents arvf egrees lo.maintain the foQowIng records during the Contract Period:

6.1. FIs^ Records: books, records, documenli end other data evidencing and rehectlng all costs
end other expenses incurred by the Contractor (n the performance of the Controci. ond alt
income received or collected by the Contractor durlrtg the Contract Period, said records to be .
maintained in eccordartce with accounlir^g procedures end practicei which sufficrenily artd
property reflect ell such costs and expenses, er>d which are ecc'epteble lo the Department, and
to Inciuda. without limitation, all ladgora. books, records, ond original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders', vouchers, requisitions for materials. inveniories. valuations of
irwkind contributions, (abor time cards, payrolls, end other records requested or required by the
Departmdnl.

6.2. Statistical Records: Stalrsiical, enrotlment. attendance or visit records for each recipient of
senrices during the Contracl Pcriod. wtvch records shall include all records of applicaliooand
etigiblCty (including ell forms required lo determine eiigbtiity for each such-recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and oQ invoices submitted to the Dopanmeni to.obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate end es prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit lo the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance wHh the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non
ProTii Organizations" end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemrnentol Organizations..
Programs. Actrvilies end Functions, issued by (he US General Accounting CfTice (GAG standards) as
they pertain lo financial compliartce audits.

9.1. Audit end Review: During the term of this Contract and (he period for retention hereunder. (he
Department, (he United States Department of Health arid Human Services, and any of.their
designated representatives shall have access to ell reports end records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit LtabilHiM: In addition to and not in any way'in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by itw Contractor tlUt the Contractor shall be held liable for any stale
or federal oudrt exceptions aiid shall return to the Department, ell payments made under (ha
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of cuch on
exception.

10. Confldontlallty of Recordfi; All Information, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
in conrtection with the performance ol the servicos and (he Contract shall be confidential end shad not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to'state laws ond the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of.such Informailon. disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection wtih their official duties and for- purposes
directly connected to the administration of (he services and the Contract; and provided further, (hat
the uio or disclosure by any party of any Informalion concernirtg a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohblted except on written consent of the recipient, his
ottomey Of guardian. _
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph ehail aurvlva the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the foltowing reports at thefollowino
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed descriplionof

ell costs and non-aitowable expenses mcurrod by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other Infofmetion as shall bo deemed sotisfoctory by the Department to
justify the role of poymcni hcreunder. Such Financial Reports shell bo submitted on the form
des^notod by the Deportment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report than be 8ubrr\lnod within thirty (30) days aRer.ihe end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall bo In o form satisfoctory to the Department end shall
contain a eumrrtary sialcmcnt of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
end other informotlon required by the Oepertment.

12. Completion of Servlcee; Oisatlowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Conlraci and upon payment of the price limitation
hercunder. (he Contract end ell the obligations ot the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by tr»o terms of the.Contrect ere to be performed oRer the and of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the tonninotlon of the Contract) shall terminoie, provided however, that if. upon review cftho
. Final Expenditure Report the Department shall diseilow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right. elUs discrcllDn. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Conlreclor.

13. Credlto: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resuJling from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include Ihefollowina
statement: "
13.1. The preparelton of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wHh the State

of Now Hampshire. Department of Heatth and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources es ware available or
required, e.g.. the United States OepBrtmont of Health and Human Services.

M. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownowhlp; All materials (written, video, audio) prolucod or
pufchasad under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before priming, producliorj.
distribution or use. The DHHS wfll retain copyright ownership for any arnJ all ordinal maiorials
produced, including, bul not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
pwters. or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the conlraclwilhoul
prior wntten approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws end Regulations: fn the operelion of any facltitioi
for.provlding services, the Contractor shall comply with ell laws, orders and regulations of federal
stale, county ar>d munlctpal eulhorltias and with any direclicn of any PubKc Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duly upon the contractor with res(>6cl to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facilily. If any governmental llconse or
permll shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the ̂ ntracior will procure said license or permii. and will el all times comply with the terms and
coruJitions of each such license or permit. In corwoction vnih the foregoing requirements, the
ContracKv hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shad

,  comply with all rules, orders, regulations, end requiremBnjs of the Stale Office of the Fire Morshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building ertd zonlna codes by
laws end regulailons. ® ■ '

16. Equal Employmonl Opportunity Plan (EEOP): Tho Conlractof wdl provide an Equal Employment
opportuniiy Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Ctvil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). if It has
received a single award of 5500,000 or more, if the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or
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more employees, il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit en EEOP Cerlificetion Eonri to the
OCR. certifying the! its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less then $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer then 50 employees, regardless of (he amount of the eward. the recipient will provide on
EEOP Certincelion Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to aubnilt or maintain en EEOP. Non-
profil organlzeiions, Indian Tribes, end medicel and educetional institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirernent. but ore required to submit e certincation form to the OCR to claim (he exemption.
EEOP CertiTcetion Forms ere available si; http:/AMWw.ojp.usd^8bout/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for per<cn* with Limited English ProficierNCy. end resulling egoncy guidance, netionolorioin
discrimination includes discriminetion on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Seta Streets Act of 1966 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must lake reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meantngful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistloblowor Protections: The
following shall apply to al) contracts that exceed (he Simplified Acquisilion Threshold es defined in46
CFR 2.101 (currentty. $150,000)

CONTRACtOn EmPIOyEE WHlSTLESLOryEft RCkTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EmPIOYEES OF
WwsYleblOwer Rights (SEP 2013)

(e) This coniraci and employees working ori this contract will be subject to the whistlebtower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Coniractor employee whblleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Oelense Authcdzailon Act for Frscat Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.S08.

(b) The Contractor ahoH Inform Us employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and proteclions under 41 Lf.S.C.-4712, as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contreclor shall Insert the substance of this clause, ir^iuding this paragraph (c). in ell
subcontracts over the s'lmpSfied acqulsilton (hreshold.

19. Subcontractors: QHHS recognizes that the Cont/ector may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health cere services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end accountebDity for Ihe funcUonfs). Prior to
subcontracting, the Coniractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform' the delegated
funct'ion(8). This is accomplished through a written agreement (hat specifies eclivliies and reporting
responsibilities of the suti^ntractor and provides for revoking iha delegation or imposing sanct'ons if
■the subcontractor'a i^rformance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions es (he Contractor erxl the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those cond'rtions.

When the Coniractor detegales a function to a subcontrecior, the Contractor shall do the fdlowing:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have e written agreement with (he subcontrecior thet specifies acii^^ties andreporfing
rasponslbUitias end how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is nol adequate

19.3. Monitor the subconiractor's performance ori an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHHS en annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated funclionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontrector's perforrnance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shaD. at its discretion, rtynow end approve ali subcontracts.

If the Contractor ident'rfies denciencies or areas (or Improvement ere identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those dir^ end Indirect Item's of expense determined by (he Department
to be filtowebla end reimbursaWe in eccordonce with cost or>d accounting principles estobllshed
in accordance with elate end federal lews, reguiet'tons, rules end orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Oepartment of Health end Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If eppTtceble. shall mean the document eubmhled by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Oepartment end containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract er>d setting forth the total cost and sources of revemie for each sorvico to be provided
under (he Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each eervice that the Contractor is to provide to eiigtole individuals hereundor, shall
mean that period of time or that epecift^ activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said referertce shall be deem^ to moan
an such lewe. regulations, etc. as they msy bo amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contraclor uruJer this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Rovlolons to Form P-37, Gonorol Provisions

1.1. Section A. Contihional Nature of Aofeement. is reolaced as follows: ^

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. ,

NotwIlhBlanding any provision of this ̂ reement to the contrary, ell obligations of the Stale
hereunder, indudino.withou) iimrtslion. the continuance of peymenta'. in Whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent u^n continued appropriation or avaiiablDty of funds,
including ony eubsoqucnt chor^ges to the opproprfation or ovatlability of furvfa effected by
any stote or federal legisJalrve or executive action that reduces, eiimineies. or otherwiso
modcFtes the appropriation or evailcbiiity of funding for this Agreement and the Sc^ of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Sco(M of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shell the
State be liable for any payrrtents hereunder in excess of appropriated pr available funds. In'
the event of a reduction, tenninatioA or modification of appropriated or availabte funds, the
Stale shaQ have the right to whhhold payment uruii such funds become available, if ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reducs. termlnale or modify services under this Agreeirient
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modiftcailon. The State shall not be required to irarisfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the Generaf Provisions. Account
Number, or ony other account in the event funds ore reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the foliowing language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sola diKrelion of
-  the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor wrrtton not'ica that the Stale is axerdsing its

■  option to lenmlnata the Agroempni.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of earfy
terminotion. develop end submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. IrKluding but hot limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 the Contractor ehall fuDy cooperate with the Stole and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Tr8.ns<lion Plan inctuding. but not limKed to. any information or
data requested by the State reiaied to the tefmmation of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communicotion and revisions of (he Transition Plan to the State
as requested.'

10.4 In (ha event thot services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltloned to having services delivered by another'
entity including contracted providers or (he Stale, the Contractor ehall prowde a process for
uninterrupted del/very of ser^ce's in the Transition Plan. -

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other effected ir>dividuafs
about the transition. The Contractor shoil Include the proposed communications In Its
Trarxsltion Plan submitted to (ha Stale es deschbed above.

2. Rpnowal

2.1.,The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of serNAces. available funding, written agreement of the
parlies and approval of the Governor end Executive Council.

ExNon C-> - Rr«<Ucnsrgxc<ptlpni 10 Siondint CoiXroct Longuaoo' Conlr»c)or iWililt,
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CCRTlPtCATlON REGARDING DRUG'fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Tho Vendor idonlined In Section 1.3 of Iho GonorsI Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections Sl5l*5160of the Drug-Free Worliplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0:41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative,, as identiAed In Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the Generel Provisions execute the following Certtficalion:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OP AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This cenlficetion is required by (he regvteltons implemeniing Sections 6151-5160 of the Orug-Free
Wodcplece Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690. TUIe V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The Jenuery 31.
1989 regulations were emended end published as Perl li of the Mey 25.1690 Fodorol Register (pages
21681-21691). end require certification by grantees (end by inference, sub-greniees end sub
contractors). prior loeward, that they will maintain o drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of (ha
regulation provides that o grantee (end by inference, sub-grehtees end sub-contractors) that Is e State
mey elect to make one cartificetlon lo the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certiflcalion or violation of the certlficallon shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government vrlde suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissionar

NH Department of Hoaiih end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue lo provide e drug-free workplace by;
.  1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employoes (hat the unlawful manufacture', distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of e controlled substance is prohibited in (he grantee's
workplace end spetifyfng the actions that will be taken egeinat employees lor viotetion of such
prohibition;

1.2. Estabtishing'en ongoing drug-froo awareness program to Inform employees pboul
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlelning.a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. ■ Any ovailable doig counseling, rehebilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it e requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance ol the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoymenl under the greni. the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of (ho staiemeni; and •
1.4.2. Notify the employer in wriling of his or her conviction for o violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convlcllon;

1.5. Notifying the egency In wriling. wilhin (en calendar days efter receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employoe or otherwise receiving eclual notice of such conviction.
Employors of convicted cmpioyeos must provide notice, inciudirtg position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless (ho Federal agency

Cihlbtl 0 - CwCAutlon regarding Drug frM Vendor lrtitlsli^^2i^
WorXdiKe RequtrsmenU
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has dealgnated a central point (or the recast of such notices. Notice shall include the
jdenttftcatton nuniber($) of each effected greni;

1.6.' Taking ono of tho fono>^g ocltons. within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
t.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up,to and including

tenninalion, consistent with the requirements of the Rehebliitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring suchemployee to participate satisfactorily In a dn/g abuse assistance or
rehobiliifltion program approved for such purposes by o Federal, Stale, or local health,
low onforcomer>l. or other sppropHoto ogoncy:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain e drvg-froe workplace through
implementalion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3. 1.4, 1.5, Br>d1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the spece provided below the skefs) for the performance of worli dorte in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

5^ Pro5pU.^ 'Ti'lhn^ O
Check O If there are workplaces on file that are not Idenlirted here.

Vendor,.Name:

)8l?Del? Nantbijj^ ia CootC
reCiS^rCr

Title:

EKrVbh 0 - Canlflcan»mB''tftnCI On/g FrM V»ndo« inlllsts CdQ.
Wofitplsca Rsqulrwnent]
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with (he provisions of -
Section 319 of Public Lew 10M21. Government wide Guidencelor New Restrlclions on Lobbying, and
31 U-S.C. 1352. end fuhher egrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 ol the Generel Provisions execute the following Cetliftcalion:

US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS '
US department of education • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate oppllcablo program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*ChBd Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Tiile XX
'Medicald Program under TIDe XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tide VI
'Child Care Developmeni Block (Srant under Tlilo iv

The undersigned certifies, to Ihe best of his or her knowtodge and belief-, that: [

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wDI bo paid by or on behalf of (he undersigned, to
any person for influencing or ettempting to lnftuer>ce an officer or.ompioyoo of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an ofHcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of e Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of eny Fedefsi contract, continuetion. renewal, amendment, or
modificaijon of eny Federal corttrocl. grant, loan, or cooperative egreemont (end by epooTic mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds heve been paid'or will be peid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence en officer or employee of any egency. e Momber of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of e Member of Congress In connection with this
Fedcrti conlraci, grant, loan, or coo^ralive egreemeni (end by specific monllon sub-grentee or sub
contractor). the urtdersigned shaD complete end submit Standard Form LLL. (Olsdosuro Form to
Report Levying, in accordance with its Instructions, ettached and Identifted os Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The underalgnad shall require thai the language of this certificalion be included in (he eward
document for sub-awards al eti tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperelive agreements) end thai oD sub-recipients shaD certify and disclose accordingly.

This certincation Is a metertal representaiioh of (act upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite (or making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person vmo fails to file the required
certiftcallon shell be subject to a cMI penalty of not less than SiO.OOO end not more than SlOO.OOO (or
each euch faiture.

Vertdor Nome:

Date I N3me:i!.^ rt+Ks a (JooV^
(ea^ur^ rTitle:

Edilbn E - C«<tlliC*Oor> Rogtrtfing Lobbytng V«n8or IniOxIs
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBHITY fWATTERS

The Vendor IdenUfled (n Section 1.3 of ihe Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presldeni, Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Perl 76 regarding Debarmenl,.
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Mahers. erv) further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative; as identified in SectioAs i.i i and i.i2 of the General Provisions execute (he following
Coflincation:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By 8ignir>g end aubmltting this proposal (contract)! the prospective primary participant is providing the
• certification set oul below.

2. The Inabilily of a person to provide the certincailon required below wlD not necessarily result In denial
of partidpatioo in this covered transaction, if necessary, Ihe prospective participant shell submi) an
exptanelion of why It cannot provide the certincatlon. The cerlirrcallon or explanation wfll be
considered In connection vnth the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determinaUon whether to enter Into this transaction. However, faDure of iho prospective primary

' partidpani to furnish a cortirtcdtion or en expianaiion shall disquaiify such person from partidpalion in
this tronsacilon.

3. The certifrcaiion In this clause is a maicriai representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction.- If it Is later determined that Ihe prospective
primary partidpant knowingly rervfered an erroneous cortirtcalion. In eddlUon to'other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this irensMllon for cause or default.

4. The prospeciive primary partidpant shaD provide immediate wrtuen r^otlco to the OHHS agency to
whom thte proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any lime the prdspeciivo primary partidpani learns
that Its certlflcailon was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of chartged
drcumstances.

5: The terms 'covered irensaction,' 'debarred.* 'suspended,* '(nellglbie.* 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant.' 'person,* 'prfmary covered transaction.' 'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'votuntarily exduded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in Ihe Oefinitidns and
Coverage sections of the rules implemenling Executive Order 12S49; 4$ CFR Pert 76. See the
attached dennliions.

6. The prospeciive primary participant agrees.by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should (he
.  proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shell not knowlr^gty enter into any lower tier covered

transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
dause (iUed 'Certificalion Regarding Debanmeni, Suspension. Ineligibiiity and Voluniary Exclusion .•
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* provided by OHHS. without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and In at) soiiciiaUons for lower dor covered irensectlons.

8. A participant in o covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospeciive participant in a
lower Her covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntartly excluded
from the covered (ransecUon, unless it knows (hat the certiftcalion is erroneous. A partidpani may
decide the method end frequency by which It deiarmines Ihe eltgibllily of its principals. Each
part'icipani may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In Iho foregoing shell be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

EiNM'F - CstlflcaUon Aagardlng Dflbaimtn], Smpcndon Vtndof InlUah
And OUiw ft«ipon«ibrEty Msnen
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intorrnation of o parUcipan! is not roquirad to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a pnidant
person In the ordinary course of business deaTtngs.

10. Cxcepi for transoctlons authorized under paragraph 6 of these tnstrucUons. If a participant In a
covered t/ansecUon knowingly enters irtto e lower tier covered iransocUon with a person who Is
eusperKfed. debarred. ineCgible. or volurdarDy excluded from perticipaiion In this transecUon. in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemrT>enl, OHHS rney.terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primery portldpanl cortines to ihe bost of its kriowtodgo and belief, that It end Its
prirKlpals:
11.1. are not presentiy debarred, susperxled. proposed for debarmeni. declared (neOglbio, or -

voluniarlly excluded from covered transectlons by eny Federel departmani or agency:
11.2. have not within a Ihrao^year period preceding this propose! (coniraci) been convicted of or had

a civD judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crfminel offenso In
connoclion with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or ̂ rforming a public (Federal..State or local)
transaction or a coruraci under a public transaction: violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes Of commission of emt>ezzloment. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, makir^g false statements, or roceMng stolen property;

11.3. ere no\ presently indicted for otherwise olmlneliy or civilly charged by a govammentai enliiy
(Federal, State or local) with commission of eny of ihe offenses enumereted in paragraph 0){t))
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appHcatlon/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or defautl.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the aiaiemonts in this
certificeUon. such prospective perticipeni shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partlclpanl. es

defined In 45 CFR Part 76. cerUrias to the best of its kno^edge end belief thet It end Its principals:
13.1. are nol presently detonred. suspended, proposed for deberrnent. declared Ineligible, or '

voluntarily excluded irorn parlicipaUon in this transaction by eny federal department or agency.
13.2. where tho prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to eny of the above, auch

prospective participant shall attach on explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospectlva lower tier participanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that II will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibiiity, end
Voluniary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* Mnihoul modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered (ransacDons.

Verxfor Nome:

Date - Nam ok:a
Title:-
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONOISCRIMINATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

•WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idcntiried in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Pr^isiorts agrees by signature of the Contrector's
representative es ideAtir«d in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the f9flowir>g
certification:

vendor wQl comply, end wlll require ony subgrantees or subconiractors to comply, with eny eppiicable
federoi nondiscriminatJon roquiromonis, whkh mayindudo:

• the Omnibus Crime Controiend Sefe Streets Act of 1966 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statule from dlKrlmineting. either in empfoymen) practicas or in
the delivery of servjcos or benefiis, on the boola of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain redpiertts to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevenilon Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
roforer>ce. the civil righls obligations of Ihe Sate Streets Act. Recipients of federal-furling under (his
statute are prohibiled from discriminating, either in employmenl praciices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on (he basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includos Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan raquiremerits;

■ the CM) Rtghls Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits rocipients of federal ftnanctai
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In ony program or eciMty);

- the RehabiStation Ac! of 1973 (29 U.S:C. Sedion 794). which prohibils recipients of Federat frr^anciai
assistance from dbcrimlnaiing on (he'basis of disability, in regard to employment and (he delivery of
services or benefiis, in eny program or ectivily.

• the Americans wilhDisabilities Actof 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131*34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
governmeni senrtces, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end transportelion;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1861,1683.1665-66). vrhich prr^ibits
diScrtmination on the basis of sex in federally assisted educaiioo progrems;

• the Age Oiscrimlnalion Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibils discriminelion on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal rinanciol ossistence. It does not include
employmenl drscdminatior>;

- 26 C.F.R. pi. 3t (U.S. Oepartmehl of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Granl Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrtminatioh: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies'
and Procedures); Exocullve Order No. 13279 (equei protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organUatlons); Executive Ordor'No. 13559. which provide fundamenlal principles and policy-making
.criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutsltons - Equal Trealmenl for Faith-B.ased
Organizations); end Whistiqbiower protedior\s 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorixelion
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) Ihe PiJol Program for
Enhancement of Contraci Employee Whistleblcwer Proleclions, which'proteds employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and conirads.

The certificate set out below is a msterial roprcsontatlon of fad upon which reliance >s placed vrhen ihe
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certificatidn shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lermir^elion of grants, or government wido suspension or
debarmenl.

EjtfftOC A
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a nndtng of
discrimirtalion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natlor^al origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, (ha rectpieni win forward a copy of the fincling to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the eppticabie contracting agency or division within the Oepartmeni of Heatih .and Human Services, end
to the Oepaitment of Heelih end Human Services Office of the On\budsmen.

The Vendor Idenlified in Sedion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as iderttified In Sections 1.11 end 1.1? of the Generet Provisions, to execute the loitowing
certificalion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposel (contract) (ho Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated ebove.

Vendor Name;

OatS . Nei^^e; Qn i O. uo O
Title;

Car

iMi/M P»ga 2 ot 2 Dale(
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CERTIf ICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMEfaAl TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Pen C • Envfronmentei Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires thel smokinp r>ot be permitted In eny portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted (or by an entity end used routinely or regjlarty for the provision of health, day care, educelion,
or library services to children under the age of 16. If (he services are funded by Federal programs either
direclly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guaranlee. The
lew does r>0l op^y to children's services provided in private residences, facHltiea fur>ded solely by
Medicare or Medlcald funds, end portions of focilitios used for inpotieht drug or alcohol trestmenl. Fellure
to comply with the provisions of the law may rosuti In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SiOOO per day end/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible enuiy.

The Vendor Idenuned In Section 1.3 of the General Provlstons agrees, by signoiure-of the Contracior's
representative asldendried In Section l.ll and l.l2ot the General Provisiorts. to execute the following
certification;

1. By-Signing and submitting ihis contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply wilh
all appiicabie provisions of ̂ blic Lew 103-227, f'drl C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

ExMbn H - CertUcsSon Rtgardtng VsnOor InlOs)!
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor ider^tifled tn Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreentent agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Acl, Public Law 104-191 and
wllh the Standards tor Privacy and Security of Individually tdentinable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 eppticable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement end 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health arvj Human Services.

(1 . Deflnltlcna.

a. "Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meanirig given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Oesionated Record Set' sheD have the seme meaning as the term 'deslgrwtcd record set'
In 45 CFR 3ection 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreQation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 4S CFR
Section 164.501.

(. 'Health Care operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Acl. TilleXIII. Subtitie 0. Part 1 6 2.of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually.Identifiable hfealth
information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall tnciude a person who qualifies as b personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Soctioni 64.501(0).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of IrKfivkJually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 end 164. promulgated under HiPAA by the United States
Department of Health end Human Services.

K. 'Protected Heallh information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

y20u Extatii V«i^lAlU«lt
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I. 'Reoulfftd bv Law* shall have (he sarhe meaning as (he term 'required by law' In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.'

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health end Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean (he Security Standards for (he Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CPR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments (hereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' rheans protected health Information that Is ̂ t
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadatile, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions > All terms not olherwise'defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and (he
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health tnfofmation.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or trarismit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of (he Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy end Secunty Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management end administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuani lo the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such Ihii^ party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach NoUricallon
Rules of any breaches of the conrideniiaiity of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
kr\ow1edge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to .
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, di^lose any PHI in response to a
requesi for disclosure on the basis lhat it Is required by law.-withoul first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notiHes the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Secunty Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrlclions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards;

(3) Obligations and Actlvltlea of Business Aacoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Informaiion not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heallh information and/or any security incident thai may have art impact on Ihe
protected heallh Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of (he above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including Ihe
types of identifiers and the likelihood of reHdentificalion;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health inlormalion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected heallh Information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk io the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate .shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The.Business Associate shall comply with ell sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ail of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to'the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by (he Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered.Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ell of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under (he Agreement, to agree in writing to-adhere Io the seme-
restrictions end conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (i). The'Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's iniended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to (his Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificetlon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract pro^sions (P'37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected heelih information.

r. Within five (S) business days of receipt of e written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make availebie dunng normal business hours at its offices ell
records, books, agreements, policies end procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cove.red Entity lo determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within (en (10) business days of receiving a wrinen request from Covered Entity,
Business Assoclete^sheti provide access to phi in e Designated Record Sat to the
Covered Entity, or as directed:by Covered Entity, to en individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for en
emendment of PHI or a record about en individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enak^e Covered Entity to fulftli its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to res^nd to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within (en (10) business days of receiving a wrinen request frorh Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shaD make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect (o PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, (he Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Cove;ed Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or beck-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or (he dispositiori of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
(he Agreerhent. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses end disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes (hat make (he return or destruction infeasibie. for so long as Busine^
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Associate maintains such PHI. It Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires (hat the
Business-Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblloatlone of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or tlmiiation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520,'to the extent that such change or limitation rna'y affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly rK>ilfy Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provlded to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under (his Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify pusiness Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of pHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in.accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to (he extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5)' Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breech by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as £)^lbit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Enilly shall report the
violation to (he Secretary.

(6) ftliscellaneous

a. Permitlons and Reoulatory Refsrer^cfls. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule; amended
from lime to lime. A reference in the Agreeiriehl. as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as.
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal end state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associaie acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Inlerpretallon. The parties agree that any ambiguity in (he Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privecy and Security Rule^.
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SBoreaatton. If any term or condition of (his Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(8) or circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall nol affect other terms or
conditions v4tich can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survivat. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destmclion of PHI, extensions of the prdlections of the Agreomont In section (3) I. the
defense ond indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions <P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Deportment oi Health and Humen Services

Th Name State

^fAu)ii^oriz

e.of'the Vendor

Signature ed Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

v-Sp s Qu (A Ooal^
btho^lzed Representative Narhi of Authorized RepresentativeName of Abtho^lzed Representative

Title ot.Authorized Representative

Date

rfin.<,urf.r
Tilla of Authorized Representative

Date
(q
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CERTIFICATION REGAROINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accouniablllty and Jronsparoncy Act (FF'ATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater ih8n.'S25:000 and awarded on or after October l. 2010. to report on
data related to executive corr^nsalion and associated nrst-tier sut^grants of S25.000 or more. If the
initial ewerd is t>elow S25,000 but aubsequeiit grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
S2$.000. the eward is-subjecl to the FFATA reporting requirements, es of the'daie of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subowerd and Executive Compensation InformaUon), the
Oepartmeni of Health end Human 'Services (OHHS) must report the following information for eny
Bubaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Namo of entity
2. Amount of eward

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for conlracis / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source.
6. Award lille descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identiner of (he entity (DUNS d)
'10. Total compensetton and names of (he top Hve executives If:

10.1. More (hen 60% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are.greater than $2SM annually and '

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients nnusi submit FFATA required date by (he erxf of (he month, plus 30 days, in which
(he award or award emendment Is made.-
The Vendor idcnlined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisions ol
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109*282 and Public Law 110*252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 ol the General Prtxnsions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor egrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Hurnan Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountebiiity end Transparency Act.'

Vendor Name;

TrectSiJ rc r
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FORfytA

As the Vendor IdentlAed In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I cartify that the responses to the-
below Qsted questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your enlity Is: J_i 7DfiZit-2-
2. In your business or orgeniiation's preceding complated fiscal yeer. did your business or organliation

receive (1) 60 pcrcenl or more of your onrujal gross revertue in U.S. federal contrects. suboonlracts.
loons, gronts, sub^rants. and/or coopcreiive ogroemor^is; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(e) or lS(d} of the Securilios
Exchange Act of -1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(B). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986? •

NO YES

If the answer to'03 above is YES, slop here

If (he answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensaled officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Nemo:

Name:

Narne:

Name:

Name:

Amouru;,

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:.

cuow<yiioM>
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected end heve the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauihorlzed disclosure,
unauthorized Acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situetione where persons other (hen authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Brea.ch* shall have the same meanir^ as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same rneanlng .'Computer Security
Iricldent' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800*61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Insiitute of Starboards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. "

3. 'Confidential Information*, or 'Confrdential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits artd persona! information including without'limltaiidn, Substance -
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Informatior) also includes any and ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted-
services * of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or .regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Persorbal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g.,. contrector, contractor's employee,
•business associate, subcontraclor. other downstream 'user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accouniabrlity Act of 1998 and the
regulations promutgat^ thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to systern hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the ovmar's knowtedge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or-electronic
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DHHS Infoimatlon Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modirication or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any r\etwork or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information .
Technology or delegate as o protected r^etwork (deslgf>ed. tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) • will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS date.

6. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Informaiion as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blomelric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specinc individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Deparlmenl of Health and Human Ser^ces.

10. 'Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part -164. Subparl C. and .amandments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization (hat Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITtES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conlidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Conndential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contrect. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees end agents, must not
use. disclose, meintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violetion
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must .not disclose any Conrtdential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in.response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or ot^ectIcthedisclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHMS has agreed to be bound by additional
restnclions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safaguards of PHI
purauant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions end.must abide by eny additiorial security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User rnust only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contracl.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contracl may hot be for
any oiher purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. fVIETHOOS OF SECURE TRANSfMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting- DHHS data containing
Confidential Data tetween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Slorage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable slorage devices, such as. a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHMS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User, may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
. hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud. Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiTied ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops -and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password'protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communicatjon. if Er>d User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a vinual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile dovice(s) or laptop from which information will be •
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH Fiie Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Informalion. SFTP folders and sub-folde'rs used for transmitting Confidential Data win
be coded for 24-hour aulo-delelion cycle (I.e. Conndential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is trensmittino Conrtdenllal Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Coniraci.' After such time, the Contractor wiu have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form il may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees il will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department conridenilal Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for-its End
Users to support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
.hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anll-matware utilities. The environment, as e
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whoie, must have aggressive intrusion>detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposllion

1. If the Contractor wilt maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sut>>conlrdc1or systems), the Contractor will mamtain a docurnen^d process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and vrili
obtain written certtfication for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any-subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
re^very operations. When no longer in use. eleclronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or' otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-86. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Oepadrhenl of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destnjctlon, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed end validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be Jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy a!) hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of. this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidenliat Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor wit) maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecyde. vmere applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of Ihe
iTiedia used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

Paqb S of B ^ ' Otle.
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate euthenticalion end access controls to
coritractor systems that collect; transmit, or store Department confidentlal information
wt>ere applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of r^H systems and/or
Depar1rT>ent conftdentiat information forcoritractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will .be sut>-contracting any core functions of 'the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectetlons. and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at e minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notiflcalion requlrernents.

7. The Contractof will work with the Department to sign and comply with all apjalicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access end authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining' and maintaining access to any Department syst6m(8). Agreements will be

.  completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior lo
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the .Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the OepartrDent and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey, is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the Iif6 of the Contractor engagement. The^ survey will be completed
annually, or an aKernate lime frame a! the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey .be completed when the
scope of.the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hempshl/e
or Department data offshore or outside Ihe boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimiae any damage or loss resulting -from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Conlrector at) costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs ar^
costs associated with website end telephone call center services necessary due to
the tTreach. ^

(  .

12. Contractor must, comply with eil applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy end security of Confidentiai information, and must In pli other respects
maintein the privacy and security of Pi end PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of recuirements.applicabie to federal agencies, including,
but not.limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § S52o). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45" C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, end
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data arid to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level end
scope of security that Is not less than the level end scope of security reguirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.9Dv/doitArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

r

14. Contrector agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor win notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the

^ State's Security Officer of any security breach Immedialeiy. at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer

• security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes, any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section (V A. above,
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadverlent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

0. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/hnedia containing PHI. PI. or
PFI ere encrypted and passvtvrd-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit discJosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and (ndividuaily
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in en area lhat Is
physically end technoiogically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours, ss well os' non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).-

9. only.authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data,.Including any
. derivative files cbntalrilng personally identlfiebie. information, .and in ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained.- used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password)' must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This'applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for.oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential. Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract. '

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer jsnd Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
-accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Noiiflcaiion
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.30O • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with aU applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor svill:

1. Identify incidents:

2. Determine if personally ideniifiaMe information is involved in Incidents;

3. Fteport suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4.^ Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk' level of incidents

and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach noiificailon is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Sreach notrficelion methods, timing, source, and- contents from among different
options, and t>ear costs associated «vith the Breach notice as well as any mitlgatlort
measures..

..Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed end reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

• OHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInformationSecurltyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019, (Item #19), as amended on February 17, 2021, (Item #20) and as amended on
October 13,'2021, (Item #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General-Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 20'23

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$683,873

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding subsection 6.14 to read:

6.14. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded Contractors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve Government Performance and
Results Act (GPRA) data collection.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.4. to read:

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
Subsection 5.1., Paragraph 5.1.3., Subparagraph 5.1.3.1., Part 5.1.3.1.7. to read:

5.1.3.1.7. RESERVED

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685, and as awarded on

09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326, as
awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Service^os
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788,

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
10/12/2022
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H79TI083326. and as awarded on September 23, 2022. by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN H79TI085759.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit 8-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-9 Amendment #3 SOR III Budget.

Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by9. Add Exhibit B-8 Amendment #3, SOR
reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-9 Amendment #3, SOR
reference herein.

Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A03

A-S-1.3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to September 29, 2022, upon
Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

10/14/2022

Date

—DocuSlsnvd by:

— cr%Qfv«;pn.irA'^A'>

Name: s. fox

Title; oi rector

10/12/2022

Date

Granite Pathways

—OocuSigntd by: *

-4UdF2A&44DIHC9~

Name' 'Kenneth srezenoff

Title: General Counsel

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 •A03
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSigntd by:

10/17/2022
JiiTUBUUiABtL.

Date Name: """y"
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was.approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways A-S-1.2
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-8, Amendment #3, SOR 111 Budget RFP-2019-BDAS-12.WORF4)1-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comf^ete one budget form for each budget period.

Granite Pathways, Concord/NH
Contractor Name:

Budget Request for:

Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for
Individuals with OUD ,

Budget Period - (Septemt>er 30, 2022 - June 30,2023}

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 21.00%

Line Item
Program Cost ■

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -

Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

/

1. Salary & Waqes

$75,350 $10,800 $86,150

2. Fringe Benefits $25,619 $0 $25,619

3. Consultants $6,000 SO $6,000

4. Equipment $900 $0 $900

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $800 $0 $800

S.fb) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0

S.fc) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.{d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0 $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $415 $0 $415

6. Travel - $1,450 $0 $1,450

7. Software $0 $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Markelinq/CommunicaUons SO $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $500 $0 $500

8. (c) Other - Other (please specify)

Other (please specify) $0 •  $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 SO $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0

Other (please speo7V) $0 $0 $0

9. Subcontracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $111,034 $10,800 $121,834

Total Indirect Costs $28,466 $0 $28,466

TOTAL $139,500 $10,800 $150,300

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Date
10/12/2022
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B-9, Amendment #3, SOR III Budget RFP-2019-BDAS-12.WORKP-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Completo one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name:

Granite Pathways, Concord^H

Workforce Readiness & Vocationai Training Programs for

■ Budget Request for: Individuals with PUD
Budget Period py24 • (July 1, 2023 • September 29, 2023)

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 21.00%

Line Item
Program Cost •

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost •
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

$24,700

1. Salary & Wages

$3,600 $28,300

2. Fringe Benefits $8,398 SO S8.398

3. Consultants $1.500 $0 $1.500

4. Equipment $247 SO $247

5.(a) Supplies - Educational SO SO $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab. $0 SO SO

5.(c) Supplies - Phannacv SO SO $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical SO SO SO

5.(6) Supplies Office $200 SO S200

6. Travel S1.000 $0 $1.000

7. Software $0 SO $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0 SO $0

8. (b) Other • Education and Training S520 SO S520

8. (c) Other • Other (please specify)

Other (please specify) SO SO SO

other (please specify) $0 SO $0

Other (please specify) SO SO $0

Other (please specify) $0 SO SO

9. Subcontracts SO SO SO

Total Direct Costs S36.585 S3,600 $40,185

Total Indirect Costs $9,935 SO $9,935

TOTAL $46,500 $3,600 $50,100

Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2 Date
10/12/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar>' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New l lampshire on May 08, 2009. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secrctar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 613581

Certificate Number: 0005778000

Bb

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar)'"of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, William Rider ^ hereby certify
that:

(Name of the'elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

llama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Granite Pathways ^
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 10/4 , 2022 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED; That Kenneth Brezenoff (may list more
than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Granite Pathwavs ; to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents; agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from' the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

10/10/2022
Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: William T. Rider
Title: Interim Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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WtlOllVTT* FE0CAREH1

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMA)0/YYYY)

9/30/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Piains, NY 10604

914 459-6200

Faith Keegan

r«o. E«): 914 459-6200 ["«. noI: 610 537-4220
Ai^^ESS: Faith.Kee9an@usi.e0m

IN$URER($) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Ins Co. 22276

tNSUREO

Granite Pathways, Inc.

303 Belmont Street

Manchester, NH 03103

INSURER 6 Technology Insurance Company, Inc. 42376

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR
SUBR

WVP POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(mm/do/yyyy)
POLICY EXP

fMMfDO/YYYY) UMns

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

E 1 X|OCCUR
47SPK25564207 [)9/30/2022 09/30/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any ona parson) $25,000

PERSONAL a ADV IfUURY $1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMfT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POLICY 1 |jE^ 1 IlOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

s

A

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 47SMA14808008

MA only

47RWS14808208

ail other states

39/30/2022

09/30/2022

09/30/2023

09/30/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa acddanll s1,000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEOULEO

TOS
)N.OWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) $

X
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Par accident) $

X X
Nl
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par aeckfantl $

$

A X UMBRELU LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

47SUM14808308 09/30/2022 09/30/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $25,000,000

AGGREGATE $25,000,000

DEO X RETENTIONSlOOOO s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? ^
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yas. dascdt>a undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A

TWC4053852 12/08/2021 12/08/2022 V PER OTH-
A" RTATHTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A

A

Professional Liab-'

Sexual Abus/Moles

47SPK25564207

47SPK25564207

09/30/2022

09/30/2022

09/30/2023

09/30/2023

$1M Per occ / $3M Agg

$1M Per occ / $3M Agg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATtONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Schadule, may b« attachod If mora tpaca It raqulrad)

State of NH, DHHS additional Insured

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELIJVTION

State Of NH, DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

1

ACORD 25(2016/03) 1 of 1
#S37617372/M37548757

® 1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
BDKZP
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a mambar of THE FEOCAP GROUP

Granite Pathways Mission

Using o holistic approach, Granite Pathways creates opportunities for individuals

and families with barriers, to achieve health and socioeconomic well-being.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Supplementary Information Together
with Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants

The FEDCAP Group

September 30, 2021 and 2020
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GrantThornton

eilANT TMOMNTON LLP

757 Third Avenue, Olh Floor

NewYofK NY 10017

D *^1 2125990100

P  *12123704520

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of

The FEDCAP Group:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The
FEDCAP Group (collectively, "FEDCAP*) which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

[Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

• of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
FEOCAP's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GT.COM GraniThomion LLP is (ho U.S. msmber firni of Grant Thornton Intemstionsl Ltd(GTlL). GTIL and oachot its member firms
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership.
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GrantThornton

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of The FEDCAP Group as of
September 30. 2021 and 2020, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Supplementary information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opiriion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New York, New York

February 2, 2022
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of September 30,

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equrvalents , S 42.982,639 $ 24,926,770
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately $7,794,000 in 2021 and $4,394,000 in 2020) 57,363,861 56,865,665

Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectible contributions of approximately $250,000 in 2021 and 2020) 1,968,683 2,131,974

Inventories, net 464,262 . 407,002
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,744,090 8,321,637

Total current assets 113,523,535 92,653,048

Investments 11,004,556 9,317,759
Goodwill, net 758,574 842,860
Property, plant and equipment, net 81,797,004 84,033,493
Beneftcial interest in trusts 5,478,830 4,713,515
Other assets 2,489,899 478,067

Total assets $ 215,052,398 $ 192.038,742

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities • S 36,996,755 $ 30,200,021
Deferred revenues 11,832,483 6,066,207
Advances from government agency 749,426 3,620,421
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 597,696 2,159,924
Current portion of Paycheck Protection Program notes payable 7,121,362
Current portion of notes payable 1,313,631 1,501,527

Total current liabilities 58,611,353 43,548,100

Capital lease obligations 35,145,994 34.181,372
Notes payable 25,655,630 30,515,955
Revolving loans 28,173,061 26,653,273
Paycheck Protection Program notes payable 3,163,579 12,481,054
Other liabilities 20,758,201 6,586,501

Total liabilities 171,507,818 153,966,255

Commitments and contingencies

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 33,166,395 29,925,809

Without donor restrictions - non-controlling interest 973,877 (440,118)
With donor restrictions 9,404,308 8,586,796

Totai net assets 43,544,580 38,072,487

Total liabilities and net assets 5^_215j052j398_ ^^^^92^038^7^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVrTIES

For the years ended September 30,

2021 2020

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Revenues

Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs
Contribution and grant revenues
Inherent contribution

Gain on Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Realized and unrealized gains on investments
Interest income

Miscellaneous revenue

Net assets released from restrictions

$  117.740,604

198,546,052

4,485,739

5,379,479

2,006,171

528,690

972,885

113,913

S

603,890

327,535

(113,913)

$  117,740,604
198,546,052

5,089,629

5,379,479

2,333,706
528,690

972,885

$  112,977,906

153,984,201

5,619,460

263

391,942
205,383

130,321

113,913

$

201,169

(113,913)

$  112,977,906

153.984,201

5,619,460
263

593,111

205,383

130,321

Total revenues 329,773,533 817,512 330,591,045 273,423,389 87,256 273,510,645

Expenses
Program services
Contract services and products
Rehabilitation and vocational programs

99,587,090

162,442,512
-

99,587,090

162,442,512

97,048,935

136,046,180

- 97,048,935

136,046.180

262,029,602
-

262,029,602 233,095,115 - 233,095,115

Supporting services
Management and general
Development

60,770,707

2,318,643
-

60,770,707

2,318,643

36,383,728

3,598,260

•
36,383,728

3,598,260

63,089,350 ■ 63,089,350 39,981,988 - 39,981,988

Total expenses 325,118,952 . 325,118,952 273,077,103 . 273,077,103

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 4,654,581 817,512 5,472,093 346,286 87,256 433,542

Net assets at beginning of year 29,485,691 8,586,796 38,072,487 29,139,405 8,499,540 37,638,945

Net assets at end of year $  34.140.272 $  9.404.308 S  43.544.580 S  29.485.691 _$ 8.586.796 $  38.072.487

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ended September 30, 2021

Supporting Services"

Salaries and related expenses

Professional fees

Professional development and evaluation

Materials and supplies

Commissions

Telephone

Postage and shipping
insurance

Oc^pancy costs .

Equipment rental and maintenance
Equipment purchases

Client transportation and travel

Subscription and printing

Technology

Interest expense

Bank charges and processing fees

Bad debt provision

Subcontractor expense

Stipends

Security guard expense

Other

Total expenses before depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

S  77,223.909 $  82,136,922 S  159,360,831 $  15,795.496 $  1,308,284 $  17,103,780 $  176,464,611

203,519 35,240,097 35,443,616 6,407,491 348,363 6,755,854 42,199,470

. 692,113 692,113 577,706 4,683 582,389 1,274,502

2,567,509 2.822,303 5,389,812 253,172 16,047 269,219 5,659,031

2,770,045 2,710 2,772,755 4.164 -
4,164 2,778.919

166,776 1,046,799 1,213,575 1,524,244 5,754 1,529,998 2.743.573

91,547 98,929 190,476 83,354 13,222 96,576 287,052

1,282,116 1,121,271 2,403,387 473,518 21.288 494,804 2,898,191

2,037,079 12,115,673 14,152,752 9.800,230 181,507 9,981,737 24,134,489

852,519 389,716 1,242,235 306,305 36,972 343,277 1,585,512

244,569 63,309 307,878 134,246 -
134,246 442,124

267,616 526,329 793,945 190,506 -
190,506 984,451

22,576 255,683 278,259 662,894 46,180 709,074 987,333

279,043 1,132,971 1,412,014 4,002,260 21.000 4,023,260 5,435,274

. 31,336 31,336 3,759,121 -
3,759,121 3,790,457

. 52,667 52,667 1,485,620 15,968 1,501,588 1,554,255

2,902,675 2,902,875 5,815,450 -
5,815,450 . 8,718,125

11,262,008 9,955:313 21,217,321 1,090,203 -  2,189 1,092,392 22,309,713

47,729 3,898,979 3,946,708 112,074 1,590 113,664 4,060,372

8,358 157,238 165,596 28,438 347 28,785 194,381

, 6,916.864 6,916,864 3,089,723 ' 286,284 3,376,007 10,292,871

99,326,918 161,559,897 260,886,815 55,596,215 2,309,676 57,905,891 318,792,706

260,172 882,615 1,142,787 5,174,492 8.967 5,183,459 6,326,246

S  99,587.090 S  162.442.512 $  262.029.602 $  60,770,707 $  2.318.643 S  63,089.350 S  325.118.952

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ended SeptemtMr 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Servlcea

Contract Rehabilitation

Services and and Vocational Management Total

Products Programs Total and General Development Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses $  74.358.692 $  62,121.469 S  156.480,161 S  13.141,708 $  1.478.745 $ 14.620,453 S  171.100,614
Professional fees 152.185 20,662.291 20.814,476 2.260.231 794.585 3.054.816 23.869.292
Professional development and evaluation 11.472 360.983 372.455 ■  227.206 5.382 232.588 605.043
Materials and supplies 3.445.688 2,007.974 • 5.453.662 146.699 15.591 162.290 5.615.952
Commissions 2,514.416 12.459 2.526.875 - . . 2.526.875
Telephone 86.175 331.392 417.567 1.002.765 5.194 1.007.959 1.425.526
Postage and shipping 171.723 78.718 250.441 92.182 131.337 223.519 473.960
Insurance 1.034.048 1.272.779 2.306.827 846.226 22.442 • 868.668 3.175.495
Occupancy costs 2.250.654 •  10,961.025 13.211,679 2.836.553 178.864 3;015.437 16.227.116
Equipment rental and maintenance 967.444 608,978 1.576.422 254.953 35.717 290.670 1,867.092
Equipment purchases 320,484 119,100 439.584 41.580 1.036 42.616 482.200
Client transportation and travel 242.530 1.490.685 1.733.215 415.420 88.195 503.615 2,236.830
Sut>scription and printing 49,070 296.847 345.917 503.126 40.841 543.967 889,884

Technology 329.854 1,683.260 2.013.114 2.264.647 31.918 2.296.565 4,309,679
Interest expense - 18.609 18.609 4.219.963 4.219.963 -  4.238,572
Bank charges and processir>g fees 79.239 43,677 122.916 741.665 17.144 758.809 881,725
Bad debt expense - . 193 193 1.204.034 . 1.204.034 1,204,227
Subcontractor expense 10,632.908 7,420,600 18.053,508 2.222.177 13.421 2,235.598 20,289.106
Stipends 26,605 3,805,756 3.832.361 59.704 11.362 71.066 3,903,427
Security guard expense 1,200 221,556 222.756. 27.602 224 27.826 250,582
Other 67,224 1,586,078 1.653.302 248.172 717,277 965,449 2,618,751

Total expenses before depredation and amortization 96,741.611 135.104,429 231.846.040 32,756.613 3.589,295 36.345.908 268.191,948

Depreciation and amortization 307,324 941.751 1.249.075 3,627,115 8,965 3.636,080 4.885.155

Total expenses S  97.048.935 S  136046.180 $ 233,095.115 $  36.383.728 S  3.598.260 $ 39.981.988 $ 273.077.103

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended September 30,

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconciie change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of goodwill
Bad debt provision

Reaiized and unrealized gains on investments
Paycheck Protection Plan loan forgiveness

Changes in assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable ^
Contribution receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Beneficial interest in remainder trust

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .
Deferred revenue

Other iiabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Cash paid in acquisition
Cash received in acquisition
Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

(Decrease) increase in advances from government agencies
Change in revoiving loans
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Plan notes payable
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Repayment of capital lease obligations

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow Information:
Cash interest paid during the year

$  5.472,093 $  433,542

6,241,960 4,885,155

84.286 118,911

8,718,125 1,204,227
(2,333,706) (593,111)

(5,379,479) -

(9,216,321) (3,517,454)
163,291 2,320,367

(57,260) (295,309)
(3,900,483) 334,198

(765,315) (201,170)
6,796,735 (9,401,336)
5,766,276 4,293,777

14,171.700 2,311,645

25,761,902' 1,893,442

192,628 505,011

(254,774) (525,747)
- (200,000)

145,163 -

(3,975,471) (2.179.498)

(3,892,454) (2,400,234)

(2,870,995) 3,187,024

-  1,519,789 -

3,183,453 12,481,054
- 531,218

(5,048,220) -

(597,606) (587,196)

(3,813,579) 15,612,100

18,055,869 15,105,308

24,926,770 9,821,462

$  42.982.639 $  24.926.770

$  2,738,964 $  2.722.157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

9
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The FEDCAP Group, Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1.2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent is exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). The Parent is the sole member of the
following affiliates: Fedcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS"), Wildcat Services
Corporation ("Wildcat"), ReServe Elder Services, Inc. ("ReServe"), Community Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"),
Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), 1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. ("1184" or "Red Mango"), Granite
Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc ("ESRI"), Seacoast Pathways, Inc. ("Seacoast"),
Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"), Easter Seals
North Texas ("ESNT"), Fedcap Apex Acquisition, LLC, Civic Hall Labs, Inc , New York Tech Alliance
(NYTA), Fedcap Canada, Fedcap UK, Kennedy Scott. Limited. Fedcap Employment Limited, Fedcap
Employment Scotland Limited, and Start Scotland. The Parent and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as "FEDCAP."

FRS Is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of New York State. FRS is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the IRC.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employment. FRS's goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions. The primary customers in these divisions are federal, and New York State and City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks

■ to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat is a nonprofit entity that is located in New York City and provides employment training, jobs
placement and "supportive employment' opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

ReServe is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age 55+ with
organizations that need their expertise. Reserve provides direct services, administrative support," and
capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, and public agencies.- .

CWS is a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, Massachusetts, whose mission is to help people who
have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training,
placement, and support services.

ESNY Is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is tp provide programs and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

ESNY is the sole member of These Our Treasures, Inc. CTOTS"), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to
educate young children with developmental disabilities in an atmosphere that embraces and
accommodates individual differences arid helps children to achieve in the context of the larger classroom
and school setting.

GP is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental
illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful
relationships.

ESRI is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities or
special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their communities.

Seacoast is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with mental illness on their paths to
recovery through the work-ordered day.

SGST is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistically connect people to the resources
they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources.

MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area.

Fed Inc. was established as a private, nonprofit organizations under the laws of the State of Delaware. Fed,
Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face barriers to economic
well-being.

ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the Central
Texas region.

ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the North Texas
region.

Fedcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Fedcap UK was founded to allow for the
advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment and opportunity to
participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled individuals^through various
workforce and economic development, educational and occupational health initiatives.

Fedcap UK acquired Kennedy Scott, Limited ("KS"), a United Kingdom company through a stock purchase.
KS provides high quality job support, placement, retention and related services to people in the United
Kingdom.

Fedcap Employment Limited ("FED") was established under the laws of the United Kingdom. FED delivers
employability solutions across the United Kingdom to build-communities through a blend of local frontline
professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole corporate member of
FED.

Fedcap Employment Scotland Limited ("FES") was established under the laws of Scotland in the United
Kingdom. FES delivers employability solutions across Scotland to build communities through a blend of
local frontline professional teams and like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole corporate
member of FES.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

■ FES is the majority shareholder of Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). SS is a value-driven organization that
strives to put its customers first, understanding their needs and closely engaging with them on a personal
level to help them on their journey to employment and training.

On December 17, 2019, FRS formed Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC, which executed an asset purchase
agreement effective September 18, 2020 for the assets and liabilities of Breton International, Inc. (a/k/a
Apex Technical School). Apex Technical School ("APEX") is an adult vocational technical school and offers
seven certificate courses designed to focus on basic trade skills and labor skills for its students.

On January 10, 2020,-Fedcap Canada was established as a not-for-profit organization according to the
Canada Not-for profit Corporations Act. Fedcap Canada was founded to advance the economic and social
well-being of the impoverished and disadvantaged by providing educational services, vocational
rehabilitation, job training and job placement services. The Parent is the sole corporate member of Fedcap
Canada.

On May 1, 2021, The Fedcap Group acquired Civic Hall Labs, Inc., a learning and collaboration platform
focused on advanced technology and problem-solving for the public good.

On September 23, 2021, Civic Hall Labs, Inc.. acquired New York Tech Alliance ("NYTA"), an organization
that supports the technology community and ecosystems in our. hometown, with the goal of creating the
most diverse, equitable and accessible tech ecosystems in the world.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are, therefore, available for the general
operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for specific purposes
by FEDCAP's Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or contractual agreements with
outside parties.

s

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated subsidiary
owned by non-controlling investors and are reflected on the consolidated statements of financial position
as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to"donor-imposed restrictions whose use is restricted by time and/or
purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require FEDCAP
to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time. When donor restrictions
expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction ends, such net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the consolidated statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.
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The FEOCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal year In
which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor restrictions
on the consolidated statements of activities.

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the corpus of gifts, which must be maintained in perpetuity,
but allow for the expenditure of net investment income and gains earned on the corpus for either specified
or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interest in Start Scotland Limited
during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 is summarized below:

Total Without

Donor

Restrictions

Without Donor.

Restrictions

Non-controlling
Interest

$ 29,139,405 $ 29,006,372 $  133,033

346,286 919,437 (573,151)

29,485,691 29,925,809 (440,118)

4,654,581 3,240,586 1,413,995

$ 34,140,272 $  33,166,395 $  973,877

Balance, September 30, 2019

Change in net assets from operations

Balance, September 30, 2020

Change in net assets from operations

Balance, September 30, 2021

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers ("ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when control of the promised goods or services
are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The standard outlines a five-step mode)
whereby revenue is recognized as performance obligations within a contract are satisfied.

FEDCAP has identified contract services and products revenues and rehabilitation and vocational program
revenues as revenue categories subject to ASC 606. FEDCAP recognizes revenues from contracts with
customers, as goods or services are transferred or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

Payments received in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position ($10,506,683 and
$4,951,251, as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively). The changes in deferred revenue were
caused by normal timing differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and customer
payments.

FEDCAP's contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly,
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various revenue streams is at the point in time coinciding with
the completion of the corresponding performance obligations to customers.

Contract Services and Products

FEDCAP's contract services and products revenue includes HomeCare services, facility services, and other
cost recovery contracts. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with
fixed rates as the performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term.
For performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have
been incurred, milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the^
respective contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates
revenue from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs

FEDCAP's rehabilitation and vocational program revenue includes medical services, tuition and job training.
FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term, For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the performance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates'revenue
from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

As of September 30, 2021, FEDCAP has provided for a contract loss liability in the amount of $2,069,284
which represents the excess of costs to complete the remaining performance obligations of the contract
over the consideration to be received for the remainder of the contract. The liability is reflected within other
liabilities on the accompanying 2021 consolidated statement of financial position and the corresponding
expense is reflected within other expenses on the accompanying 2021 consolidated statement of functional
expenses.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and

contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met in the same fiscal year
are recorded as contribution revenues without donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net assets released from restrictions" in the consolidated

statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of meeting the associated
contributions are recorded as deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position ($1,325,800 and $1,114,956, as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively). There were no
outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30, 2021 or 2020.

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with Accounting
Standards Update ("ASU") 2018-08, Not-For-Pront Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Accordingly, FEDCAP evaluates
whether a transfer of assets is (1) an exchange transaction in which a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for the resources transferred or (2) a contribution.' If the transfer of assets is
determined to be an exchange transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606. If the transfer of
assets is determined to be a contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is conditional based
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

upon whether the agreement includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be overcome before FEDCAP
is entitled to the assets transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of assets transferred or a right of
release of a promisor's obligation to transfer assets.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss history, the donor's current ability to pay Its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer
than the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they
become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income
in the period received. All receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from three to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized: normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the programs
and supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.87% to 3.9% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $2,776,919 and $2,526,875 for the years ended
September 30. 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAR") requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates and assumptions relate
to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property, plant, and equipment,
and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources., Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities includes investments

for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair
valued using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These
securities are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs
into the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management
judgment or estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what constitutes "observable"
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts, FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocable right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either in perpetuity or for the life of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in'trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust asset's, less the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations In the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities.
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At September 30, 2021 and 2020, FEDCAP's beneficial interest in trusts are reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and are classified as Level 3 within the fair
value hierarchy.

2021 2020

Balance, beginning of year $ 4,713,515 $ 4,512,345

Contributions/additions

Distributions (132,237) (53,160)

Appreciation ■ 897,552 254,330

Balance, end of year $ 5,478,830 $ 4,713,515

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset.

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset Is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded In an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including Issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-nof to be sustained If the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.

FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income Is otherwise excluded by the IRC.
These organizations have processes presently in place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt
status, to Identify and report unrelated income, to determine their filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions
for which they have nexus, and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions.
FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

While, FEDCAP does not pay income tax within the United States, it does accrue Value-Added-Tax (VAT)
for liabilities its United Kingdom subsidiaries incur on goods and services purchased overseas. The amount
of VAT liability accrued within the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ending
September 30, 2021, is $5,951,677 and is reported in other liabilities on the accompanying 2021
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Goodwill

Goodwill was established through the acquisition of APEX in 2020 and KS in 2019. The value reported on
the consolidated statements of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. No impairment charges were recorded during
fiscal 2021 or 2020.

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30. 2021 and 2020, contributions and grants receivable consisted of receivables amounting
to $2,218,683 and $2,381,974, respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $250,000 for each
year. Contributions and grants receivable as of September 30,2021 and 2020 are expected to be collected
within one year.

Approximately 27% and 35% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) is due from one donor at
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 4; INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Money market funds $ 600,570 $ 320,331

Mutual funds 10,403,986 8,997,428
\

$  11,004,556 $ 9,317,759

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund investments do not rneet the definition of a security under U.S. GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.

NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES. NET

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Inventories

Raw materials $ 390,158 $ 308,727

Work-in-process and finished goods 164,104 188,275

Reserve (90,000) (90,000)

$  464,262 $ 407,002
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NOTE 6 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Land $  1,617,809 $  1,617,809

Building improvements 4,496,457 4,325,368
Buildings 40,172,758 40,342,758

Capital lease - building 35,918,547 35,918,547

Furniture, fixtures and computer systems 23,142,700 20,366,303

Leasehold improvements 9,945,974 10,284,087

115,294,245 112,854,872

Less: accumulated depreciation (33,497,241) (28,821,379)

$  81,797,004 $ ■ 84,033,493

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $6,241,960
and $4,885,155, respectively.

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement in a building located at 205 East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the ground floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires in fiscal 2043. The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%. FRS accounted for this agreement as a capital
lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547 representing the present value of the total future
minimum lease payments due at the inception of the agreement, is included within property, plant and
equipment, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at September 30, 2021
and 2020. Depreciation expense, of $1,238,571 was recorded in fiscal years 2021 and 2020. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease, inclusive of accrued interest expense, as of September 30,
2021 and 2020, is $35,480,647 and $35,892,124, respectively.

In 2015 and 2016, ESCT obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance equipment in the amount
of $109,418, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2021, the asset was fully
depreciated and the lease liability was paid off in full. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of
September 30, 2020, was $5,250. The interest rate varied from 0% - 0.99%.

During fiscal 2018, ESNY'obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $128.298, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30,2021, and 2020, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $112,551 and $86,892, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $16,383 and $42,042, respectively. The maturity dates are
through June 30, 2022 and the interest rates are fixed at 6.7% and 8.00%.

During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$370,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, the accumulated
depreciation balance was $313,258 and $272,309, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the
lease as of September 30,2021 and 2021 was $23,893 and $97,233, respectively. The Interest rate varies
from 3.31% to 5.21%.
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' During fiscal 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$82,264 principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, accumulated
depreciation associated with these lease agreements was $66,274 and $48,821, respectively. The
outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $16,547 and $34,001,
respectively. The maturity dates are through November 30, 2022 and the interest rate varies from 7.10%
to 7.45%.

On September 14, 2018, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance office furniture in
the amount of $463,495; principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, the
accumulated depreciation balance was $198,641 and $132,427, respectively. The outstanding'principal
balance on the lease as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $185,487 and $270,646, respectively. The
maturity dates are through June 2023 and the interest rate is 6.58%.

During fiscal 2021, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount of
$30,245, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2021, the accumulated depreciation
balance was $6,049. The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2021 was
$20,733. The maturity date goes through September 2024 and the interest rate is 3.80%.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2021:

Year Ending September 30, . Amount

2022 $ 2,095,782
2023 ' 2,001,242
2024 1,917,541
2025 2,192,944
2026 2,249,316
Thereafter 46,325,101

56,781,926
Total minimum lease payments

Less; amount representing interest (21,038,236)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 35,743,690

NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Israel Discount Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York ("IDS") to finance
working capital needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,000,000. The line is
collateralized by FEDCAP's accounts receivable and matured on October 17, 2020. The interest rate for
the revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. As of September 30, 2021, the loan was paid off and
refinanced with Investors Bank, which is more fully described below. As of September 30, 2020, FRS had
borrowings on the line of credit of $23,653,273 at an interest rate of 3.94%.

20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A.

ESNY has an agreement with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A for a $3,000,000 revolving line of credit with FRS as
the co-borrower, which matured in May 2019. As of September 30, 2021, the line of credit was paid off and
refinanced with Investors Bank, which is more fully described below. As of September 30, 2020, ESNY
had borrowings on this line of credit of $3,000,000, at an interest rate of 3.06%.

Investors Bank

On October 27, 2020, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank to refinance certain of its
previous debt arrangements as well as to provide for additional liquidity for operations. In connection with
the refinancing, FEDCAP entered into (1) a revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of
$42,500,000, with a maturity date of October 27, 2022 and interest payable quarterly at a rate of prime plus
0.75% but no less than 4.00%; and (2) two term loans in the amounts of $6,600,000 and $6,000,000,
respectively, both with a maturity date of November 1,2030 and monthly payments of principal and interest
at a rate of 4.00% (as detailed within Note 9). The revolving line of credit agreement requires that FEDCAP
maintain minimum unrestricted liquid assets of $10,000,000. The proceeds from the revolving line of credit
and term loans were used to repay the previous revolving credit lines with Israel Discount Bank of New
York ("IDB") held by FRS and RBS Citizens Bank, N.A held by ESNY. Additionally, the proceeds were used
to repay previous note and bond payables, specifically FRS Series 2017A and 2017B Bonds, ESNY Series
2010 Bonds, and ESNY Mortgage (as detailed within Note 9). As of September 30, 2021, FEDCAP had
borrowings on this line of credit of $28,173,061 at an interest rate of 4.00%.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx. New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 5.0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, 2024. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding principal balance was
$173,791 and $223,137, respectively.

On December 5, 2014, ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalla, New York. The note was secured by the property and is guaranteed
by FEDCAP. The interest rate was 3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the 61 st month,
the interest rate was reset to 1.75% in excess of the then bank's five-year cost of funds. Principal and
interest of $32,440 was payable monthly through the maturity date of January 1, 2025. On October 27,
2020, the note was repaid through a refinancing with Investors Bank. At September 30, 2020, the
outstanding principal balance was $1,553,472.

On December 13, 2016, ESCT entered into a $18,558 note payable with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank. N.A.
The note is secured by the assets of ESCT. The interest rate is 6.1% and principal and interest are paid
monthly. The note matures in December 2021. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding
principal balance was $1,068 and $5,188, respectively.

On September 18, 2020, FRS and Fedcap Apex Acquisition, LLC purchased all of the existing assets and
liabilities of Apex Technical School for an amount of $1,851,658. As part of the initial agreement, $100,000
was paid to the seller on the acquisition date, with another $100,000 to be paid in four increments of $25,000
beginning October 2020. The note is uncollateralized and is non-interest bearing. The remaining
$1,651,658 to be paid within 18 months after the purchase date. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the
outstanding principal balance was $165,165 and $1,749,142, respectively.
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On October 27, 2020, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank to refinance certain of its
existing debt arrangements as well as to provide for additional liquidity for operations. In connection with
the refinancing, FEDCAP entered into (1) a revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of
$42,500,000, with a maturity date of October 27, 2022 and interest payable quarterly at a rate of prime plus
0.75% but no less than 4.00%; and (2) two term loans in the amounts of $6,000,000 ("Facility A") and
$6,600,000 ("Facility C"), respectively, with a maturity date of November 1, 2045 and November 1, 2030
respectively, along with monthly payments of principal and interest at a rate of 4.00%; The proceeds from
the revolving line of credit and term loans were used to repay the existing revolving credit lines held by FRS
and ESNY (as detailed within Note 8). the FRS Series 2017A and 2017B Bonds, ESNY Series 2010 Bonds,
and ESNY Mortgage (as detailed above). At September 30, 2021, the outstanding principal balance of the
term loans Facility A and C was $12,174,762.

Bonds Payable

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation ("Build
NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A'). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1, 2033.
The Series A bonds were placed with IDB and, as part of the bond purchase and continuing covenant
agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB of $4,000,000, which
is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at
September 30, 2021 and 2020. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding principal balance of the
Series 2013A bonds was $15,420,000 and $15,975,000, respectively.

On December 2010, ESNY in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and
RBS Citizens Bank, N.A. issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds ("Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Irondequoit, New
York and to refinance certain ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds were secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and were guaranteed by FRS. ESNY may elect to
prepay some portion or all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the
agreement. The agreement also required bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness.
The Series 2010 bonds were subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder
beginning June 1, 2016 and thereafter every five years through June 1, 2036. On October 27, 2020, the
bonds were repaid through a refinancing with Investors Bank. At September 30, 2020, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2010 bonds was $4,110,260.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with
the Series 2010 Bonds. The outstanding notional amount decreased, in conjunction with bond principal
reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. ESNY remitted interest at a fixed rate of 2.99%
and received interest at a variable rate. On,October 27,2020, the swap was settled and terminated through
a refinancing with Investors Bank. The swap agreement had a notional amount of $4,099,290 and fair
value of $876,764 at September 30, 2020. The interest rate swap in included within other liabilities in the
accompanying 2020 consolidated statement of financial position.
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In December 2017, FEDCAP entered into a loan agreement with Build NYC for Build NYC to issue bonds
to finance the renovation, equipping and furnishing of the improvements of the sixth floor located at 633
Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued $9,280,000 of tax-exempt revenue
bonds ("Series 2017A") and $715,000 of taxable revenue bonds ("Series 2017B"). Monthly payments of
interest commenced in February 2018. The Series 2017A bonds had a coupon rate of 3.9% with a maturity
date of December 1,^2042. The Series 2017B bonds had a coupon rate of 4.5% with a maturity date of
December 1, 2027. The 2017A and 2017B bonds were placed with TD Bank. On October 27, 2020, the
bonds were repaid through a refinancing with Investors Bank. At September 30, 2020, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2017A and 2017B bonds was $9,223,326.

The following is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30,
2021:

Year Ending September 30, . . Notes Payable Bonds Payable^ Total

2022 $ 733,631 $ 580,000 $ 1,313,631
2023 570,089 605,000 1,175,089
2024 572,925 630,000 1,202,925
2025 525,337 ' 655,000 1,180,337

.  2026 515,489 685,000 1,200,489

Thereafter 9,597,315 12,265,000 21,862,315

jotal $ 12,514,786 $ 15,420,000 27.934,786

Less: current portion (1,313,632)
Less: bond issuance cost , (965,524)

Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 25,655,630

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY i

During fiscal 2020 and 2019, FEDCAP received contract advances from various New York City government
agencies. The refundable balance related to these advances as of September 30, 2021 and 2020 is
$749,426 and $3,620,421, respectively. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by
future receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from' Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase 34
housing entities. The principle and any interest are not due and will be forgiven, upon maturity, as long as
ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the
agreement."
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The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30, 2021;

Amount of

Original
Advance

Housing I
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.375%, due unless forgiven on

October 11, 2045, secured by six rental housing units. At September 30, 2021
and 2020, $248,660 and $258,985, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Housing II
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5.250%, due unless forgiven on April 1,
2048, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2021 and 2020,
$474,247 and $492,087, respectively, was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
May 1, 2049, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2021 and
2020, $344,792 and $357,292, respectively, was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note.

Housing III
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on
December 1, 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2021
and 2020, $539,510 and $558,008, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
November 30, 2050, secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2021
and 2020, $360,748 and $373,116, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Housing IV
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on

February 15, 2053, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2021
and 2020, $840,710 and $867,470, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on
February 28, 2053, secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2021
and 2020, $490,805 and $506,429, respectively, was included in net assets with
donor restrictions related to the Note.

Total

$  413,000

713,600

500,000

739,900

494,740

1,070,400

624,898

$  4,556,538
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NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP has leases for offices, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount

2022 $ 11,941,932
2023 9,121,064
2024 7,999,372

2025 6.482,201
2026 4,194,721

Thereafter 9,437,811

Total commitments and contingencies $ 49,177,101

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP

recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of $1,136,082 and
$146,665 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was $15,172,888 and $11,046,926 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

As of September 30, 2021, FEDCAP has provided for a reserve for lease abandonment costs for its leased
property in Staten Island, NY. These costs, amounting to $2,116,214, consist of the present value of the
remaining lease payments, offset by estimated sub-tenant payments. This liability is reflected within other
liabilities on the accompanying 2021 consolidated statement of financial position and the corresponding
expense is included within occupancy expenses on the accompanying 2021 consolidated statement of
functional experises.

FEDCAP sublets a portion of its facilities to. tenants under operating leases that expire at various dates
through December 2025. For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, rental income from these
subleases was $1,036,837 and $1,224,615, respectively. The future minimum sublease rental payments
to be received are as follows: '

Year Ending September 30, Amount

2022 $ 2,174,328
2023 1,848,758
2024 1,458,990
2025 610,846

2026 80.795

Total ' £ 6.173,717

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.
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FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of
government contracts by government agencies is presently not detenminable, it should not, in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP's financial position or change in net assets.
Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 13 - TUITION REVENUE

FEDCAP receives funding for Fedcap Apex Acquisition (d/b/a Apex Technical School) and for the Career
Design School from the New York State Education Department, administered by the Bureau of Proprietary
School Supervision. Gross tuition income has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs
in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities for the years ended September 30, 2021, and
2020 as follows: ^

2021

Fedcap Apex
Acquisition
d/b/a Apex
Technical

School

Career Design
School

Tuition

Less: Book and Tool Sales

Less: Application and Insurance Fees

Subtotal >

Add: Student Refunds and Returns to Federal Family Education
Loan Programs included above

Gross Tuition for Tuition Assessment Calculations

$  20,796,454 $ 407,697

(1,642,966) -

(123,060) -

19,030,428 407,697

859,820 -

$  19,890,248 $ 407,697

2020

Tuition

Less: Book and Tool Sales

Less: Application and Insurance Fees

Subtotal

Add Student Refunds and Returns to Federal Family Education Loan Programs
included above

Gross Tuition for Tuition Assessment Calculations

Career Design
School

$  186,703

186,703

$  186,703
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NOTE 14-NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30, 2021 and
2020:

2021 2020

For use in future periods for:
Employment and job search programs
ESCT HUD capital advances

Time restricted - beneficial interest In remainder trust

Time restricted - general

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of donor restrictions

Total

September 30. 2021 and 2020:

Easter Seals - beneficial interest In perpetual trusts
ReServe endowment

CWS endowment

$ 116,391 $ 116,380
3,299,472 3,413,387

.3,132,036 2,686,453
456,065 297,767

7,003,964 6,513,987

2,400.344 2,072,809

$ 9,404,308 $ 8,586,796

comprised of the following as o

2021 2020

$ 2,310,181 $ 1,990,041
82,096 75,000
8,067 7,768

$ 2,400,344 $ 2,072,809

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 amounted to
$113,913 each year and related to ESCT HUD capital advances.

NOTE 15 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of.the Board of Directors of FEDCAP are associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $271,364 and $162,175 during the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund. In-

kind contributed rent and rent paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020 was $151,667 and $108,330 respectively.

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plan as of their employment date.
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/

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for erriployees working on government contracts with a defined contribution pension plan
based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon satisfactory
completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1. 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
IRC for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In November 1, 2010,
the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the plan Immediately
upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries. Employer rriatching
contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $11,830,831 and $9,708,598 for the years ended September 30; 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 17 - ACQUISITIONS

On September 18,2020, Fedcap Apex Acquisition, LLC, executed an asset purchase agreement to acquire
substantially all of the assets of Breton International, Inc (a/k/a Apex Technical School). Apex Techriical
School ("APEX") is an adult vocational technical school and offers seven certificate courses designed to
focus on basic trade skills and labor skills for its students. The acquisition purchase price was $1,851,658,
$100,000 of which was paid upon acquisition, $100,000 was to be paid over the following four months and
a $1,651,658 note payable to be paid within 18 months of the acquisition. The total consideration given
exceeded the net assets acquired by $200,000 and as such, goodwill in the amount of $200,000 was
recognized. Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement, $100,000 repayments on the note payable
are due by the 15th of the month following any rhonth in which APEX generates positive cash flows from
operations.

On May 1, 2021, The Fedcap Group acquired Civic Hall Labs, Inc, a learning, and collaboration platform
focused on advanced technology and problem-solving for the public good. The acquisition was predicated
on establishing training organizations and platform that will improve access to in-demand technology jobs
for all New Yorkers. The acquisition was affected without the transfer of consideration, and as such, a
charge of $695,897 was recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the
liabilities assumed over the acquisition date fair value of the assets acquired.

28



DocuStgn Envelope ID: 1BD56B3A-876B-4ADe-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

On September 23, 2021, Civic Hall Labs, Inc, acquired New York Tech Alliance (NYTA), an organization
that supports the technology community and ecosystems in our hometown, with the goal of creating the
most diverse, equitable and accessible tech ecosystems in the world. The acquisition was predicated on
aiding and providing access to various technology resources and platforms. The acquisition was affected
without the transfer of consideration, and as such, a charge of $95,284 was recognized, which represented
the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed over the acquisition date fair value
of the assets acquired.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition for APEX during the year ended September 30, 2020:

Accounts receivable, net
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deferred revenues

Net assets

$ 2,767,727
58,911

209,585
402,358
(503,954)

{1,282,969)-

$  1,651,658

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the liabilities assumed and assets acquired at
the date of acquisition during the year ended September 30, 2021:

Civic Hall Labs,
Inc

New York Tech

Alliance Total

Cash and cash equivalents $  142,062 $ 3,101 $ 145,163
Accounts receivatsle, net - 33,862 33,862

Prepaid'expenses 3,845 - 3,845

Property and equipment 30,000 - 30,000

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (580,509) (29,500) (610,009)

Payroll Protection Plan loan (291,295) (19,875) (311,170)

Deferred revenue - (82,872) (82,872)

Net (deficit) $  (695,897) $ (95,284) $ (791,181)

NOTE 18 ■ CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 20% and 23% of total revenues
during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry
personnel, custodial and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one
New York State organization, which comprised 5% and 6% of total revenues during the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. Management does not believe that a significant
risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution.

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See Note 8 for information about FEDCAP's lines
of credit.

For purposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP
and the amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet general expenditures.

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months;

2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,982,639
Accounts receivalile, net 57,363,861
Contributions and grants receivable, net 1,968,683

Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months 11,004,556

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months 113,319,739

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions (3,871,928)
Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements (10,000,000)

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next
12 months $ 99,447,811
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions and grants receivable, net

Investments convertible to cash over the next 12 months

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to;
Donor-imposed restrictions

Minimum liquidity requirement under borrowing arrangements

Total financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next
12 months

$ 24,926,770

56,865,665
2,131,974
9,317,759

93,242,168

{3.827,534)
(10,000,000)

$  79,414,634

NOTE 20 - CARES ACT

As of September 30,2021 and 2020, FEDCAP's affiliates were granted the following loans, pursuant to the
Small Business Administration ("SBA") Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I
of the CARES Act (the "PPP Loans"):

Affiliate

Balance as of September 30,
2021

Amount

2020

Amount

Date of

Note

Maturity
Date

Easter Seals Rhode Island Inc.

(ESRI) $ 307,757 $ 307,757 5/7/2020 5/7/2022

Community Workshop Inc' (CWS) 104,255 104,255 4/30/2020 4/30/2022

Wildcat Service Corporation - 2,438,225 4/10/2020 4/10/2022

Single Stop USA Inc - 329,967 4/10/2020 4/10/2022

MVLE - 2,359,900 ■ 4/23/2020 4/23/2022

Easter Seals North Texas 1,423,400 1,423,400 4/17/2020 4/17/2022

Easter Seals Central Texas 1,356,335 1,356,335 4/27/2020 4/27/2022

These Our Treasures Inc (TOTS) - 231,600 .  5/2/2020 5/2/2022

Easter Seals New York (ESNY) 3.929,615 3,929,615 7/3/2020 7/3/2022

Civic Hall Labs, Inc. 291,295 . - 2/26/2021 2/26/2026

MVLE - 1,181,155 - 3/26/2021 3/26/2026

Easter Seals North Texas 437,300 - 3/29/2021 * 3/29/2026
Easter Seals Central Texas 1,037,171 - 3/23/2021 3/23/2026

Easter Seals Rhode Island Inc.

(ESRI) 216,658 - 4/8/2021 4/8/2026

$ 10,284,941 $ 12,481,054

The PPP Loans, which are in the form of notes payable, mature 24 months or 60 months from the date of
issuance and bear interest at a rate of 1 % per annum. The PPP Loans may be prepaid by FEDCAP at any
time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalties. Funds from the PPP Loans may only be used for
certain costs, such as payroll costs and occupancy expenses. FEDCAP intends to use the entire loan
amounts for qualifying expenses. Under the terms of the PPP, certain amounts of the PPP Loans may be
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021 and 2020

forgiven if they are used for qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act. When FEDCAP Is legally
released from the debt, or forgiveness is granted, the extinguishment will be recognized into income at that
time. During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021, forgiveness was granted by the SBA for certain
of FEDCAP's PPP Loans, amounting to $5,379,479. This forgiveness has been reflected as gain on
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness in the consolidated statement of activities for the year ended
September 30, 2021. ^

The CARES Act also allowed for employers to defer the deposit and payment of the employer share of
payroll taxes that would otherwise be due on or after March 27,2020, and before January 1,2021. FEDCAP
elected to defer payment of payroll taxes under this arrangement. These deferred payroll taxes are payable
in two equal installments on December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022. As of September 30, 2021 and
2020, FEDCAP has recorded $3,628,007 and $2,098,963, respectively, of deferred payroll taxes, which is
reflected within' accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities on the accompanying
consolidated statement of financial position.

N0TE21-COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization officially declared COVID-19, a disease caused by the novel
coronavirus, a pandemic. This caused many local and national governments, including New York State, to
impose restrictions on business operations, travel and public gatherings. The outbreak has adversely
impacted the level of economic activity around the world and disrupted normal business activity in every
sector of the econorny.

As a result of the pandemic, in mid-March 2020, FEDCAP moved certain programs to virtual program
services for the remainder of the fiscal year. In order to mitigate the impact of the pandemic, for fiscal year
2021, FEDCAP continues to offer some programs virtually while shifting to in-person programs for others.
The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. External factors,
including the duration and intensity of the pandemic, the shape of the economic recovery and its impact on
potential government funding, as well as timing and widespread adoption of vaccines, could have a material
impact on FEDCAP's future operating and programmatic results. The extent to which COVID-19 may
impact FEDCAP's financial position, changes in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the
accompanying consolidated financial statements include no adjustments relating to the effect's of this
pandemic.

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2021 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through February 2, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP is unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

On November 23, 2021, FEDCAP entered into a combination agreement with Paul Smith's College to
become its sole member. This combination was predicated on the synergies of mission and our ability to
provide enhanced education and training opportunities for the individuals we serve. The combination is
subject to regulatory approval.
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a member of THE FEOCAP GROUP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

William Rider, Interim Chairman

Board Date 2009

Profession: CEO/President-Greater Manchester Mental Health

Lynne Westaway, Treasurer
SoardDote 8/1/2007

Profession: CPA/Partner-WIPFLI

Nick Brattan

Board Date 6/13/2018

Profession: President- NE DocumentSystems Inc.
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James Sweeney PhD
Board Date 10/1/2020

Profession: PhD, Counseling

Peter Burke

Board Date 4/1/21

Profession: Community Education Manager @ St Joseph Hospital

5/2021
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Erica Gesen Ungareili
Human Services Leader In Child Welfare and Behavioral Health
Human Services Leadership and Management

Successful Human Services Leader with 20 years of leadership experience. Responsibilities include

System and program development and sustainability, management of programs and budgets ranging
between 3-64 million dollars. Broad knowledge of the Medicaid system. Leadership style embraces the
System of Care values and principles in both program development and in organizational culture
and climate. Experience in Child Welfare and Children's Behavioral Health. Additional notable

experience In the following areas;

Management

•  Provides Direction and vision for organizational development

Recruitment and retention strategies

Positive Culture and Climate

Program development, contract development and implementation
Oversight of contracts, programs, and provider networks

Strategic planning. Program Development

Developed programming to assist children and families involved in Child Welfare including:
•  Strength To Succeed and other intensive in-home services.

•  Led large systems reform for children's service, NH System of Care for Children's Behavioral

Health Inclusive of program development, finance and long-term sustainability and scaling up
the programming to address continued growing needs.

•  Developed NH's infant Mental Health plan, to Include program development for integrated and
comprehensive supports for at risk young children and families.

•  Development of strategic plans- notable examples: 10-year mental health plan, Children's
system of care annual reports with recommendations and child welfare practice model
development.

Analyzing data to identify areas for improvement and expansion
Development of goals and activities for strategic plan
Development of finance strategies, budget, and rates

Assess progress towards goals through process measures and qualitative data
Management of organization and program budgets

Assessment of federal and state statutes

Analyzing, drafting, and editing legislation, policy, and fiscal impact statements.
Develop, draft; and implement finance strategies for sustainability through Medicaid
reimbursement.

Facilitation and presenting

• . Facilitation of both large and small work groups.

•  Facilitation of large group stakeholder groups
•  Presentations to small and large group, local and national.
•  'Testifies to legislative policy and budget committees.
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CAREER PROGRESSION
Leadership and Management: 2006- Present

2021-Present: Granite Pathways, Executive Director

Daily operations of organization, finance. Liaison to Board.of directors,
Set strategic priorities for the organization.

2016- 2021: Division for Behavioral Health, Director, Bureau for Children's Behavioral Health

• Set strategic priorities and plan for development for children's services.
• Provides cross departmental consultation for child programming.
• Develop and manage budgets for the Bureau . . ^
• Provided Leadership and Bureau vision and priorities for all Bureau staff.
• Directly manages bureau administrators

• Program development, implementation, financing, and oversight
• Contract development, writing and monitoring

2002-2016: Division for Children, Youth and Families Bureau for Child Wellbeing and DCYF Fiscal Unit
Managed multiple program areas for child welfare and juvenile Justice to include;

• Foster Care Health

• Federal Grant administration and oversight

• Community based services development

• Finance

• Parent Partner program

• Policy and rule development and writing

• Budget development and management
• Provider relations

■ Medicaid liaison ^

• Lead for Cost containment Workgroup to ensure cost containment initiatives are met

• Authorization for Child specific specialized services

• Negotiate rates and funding for child specific services
• Conducts cost analysis for new child specific services

• Participated as team member during Federal audits and State case reviews
• DCYF Lead representative for the Medicaid Advisory Committee

• Development of the NH DCYF SafeRX program; Coauthor of the article, Psychotropic
medications in child

welfare: from federal mandate to direct care.
https://www.$ciencedirect.com/science/ar"cle/abs/pii/S019Q74091630127XfJ:"':text=Psvchotro

pic%20medica"on5%20in%20chlld%20welfare%3A%20From%2Qfederal%20mandate%20to%20d

irect%20care

Supervisory and Field Experience

1992-1996: Field worker for Elderly and Adult Services

1996-2002 CPSW for DCYF Central Intake

2001-2002 Supervisor for DCYF Central Intake

Education: Wittenberg University, BA earned in 1992 in Sociology.
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Brian Lemire

PERSONAL SUMMARY

Enthusiastic, accomplished, and motivated graduate passionate in supporting individuals with substance

use disorder.

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester, NH
Bachelor of Science: Business Mgmt. /Admin
•  Graduated Magna Cum Laude (3.5+ G.P.A.)

New Hampshire Technical Institute - Concord, NH

• Associate of Science: Real Estate

G.E.D. - Manchester, NH

Central High School - Manchester, NH
SKILLS

CCAR Recovery Coach Academy
Suicide Prevention Training
Ethics Training
HIV Training

Complex problem solving
Client service focused

Professional phone etiquette
Excellent planner and coordinator
Attention to detail

Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel,

and PowerPoint

Works well under pressure
Exceptional oral and written
communication

WORK HISTORY

Operations Manager, 10/1/21 to Present-
Granite Pathways - Strength to Succeed- Manchester, NH
• Assist director and support staff in day-to-day operations

•  Support in advanced special projects
•  Prepare and take notes for quarterly BOD
•  New hire orientation and onboarding

•  • Administrative support for RFP submissions
• Oversee IT applications and trainings

•  Billing oversight for medical and contract billing

Program Coordinator, 8/5/2019 to 10/1/21
Granite Pathways - Strength to Succeed- Manchester, NH
• Assist manager and support staff in day-to-day operations

■ • Oversee IT applications and trainings
•  Billing oversight

Kitchen Supervisor, 3/2016 to 11/2018
Salona Bar and Grill- Manchester, NH

• Managed kitchen staff and coordinated food preparations
• Helped resolve customer complaints
• Assisted in placing weekly food and beverage orders
• Maintained sanitation and safety standards



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

•  Trained new employees
Assistant Property Manager, 6/1/2009 to 2/13/15
Carisbrooke at Manchester - Manchester, NH

Managed a community of 100+ apartment units
Carefully screened applicants for tenancy
Communicated effectively with owners, residents, and on-site associates
Followed up on delinquent tenants and helped coordinate collection procedures
Monitored the timely receipt and reconciliation of rent collections in accordance with
proprietor and resident statutes

•  Scheduled and coordinated contractors for janitorial and maintenance issues



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

WHITNEY H. BROWN

OUALIFICATIONS/LICENSURE
N

NH Licensed Acupuncture Detoxification Specialist

Certified Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator (Nov 2018)

Certified Recovery Support Worker Supervisor. (CRSW Supervisor)

Mental Health First Aid National Instructor (certified April 2018)

NH Licensed Nursing Assistant (2015-2020)

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Master of Social Work

UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY

Building Futures Apprenticeship

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE

Micro Credential in Addiction Studies

UNH PROFESSIONAL EXTENSION SCHOOL

Introduction to Grant Writing

Introduction to Basic Project Mgt.

CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

Marketing Principles

Business Law in the Digital Age

BOSTON COLLEGE

BA in International Studies

INTERNATIONAL UNIV.OF BUSINESS & ECON.

Semester Abroad in Beijing, China

EXPERIENCE

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER

Jun 2022-Jun 2025

Oct 2021 - Present

Jun 2020 - Jun 2021

Sept 2019

Oct 2019

Fall 2010

Spring 2011

Sept 2004 - May 2008

Jan 2007 - May 2007

Oct 2021 - Present

Manchester, NH

Durham, NH

Concord, NH

Durham, NH

New York, NY

Chestnut Hill, MA

Portsmouth. NH

Center Manager

Manage the Job Launch Program

Manage the Parenting Journey in Recovery Program

Manage the Homeless Outreach Program

Manage Peer Recovery Support Services

Supervise all staff and volunteers

Advance and sustain all recovery community organizational activity

" Cultivate donor relations

Establish and develop community partnerships

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS Sept 2020 - Oct 2021 Portsmouth, NH

Contract Manager & CRSW

Manage contract deliverables

Qualify and quantify key performance indicators

Supervise staff and interns

Assist in employee professional development and licensure

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance

Educate employees and volunteers in confidentiality practices

Support business development

Draft and submit grant proposals

Develop sen/ice integration with other Statewide workforce and recovery initiatives

Assist participants in career exploration and development

Place participants in recovery-support work environments & Recovery Friendly Workplaces

WHB 1
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WHITNEY H. BROWN

Facilitate vocational classes in SUD treatment settings

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS Feb 2020 - Sept 2020 Portsmouth. NH

Employment Specialist & CRSW

Offer direct peer recovery support services through motivational conversation

•  Facilitate and coordinate Power of Possible work readiness curriculum

Conduct psychosocial intakes

Establish and maintain client relationships on peer recovery support basis

Initiate and cultivate relationships with client referral sources

Formulate initial comprehensive service plans

Coordinate with and "delegate to Job Developer in service of clients' needs

Structure referral processes
Navigate privacy and confidentiality laws of telehealfh and recovery coaching practice

Draft and submit to Contractors quarterly reports

Formulate records retainment procedures

Contribute to creation of programmatic materials including marketing brochure

"Assist with work readiness activities including resume drafting and proper interviewing

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Sept 2018 - Feb 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Facilitator/ Parenting Journey Coord. & CRSW

Assist individuajs in defining and articulating their desired pathway of recovery

Monitor and support individuals in achieving desired pathway of recovery

Motivationally interview participants to develop actionable goals

Validate and advocate for recoverees seeking expanded parental rights

Navigation of and proficiency with family court system and parental rights in NH

Leverage existing community resources to level obstacles in the way of health stability

PRIVATE DUTY HOME HEALTHCARE

Personal Care Assistant

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES

Licensed Nursing Assistant

NEW CASTLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Member; Support Medical Team

RISE ABOVE SOBER LIVING

House Manager

GUNDERSON DETTMER. at al

Legal Secretary

Receptionist

INTERNATIONAL VENUE GROUP

USA Pavilion Server

MANDARIN PRIVATE TUTORING

English Tutor

MANDARIN ORIENTAL HOTEL

Asana Server

WENTWORTH BY THE SEA HOTEL

Server

March 2017 - Sept 2018

March 2016 - March 2018

Oct 2016 - May 2020

Aug - Oct 2015

Nov 2010-April 2012

Nov 2011 - April 2012

Nov 2010 - Nov 2011

March 2010-Aug 2010

Nov 2009 - Feb 2010

Sept 2008 - May 2009

Summers 2002 - 2008

Kittery, ME

Manchester. NH

New Castle, NH

Nashua, NH

New York, NY

Shanghai, PRC

Shanghai, PRC

Boston, MA

New Castle, NH

WHB2
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Whitney Brown Safe Harbor Manager $18,900

TBD Recoyery employment
specialist

$38,480.00

Brian Lemire Operations Manager $5,600.00

Erica Ungarelli Execuiiye Director $22,000

•
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LoriA.ShtbjDcne

Coramlnloacr

KatJtS. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/OJV FOR BEHA MORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271*9544 l.S00-85^3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDDAcceu: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbt.Db.gov

September 3, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing Worlcforce
Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by Increasing the total price limitatidn by $310,000 from
$538,936 to $848,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 202-1 to
September 26,2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current
Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater Tilton
Area Family
Resource

Center,
miorVNH

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton

Area
$227,063 $124,000 $351,063

0: 08/14/19

Item #10

A1:02/17/21

Item #20

Granite

Pathways,
Concord/NH

228900-

B001
Stat^de $311,873 $166,000 $497,873

0: 09/18/19
Item #19

A1:02/17/21

Item #20

Total: $538,936 $310,000 $846,936

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If need^ and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to have the Contractors continue to provide vocational
training supports and worlcforce readiness programs for Individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders w^o are In treatment and recovery settings and who are seeking to join and/or re-

77te thparUntni of Health and Human Seruioet'Minion is la Join eommuniliee and familits
in prowding opporlunitie* for a'linns to achieue tieallh and indepen'dehee.
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His Exceflency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honortoe Cour>ci)

Page 2 of 2

join the workforce. Services provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainful
employment, which Is a critical aspect of continued sobriety.

.  . Approximately 200 Individuals will be served from September 30. 2021 to September 29
2022.

The Contractors wilt continua Integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an indh/lduars
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking
Individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources
that assist the Individuals on the path to employnftent. Vocatlona) training may include, but is not
limited to, providing assistance with resume writing, completing Job applications, and Improving
interviewing skills.

The Department will continue monitoring contracted services by reviewirig monthly and
quarterly reports submitted by the Contractors and monitor the follbwing perfonnanoe measures:

•  Ensuring ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided training programs.

•  Ensuring seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain employment.

•  Ensuring contact and coordination with one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) year of the one (1) available year remaining.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Individuals In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent empioyment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN #M79TI083326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds wlil not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-92-92-920510.70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. SOR GRANT
100% Federal Funds

tVendor Name Greater Tiilon Area Family Resource Cenler Vendor M 297434

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst end Rel 92057048 $0.00 $93,000.00 $93,000.00
2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst end Rel 62057048 $0.00 $31,000.00 $31,000.00

Sub Total $227,063.00 $f24.000.00 $351,063.00

(Vendor Name Grar>ite Paihvrays Vendor« 228900

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Accouni Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

(Decrease)
Res^sed Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,663.00 $0.00 $72,683.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00
2021 102-500731 Contracts tor Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92057048 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $139,500.00 $139,500.00
2023 074-500585 Grants (or Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total $311,673.00 Sf66.000.00 $497,673.00

Overall Total $536,936.00 $310,000.00| $848,938.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for .Individuals with OUD
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019, (Item #19). as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$497,873.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope.of Services. Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards.
Subsection 6.2.. to read:

6.2. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6.11., to read:

6.11. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide marijuana for treatment using marijuana. The Contractor shall ensure:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (OUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization that provides
'  or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental

disorders.

,6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts, and rhemoranda of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Senrices, Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
Subsection 6.12., to read:

6.12. The Contractor shall provide a Fehtanyl test strip utilization plan to the Department for
approval prior to Implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan
includes:

6.12.1. Internal policies for the distribution of Fentanyl strips;

6.12.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.12.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.
—08^

1

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A02 Granlle Pathways

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 5 .9/3/2021
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6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 6, State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant Standards by
adding Subsection 6.13., to read:

6.13. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

6.13.1. Invoicing;

6.13.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.13.3. Billing.

7. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on
09/30/2018, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Sen/ices Administration, CFDA #93.786, FAIN H79TI081685, and
as awarded on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN
H79T1083326. and as awarded on 08/09/2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, CFDA
#93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

8. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
•read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit 8-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2 SOR II Budget.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5. to
read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting backup documentation in a form
satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month.'which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. Invoices .shall be net any other revenue received towards the
services billed in fulfillment of this agreement. The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1. Backup documentation includes, but is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, wrhich are available to the
Department upon request.

5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to:

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs. (rMa
RFP-2019-BOAS-12-WORKF-O1-A02 Granite Pathways

A-S-VO Page 2 ol 5 9/3/2021
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-  5.1.3.1.2.

5.1.3.1.3.

5.1.3.1.4.

5.1.3.1.5.

Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

Construction or renovation expenses.

Food or water for employees.

Directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or-provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallovrable unless they are an Integral part of a
conference grant or specifically stated as an allowable
expense in the FOA. Grant funds may be used for light
snacks, not to exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for
clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year.

, 5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report.

5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not need

to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon
request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on
third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 11, to
read: •

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in compliance with
funding requirements.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 12, to
read:

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Scope of Services,
including failure to submit required monthly and/or quarterly reports.

12. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2, SOR II Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2, SOR It Budget, which is attached hereto, and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A02

A-S-1.0

Granite Pathways

Page 3 of 5
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All terms and conditions of the Ckjnlract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be eff^live upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council-approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

C—DeevSlgfwd by:
-EmD0$0l>*C0>442...

9/3/2021

Dale

Title; Director

9/3/2021

Date

Granite Pathways

-OMustoM4br.

Name: xennecn Brezenoff
P
Title: General Counsel

RFP-2019-B0AS-12.W0RKF^1 -A02

A-S-1.0

Granile Pathways

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

y—0»<u9loi»«< bjr:

9/7/2021 J. [kriiiflM- hArUi

Date Name:-'* Marshal l
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ' (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A02 Granite Pathways
A-S-1.0 Page 5 of 5
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmStON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NM OJJOr

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ez(. 9544

Fai: 603-271-4332 TDD Accas: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhha.nti.gov

December 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

• REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to Retroactively amend existing contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Wortcforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price (imitation by $204,962 frorn
$333,974.48 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2020 to
September 29. 2021 effective retroactive to September 29, 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The Individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified In the table
below.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Incroaee

(Docmaeo)
Rovleed

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater TItton

Area Family
Resource

Center,
TillorVNH

297434-

R001

Greater Tillon

Area
$138,740 $88,323 $227,063

0: 08/14/19.
Item 010 '

Granite
Pathways,
Concord/NH

226900-

B001
Statewide $195,234.48 $116,639 $311,873.48

0: 09/18/19.

Item 019

Total: S333.974.48 $204,962 $538,936.48

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 202'1, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price (Imitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justiried.

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Dtporlmtnt ̂ lUalOi and Human Strwctt'Mittian ii la/oin andlomUiti
in prouidiRtoppOftunUittfQrcilixent io ochUue htollh and tndeptndtnct..
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His Exeelleney. Governor Chdstopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Pa9e 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because suffio'ent funds In State Fiscal Year 2021 were not
available in the operating budget considering the grant amount awarded, and due to delay by the
Substance Abuse end Merrtal Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) In approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opioid Response Grant funding, the efforts to add the
state appropriations were deferred.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide vocational training supports and
workforce readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders who are in treatment and
recovery settlrigs and who are seeking to join and/or rejoin the workforce. Employment has long
t>een recognized as a criticarotament in (he recovery process, providing people with hope and
opportunity to move forward in the recovery process determined by principles of self*
determination.

Approximately 100 Individuals will be senred from September 29.2020 to September 29
2021.

This vendors will continue Intiegrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
end recovery settings, Including creating vocational profiles In order to determine an indtvidual's
sKtD level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendors will link tite Individual to
appropriate vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid
(he individual on the path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to.
assistance with resume writing, completing Jpb applications, and improving interviewing ekills.

Unique to these services is a robust level of dient-specific data that will be available, which
'will be collected in coordination with the Regional Doomays. The State Opioid Response grant
requires that all Indrviduals served receive a comprehensive assessment at several time Intervals,
specifically at intake, six (6) months after intake, and upon discharge. Through collaborative
agreements with the vendors under these contracts, the Regional Doorways gather data on clientT
related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice Involvement, employment, and
housing needs at (he time intervals listed above. The data collected enables the Department to
measure short and long-term outcomes essodeted with State Opioid Response-funded initiatives
and to determine which programs are generating the best results for the disrits served.

The Department will monitor contracted servloes using the follovwng performance
measures;

• The Contractors will ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provided
training progranis.

• The Contractors will ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuals gain
employmeni.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Coundl approval. The Department is exercising Its
option to renew services for one (1)ofthetwo{2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Coundl not authorize this request, individuals In
recovery seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce partidpatlon arid consistent employment are critical components of an indi^dual's
ability to remain in recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities.
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His ExceDetwy. Governor ChrtstopherT. Sununu
end the Honorsbte Coundl

Peoe 3 of 3

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.708, FAIN #11081685 and FAIN #71083326.

In the event that the Federed Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY 2018 FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS-98-02-S20$10>7040 HEALTH AND SOaAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HKS:

BEHAIRORAL HEALTH DIV OF BUREAU OF DRUG A ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATE OPIOlD

RESPONSE GRANT

100% Federal Funds CFDA tSlTSS FAIN H79T10818BS end KTSTIOSSSZe

Greater TTRon Aree Femlly Retoofce CenOf. TitonlNH Vendor#

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Accouii Class Tide Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts (or Proorsm Services 92057040 5110,992 (540.911) 570,081

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 527.748 50 $27,748
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prograni Services 92057046 id 529,234 529,234

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 50 566,667 566,667

2022 102/500731 Contrects lor Prooram Services 920S7048 50 533.333

Sut> Total 5138,740 588.323 5227,063

Granite Pathwova. Ccrtcord/NH' Vendor#

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Accouil Class Tide Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Services 92057040 5149.896 (577.213) 572,683

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 545,338 50 545,338

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Pregram Services 92057046 SO 543,852. 543.852

2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Program Services 92057048 50 5100.000 $100,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts lor Prooram Services 9205 7048 SO 550.000 550.000

Sub Total 5195.234 5116,639 5311,873

Overall Touil 8333.8741 S204.062I • $S38.036I

Anaenrrwrn • Buraau o( Banestoral Haahh

FinandN DciiD

Page \ ot i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with ODD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Workforce Readiness & Vocational Training Programs for
Individuals with OUO Contract ,

This 1" Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with .
OUD contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and .Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonpmrit with a place of business at 10
Ferry Striaet. Suite 308. Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on Septembe'r 18. 2019, (Item #19). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specined; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2. Renewal, the Contract may be
amended upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: ;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$311,873.48

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 4. Reporting, byadding Subsection 4.2. to read: •

4.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to periodic surveys,
and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the Department and/or
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 5. Performance Measures, by adding Subsection
5.4. to read:

5.4. The Contractor shall collaborate svlih the Department to enhance contract management,
improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

5. Modify Exhibit A Scope of Services. Section 6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards,
to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through.SOR grant funded initiatives,
the Contractor shall ensure each Site:

6.1.1. Establishes formal Information sharing and referral agreements with all Doorways
for substance use services that comply with all applicable confidentiality laws,
Including 42 CFR Part 2.

aiiats [.
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6.1.2. Completes client referrals to applicable Doorways for substance use services
within two (2) business days of a client's admission to the program.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a budget narrative within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date. ■ -

6.3. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract
effective date to review contract implementation.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide the Department with timelines and implementation plans
associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place within thirty (30)
days of the contract effective date.

6.5. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all uses of flexible needs funds
and respite shelter funds are in compliance with the Department . and SAMHSA
requirements.

6.6. The Contractor and/or referred prov'iders shall assist clients with enrolling In public or
private health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for'such coverage and will
have staff irained In Presumptive Eligibility for l^edicaid.

6.7. The Coniraclor and/or referred providers shall accept clients on f^edicaid Assisted
Treatment (MAT) and facilitate access to MAT prt-slle or through referral for all clients
supported with SOR grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

6.8. ■ The Contractor and/or referred providers shall coordinate with the NH Ryan While
HIV/AIDs prograrn for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

6.9. The Contractor and/or referred providers shall ensure that all clients are regularly
screened for tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuilLlne as part of
treatment planning. • '

6.10. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to understand and comply with all
appropriate Department. StalCvOf NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration SAMHSA, and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirement.

6.11. The Contractor shall attest the understanding that SOR grant funds may not be used,
directly or Indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide marijuana or treatment using
marijuana. The Contractor agrees that:

6.11.1. Treatment in this context Includes the treatment of opioid use disorder (CUD).

6.11.2. Grant funds also cannot be provided to any individual vyho or organization that
provides or permits marijuana use for the purposes of treating substance use or
mental disorders. . '

6.11.3. This marijuana restriction applies to all subcontracts and memorandums of
understanding (MOU) that receive SOR funding.

6.11.4. Attestations will be provided to the Contractor by the Department.

6.11.5. The Contractor shall complete and submit all attestations to the Department within
thirty (30) days of contract approval.

6.12. The Contractor shall refer to Exhibit B for grant terms and conditions including, but not
limited to:

6.12.1. Invoicing:

r"
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6.12.2. Funding restrictions; and

6.12.3. Billing.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in Its entirety with
Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in order to bring
payment terms Into compliance with current Department of Administrative Services Manual of
Procedures standards, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-1. Budget Form by reducing the total budget amount by $77,213; which is
Identified as unspent funding of which $43,852 Is being carried forward to fund the activities in this
Agreement for SFY 21 (September 30. 2020 through December i31. 2020), as specified in Exhibit
8-3 Amendment #1 NCE and for SFY 21 (January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021) In" the amount
of $33,361, as specified in Exhibit B-4 Amendment U 1 SOR II.

8. Add Exhibit 8-3 Amendment ff1 NCE, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 SOR II, which is attached Hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference
herein.

r.
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective September 30, 2020, upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their harxJs as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/19/2021

Date

—OMuSlgnM kr:

Title; Di rector

1/6/2021

Date

GRANITE PATHWAYS

4Mer2A»«400'C«..

Name: Kenneth eretenoff

Title." General counsel

Granite Pathways '
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTice, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1/26/2021

Date Namiii^^a^"ii^rine Pinps'
Attorney

I hereby certify that (he foregoing Amendment vvas approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date. Name:
Title:

Granite Pathways Amendment #1
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, as awarded on 09/30/2018,

by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI081685. and as awarded

on 09/30/2020, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. CFDA #93.788, FAIN H79TI083326.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subredpient in accordance with 2
CFR 200.330. .

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&O, in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.87.

2.3.. The de minimis indirect Cos! Rate of 10% applies in accordance with 2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line Item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget Form through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 SOR II.

4. The Contractor shall seek, payment for services, as follows:

.  4.1. First, the Contractor shall charge the client's private insurance or other payor sources.

4.2. Second, the Contractor shall charge Medicare.

4.3. • Third, the Contractor shall charge Medicald enrolled individuals, as follows:

4.3.1. Medicald Care Management: If enrolled with a Managed Care Organization
(MCG), the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with its contract with the
MCO.

4.3.2. Medicald Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.4. Fourth, the Contractor shall charge the client in accordance' with the Sliding Fee Scale
Program.^

4.5. Lastly, if any portion of the amount specified in the Sliding Fee Scale remains unpaid,
charge the Department for the unpaid balance.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the fifteenth (15th)

working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

r"Ad
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

authdrized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall enisure the invoice is
completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. Invoices shall
be net any other revenue received towards the services billed in fulfilment of this agreement.
The Contractor shall ensure:

5.1.' Backup documentation includes, but Is not limited to:

5.1.1. General Ledger Showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

5.1.2. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked for
wages reported under this contract.

5.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430{i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for salaries
and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work
performed.

5.1.2.2. Attestation and time, tracking templates, which are available to the
Department upon request.

•  5.1.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported:

5.1.3.1. Unallowable expenses include, but are not limited to;

5.1.3.1.1. Amounts belonging to other programs.

5.1.3.1.2. Amounts prior to effective dale of contract.

5.1.3.1.3. Construction or renovation expenses.

5.1.3.1.4. Food or water for. employees.

5.1.3.1.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or treatment using marijuana.

5.1.3.1.6. Fines, fees, or penalties.

5.1.3.1.7. Per SAMSHA requirements, meals are generally
unallowable unless they .are an integral part of a conference
grant or specifically stated as an allowable expense in the
FOA. Grant funds may be used for light snacks, not to
exceed three dollars ($3.00) per person for clients.

5.1.3.1.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients.

5.1.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable stale fiscal year.

5.1.5. Cost center reports.

5.1.6. Profit and loss report. — M
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

.  5.1.7. Remittance Advices from the Insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

need to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available upon

request.

5.1.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or offset based on

third party revenue received.

5.1.9. Summaries of patient services revenue and operating revenue' and other
financial information as requested by the Department.

6. The Contractor is responsible for.reviewing, understanding, and complying with further
restrictions included in the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA).

7. in lieu of hard copies, ail invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
mellssa.glrard@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

-  105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. The Contractor agrees that biiiing submitted for review after twenty (20) bu^ness days 'of the
last day of the biiiing month may be subject to non-payment.

9. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

10. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

11. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in

compliance with funding requirements".

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be,withheld, in whole or In part
in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit A, Amendment #3,

Scope of Services, including failure to submit required monthly and/or quartery reports.

.  13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years

and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

14. Audits

Oi
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EXHIBIT B Amendment #1

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department If any of me
following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds
received as a subrecipienl pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. during the most recently
completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of
NH RSA 7:26, lll*b, pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of
$1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - the Contractor is a public company and required by Security and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

■  14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall subnnit an arinual single audit performed by

an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the.

requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the. Contractor shall submit an annual financial

audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after fhe dose of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than $250,000 from the"
Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of the funding source, may be
required, at a minimum, to submit annual financial audits performed by an
Independent CPA If the Department's risk assessment determination indicates the
Contractor is high-risk.

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for
any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments
made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed.because of such an exception.

—0»
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPAJITMENT OF HEALTH Af^ HUMAN SERVICES

DtVISiONFOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLtA$A^rr STRCCT. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 I4004S2.334S Cit 9544

Fai:603.27M332 TDDAccm: 1-600-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.fov

August 28. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION
*  »•

Authorize the Department of Health ar>d Human Services Divisiori for Behavioral Health, to enter
into agreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor # 228900-B001). 10 Ferry Street. Suite 319. Concord,
NH 03301, in an amount not to exceed $195,234.48, to provide Workforce Readiness and Vocational
Training Programs for Individuals with Opioid Use Disorder, effective upon date of GoverrTor and Council
approval, through September 29. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriatior) of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DiV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOID
RESPONSE GRANT

SUte Fiscal Year Class/Account Ctass.Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $149,896.32

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $45,338.16

Total: $195,234.48

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the design and implementalior^ of vocational training supports
and workforce .readiness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in treatment and recovery
settings who are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce. This vendor was selected (or this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Deparlment of Health
and Human Services' web site from November 15. 2018 through December 13, 2018. In addition, a
notice was sent by email to a wide variety of stakeholders and potential vendors. The Oepartmenl
received four (4) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with
program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the slrertgths and
weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Score Summary is attached. Employment has long been
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His Escsllency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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recognized as a critical element in the recovery process, providing people with hope and opportunity to
move forward in the recovery process'that is determined by principles of self^determination.-

This request represents the final one (1) of two (2) contracts to provide vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs. The Governor and Execuiive Council previously approved
one (1) contract 'on August 14. 2019 (Item 010).

The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substar>ce Abuse and Mental Health
SerSrices Administration (SAfMHSA) State Opioid-Response (SOR) grant opportunity. New Hampshire
wit! use evidence-baeed methods to expand treatment, recovery, and prevention services to individuals
with QUO in NH. These critical funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact
on the opioid crisis as well as expand the. capacity for programs that have shown promise in helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and stem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 468 bpioid-reiated deaths. 2.774 :emerQency naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 6,664
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate in
the country at 39 Individuals per 100.000 population. The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public comment forum which identified gaps in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
Individuals with OUD. The services provided through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate-connections with the multiple workforce initiatives for individuals with SUp/OUD that have
emerged over the past two years, including the Governor's.Recovery Friendly Workplace Program and
ihe Department of Labor National Health Emergency Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation' arid Opportunity Ad of 2014.

This agreement will.require the vendor to integrate workforce readiness programming into
treatment and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the IndividudI to appropriate
vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is not limited to assistance with resume writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

Unique to these services is. a robust level of client-specific, data that wl.i) be available, which will
be collected In coordination with the Regional Hubs that we're approved by Governor and E)<6cutive
Council at the October 31, 2018 meeting. The SOR grant requires that ail individuals served receive a
comprehensive assessrhent at several time intervals, specifically, at.intake, six (6) months and upon
idischarge.Through collaboralive agreements with the vendor under this contract, the Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gatheririg data on client-related outcomes including; recovery status, criminal justice-
involvement, employment,- and housing needs at the tirhe intervals listed above. This data will enable the
Department to measure short and long-term outcomes associated with SOR-funded initiatives and to
determine which programs are generating the best results for the clients served.

■ Approximately one hundred (100) Individuals will be served from'Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 29. 2020. '

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-t of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon'satisfactory delivery of
services, avaitdble.funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. - .

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Individuals In recovery
seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would' have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain In
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Hit ExceRency. Governor Chrfsiopher T. Surumu
onO (he Honorable Council
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recovery and meaningfully participate in their communities. .

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from, the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. State Opioid Response Grant, (CFDA #93.788, FAIN 11081685)

In the event (hat the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General' Funds wID
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

I

htp,.
Jevey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77m OrporlAi(/ii of HcofOi and Human Scrui(ti' Mittion it (o^in cp/ri/niinc/tes and famitie$
in p/oiftdinf oppotiuniiiet for cititcM lo ochitvc htoHh and independenct.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of. Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summai7 Scoring Sheet

WofltiorcB Reedtness end Vocational Training
'Programs for Indlvlfitats with Opiold Use

OHOftfar

RFP Name

RFP-2019-eDAS-12-WORKF

RFP Number. Reviewer Names

1.
jai Burke, Chief of Prevention &

Educational Services. BDAS

Bidder Name
Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Potnta

Melissa Girard. Oiv Behaviomi Hnh

Business Administrstof 111

Greater Tllton Area Family Resource Center 7S0 659

2 Gene Patnoda. Orv Fam3y Assist.
Business & Indtrstry Mgr.

2
■ Headrest, inc. 75D 515

. Barry Sandbcrg. Program
' Spectal'si IV. ON Behavioral Htih

Granite Pathways,.Inc. 750 583

tjndjTReiler. Resources &
Oevetoprncnt Admin BOAS

Family Resource Center at Gorttam 750 443
6.
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FORM hOTMBER P-37 (vcnioo S/8/1S)

Subject; Workforce Rc«<1ines< A Voceiionai Training Programs for IfHlividunh wjih OUP/RfT-Zgiy-BPAS-lZ-WORKf-Ol

Notice: Thit eg^meni wd 0>l or its ettechments ihall become pubHc upon fubmission (o Governor end
Executive Council for epprovtl. Any infornieiion Ihu is (irivste, conndcniifll or proprietsry must,
be cleaHy Identified to ihe agency and agreed lo in writing prior to signing (be contract.

AGREEMENT ^
The Slate of New Hampshire end the Contrecior hacby mutually egrce as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION;
I.I Slate Agency Name
NH Ocpanmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Ageney Address
129 Pleasant Street

Coitcord.NH 033010857

1.3 ConirectorNan^c

Granite Pathway!
1.4 Cofltncior Addreu

10FcrTySi.SteO^.Sl^
Concord, NH. 0)301

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-968O6I0

1.6 Account Number

397404>ROOI

1.7.Completion Date

September 39,2020

1.8 Pnoe Limitation

S19S,234.48

1.9 ContnetingOrriccrforStatcAgency
Nathan 0. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts end Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Numba
603-27I-963I

I.II ContractorSi

a.

1.12 Name and Title of Conirecior'Signatory

^Q.4rJ<LiCr^€e.ci ^ ^,
1.13 Aclcnowledgcmeni: Slkicof fOH- • County of. ̂

On ̂ •''3 i-' i ̂  undersigned ofTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily -
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I.I I, and acknowledged that s/be executed this document in the capacity
indicaicdinblock 1.12. ^ •

BV

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or /usticeoftha Peace

ISeaO gy^v-

donna KEEf^
^oiery Public-NowNy CommlMion Exptm Sopuntbcry,«5^

' 1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of ilK Peace

"P c^wvyg CV vre-cjkO>r- O'^ V; ■
1 1. )u Sifite' Agency Signature

Date:

sJration.bi

.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

^eribnul1.16 Aj^roval by iRe N.H. Depanmeni of Adminisraiion, Division of Peribfuiil O/oppHcobie)

By; Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorney Qcncrel (Form, Substance and Execution) 0/epplieobU)

On;

1.18 Approval b/<fie Go^jfmor o^d Executive Council (ifopplicable)

By: On;

Page I of 4 •
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2. EMPLOYMENT or CONTRACTOR/SBRVlCeS TO
BE PERFORMED. TTw Suic of New Hempshire, eeting
through (he agency identified in block I.I fStaie"), engegei
controaor ideniirted in block 1J ("ContncioT) to
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or tale of goods, or
both, ideniined and more particularly described in the attached
EXLnBIT A Mdiich is incorpomted herein by reference
rServlcer).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, anjd subject lo the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties .
hercundcr, shall become efTcciive on the da(c the Governor
and Executive Council approve thia Agreement as indicated in
biock 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efTeciive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effeciivt Dale, all Serviees performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or'Serviccs performed.
Contractor must complete ill Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. .

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemem to the
eonirery, all obligations of the Stale hcrcurvJer, including,
without iimitaiion, the continuance of paymehis hereurxler, ore
comingeni upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in rto event shall the State be liable for any.
payments hereunder in excess i>f such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriaied funds, the State shall have the right to vnthhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, ar^ shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shell not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/FRICE LIMITATION/

PAVMEyr.

5.1 Theceniraci prke, method of payment, and terms of
payment ore idcmifted and more particularly described in
EJOUBfT B which is incorporated hcrein by reference. '
5.2 The payment by the State of (he contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrfohruDcc hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compcnsalion to the Contractor for the Services: The State
shall have no liability to the Comnctor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The Suie reserves the right to offset ftom any amounts
otherwise payable to the Comnctor under (his Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement lo the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstaiKes, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorixed, or actually
made hercundcr, exceed (he Price Umiiation set forth in block

1.8.

d. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he performance of (he Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opporrunity
Jews. This may include the rcquiremenilo utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
diubiliiies, including vision, hearing end speech, can
communicate with, receive Information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
ihall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agrocmcni, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religiort, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orieniaiion, or rtaiional origin and will take
affirmttive action to prcveitt such discriminatlort.
6.3 If this Agrocmeni Is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplernented by the
regulaiionsoftheUnitedSlaicsDcpartmeniofLaborCdl -
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Coniroetor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations end orders,
and (he covenants, terms and condltioru of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 TheConirecior shall at its own expense provide ell
personnel necessary lo perform the Services. The Contractor .
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be propaly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all appliuble
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise aulhoriied in wriiing, during the term of ■
. (his Agreerneni, end for a period of six (6) months ader the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shol) not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or .
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any pcraon who is a State'
employee or official, who is maicrially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agroement. This provision thel) survive (erminstion of tKis
Agivernent.
7.3 The Comncting Officer ̂ ecifled in block i .9, or his or
htr successor, shs!! be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the imerpreuiion of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer.'s decision ihatl be final for the Stale.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of iheToDowing ecu or omissions of the
Contractor shaJl constitute an event of default hcmindcr
("Evtnt ofOefsuil"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercvnder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Oefaull, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all, of the followin'g actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractors written notice specifying the Event
of Oefaull end requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of tirrK, thirty (30)
days from the dste of the notice; and If the Event of Default Is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effeciive two
(2) days after giving (he Contractor noike of termination;
8.2.2 give (he Contractor a shrincn notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspcndingall payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the porlion of the contract price
which would otherwise accnte to the Contractor during the
period from.the date of such notice until such time as the State
dcierminei that (he Conlraclor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set oTagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat, the Agreement as breached'and pursue anyofiu
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentiautv/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in ihii Agreement, the word "dsto" shall mean ell
information and things developed or obtained during the .
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all nudies, reports,
files, formutae, surveys, maps, chans,-sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rq>roductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether fmished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any propeiry which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conndcniiality ofdata shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wriilen approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contrttcting
OfTicer, not later than nffeen(l5)days after the date of
(erminalion, a report ('Terrninatiori Report") describing in
detail all Services peiformed, .and the conirtKt price earned, to
and including the dele of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Tcrminalion
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Rcpon
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11.CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THESTATC. In

the performance of this Agreement the .Contractor is tn ell
respeas an ind^ndent contractor, end is neither en agent nor
an employee of the Stale. Neither the Comrtcior nor any of lu
ofncers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any bcr)cnu. workers' comperisation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any .
interest in this Agreement sviihout the prior written noi'icc and
consent of the State.. None of (he Services shall be
subcomracied by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

U. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofncera end
employees, from and against any and all losses lufTcrcd by the
State, its ofncers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against (he Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any persort, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of (he
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, rtoihing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immumiy of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive (he termination of (his Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor chal), oi its sole expense, obioirt and ,
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain or>d,maintain in force, (he following.
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insuranceagainst all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per oceurTcnce and S2,000,000
aggregate; and

' 14.1.2 special cause of toss coverage form covering all
property subject to tubparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80K of the whole 'replacement valuc'of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein Shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. D^anment of
insurance, and issued by ir«surcrs licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3of4 _
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14.3 The Contractor sheJI Tumish lo ihc Contracting OHker'
idemifietf In block 1.9, or his or her cucceuor, a ceniri€ate<i)
of inwrance for all insurance rajuired under this Agreement.
Conirector shall also furnish to (he Comrocting Officer
identirted in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccnificateCs) of
insurance for oil renewslfs) of insunmce required under (his
Agreemeni no later than thirty ()0) days prior to the expiraiion
date ofeaeh of the insurance policies. TV oenificate(s) of
iraurencc and any renewals thereof shall be anached end ore
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s)of
irtsurencc shall contain a clause requiring (he insurer to
provide the ConirecitngOffica identified in block 1.9. or his
or her luecessor, no leu than thirty (30) days prior wrincn
notice ofeanceliatlonor modineaiionofthe policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreemeni, the Contractor agrees,
ccnifics and warrants (ha) the Contractor is in compliance with
oreiempi from, the requirements of N.H. RSa chapter 2S1-A
(" Workers' Compensaiton
IS.} To the extent the Conunctor Is subject to the
requiremenu of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes (o
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish (he Contracting Officer ideniifted in block 1.9, or his
orheriuccessor.proofofWofkent' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shell be attached and ore
itteorpontcd herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compcntalion
premiums or for any other claim or bcnefn for Conirector, or
any subconlraclor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hornpshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection .with the performance of (he
Servica under this Agreement.

Id.'WAfVER OF BREACH. No failure by Ihc Slate to
enforce any provisioru hereof aflcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express -
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
■waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Oefauli
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to ihc other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he
lime of mailing by cenificd mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Siata Post OfTce addressed to (he panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

16. AMENDMENT. This Agreemeni may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no'

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or poliey.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreemeni shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, a/>d Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties arid their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of cortsiruction shall be applied against or
in favor ofany pany.

' 20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benent any third panics and this Agreemeni shall not be
consuued to confer ony such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreemeni
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretaiion,constructionor meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

- 22. SPECIAL. PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the atiaehed EXHJBfT Care incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERaBILITY. in the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competeni jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE ACRfiSMEhTT. This Agreement, which may
be executed In a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constiluies the entire Agrtiemem and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreemcnis and understandings relating hereto.

Page d of4
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Now Hempshlro DepoF|^nt of Hoetlh an<f Humon Sorvleoe
Worlrforco Rbodlnoos end Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with OUD

EihlbH A .

Scope of Servicfes

1. Provisions Applicable to AN Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effedlve date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative, eptlon by the New
. Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact.
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For th^ purposes o' this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.'

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness, and Vocationai Training
Programs for a minimum one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) In the Seacoast region.

2, Scope of Services

2.1: The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce
Readiness and Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and
recovery services when applicable.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programming to individuals
Nvith Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) who are receiving treatment or recovery
support services. The Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness
programming includes, but is not limited to;

2.2.1. Job specific skills training.

' 2.2.2. Resume and cover letter assistance.

2.2.3. Communication skills.

2.2.4. Time management skills.

2.2.5. Budgeting and financial management skills.

2.2.6. Customer service training.

2.2.7. Job retention approaches.

2.2.6. Networking skills.

2.2.9. Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.

^.2.10. Connections to employment resources.

Gronlto PaUiwsytt EitfilbllA Coniraclor

RFP.2019-BOAS-12-WORKF Poga 1 of 8 Dale
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I

Now Hampstilro Oopartmont of Hoohh ond Hymen Services
Workforce Reedlrwea end Vocational Training Programs for Individuals wftti OUD

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the facility Is open weekdays from 6:30 em,
Eastern Standard Time (EST), until each evening's programming lands and on
Saturdays from 8:00 am until 2:30 pm (EST).

2.4. The Contractor shall recruit Individuals through methods, that include, but are
not limited to:

2.4.1. Social media.

2.4.2. Pegtonal Providers.

2.4.3. Doorways.

2.4.4. Community members.

2.4.5. Employer groups.

2.5. The Contractor shall Implemeni a .process to Identify, recruit and engage
irKlividuals with an ODD, including individuals not currently receiving services
from the Contractor, who may te interested in pursuing employment and/or
educational opportunities or may be underemployed and are seeking a.
living wage.

2.6. The Contractor shall screen potential center participants with OUD who ace
"unemployed, underemployed or seeking to make a career transition and
schedule same day appointments, when available, with the Employment
Speciatist to Inlbate the Intake process.

'

2.7. The Contractor shall provide Infonmatlon regarding its wortcforce, job placement
and employer education and support programs via mailings and presentations
to community partners through meetings and other relevant forums to describe

.  its worlcforce program and to promote the quality of its labor pool.

2.8. The Contractor shall refer participants to treatment to and/or accept referrals
•  from:

2.8.1. Residential providers.

2.8.2. Recovery housing (or mothers and children.

2.8.3. Other sober houses in their region;

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure all participants are advised, informed or made,
aware of all servi.ces available, including but not limited to:

2.9.1. Recovery housing. «

2.9.2. Sober Housing.

2.9.3. Aftercare services.

2.9.4. Employment support services.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure all services are provided in a manner (hat
demonstrates operations are managed according to the five (5) tenants of:

Granlm Pfllhwayj £)6toIlA Contmaof Inlliolr^
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2.10.1. Urgency.

2.10.2. Ownership.

2.10.3. Learn by doing.

2.10.4. Lifelong learning.

2.10.5. Motivation through productivity,

2.11. The Contractor shall accept evaluation results from referring providers and
have an intake process that is comprised of the following:

.  2.11.1. Psychosodal eveluaUon; V ■

2.11.2. Career essentials review; and

2.11.3. Comprehensive service plan.

2.12. The Contractor shall determine appropriate level of program engagement and
activities for each participant based on a comprehensive intake/assessment
process, current life circumstances, and current.level of treatment, if any, which
may include:

2.12.1. Recenidetox/inpatient/intensive treatment defined as fifteen (15) or
more hours per week, that results in an individual being assigned to
' receive Woric Readiness lOVCareer Exploration services.

2.12.2. Current non-intensive treatment defined as less than 15 hours per,
^  week, that results in an individual receiving cohcurrent workforce

readiness activities and treatment hours ensuring workforce
activities are scheduled in consideration of the participant's :
treatment schedule to avoid any scheduling conflicts.

2.12.3. No active treatment that results in the individual being plac^ on a
fast-track ensuring other ancillary barriers to employment are
addressed and accelerated suite of job preparation services are
provided to move individuals rapidly to job placement.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure services are offered in a flexible manner In multiple
modalities Including, but not limited to; • - '

t

2.13.1. Instructor led, class-based training.

2.13.2. Group-based activities.

2.13.3. One-on-one training sessions.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure Individuals are enrolled in other.services and

supports that aid Individuals in recovery who are seeking to enter the workforce
for which they are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

2.14.1. The Community Development Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

Pathway# ErfilbllA Coniroaof InKioli
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2.14.2. The NH Departmeni of Labor National Health Emergency
Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery.

2.14.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Wqrlrforce Initiative.

■2.14.4. NHWortts.

2.14.5. NH Employment Security. •

2.15. The Contractor.shali provide Power of Possible Work Readiness curriculum,
which includes but is not limited to:

2.15.1. Access to 240 hours of job search/j(^ readiness content via
FedCap Academy, an online web-based learning management tool
available 24 hours a day/? days a week.

2.15.2. Participation in employer-led mock interviews.
2.15.3. 60 hours of dynamic.instruction and time management activities

designed to produce'employer read/job seekers.
2.15.4. Get Hired!.

2.15.5. Exploring My Opportunities.
2.15.6. Power Interviewing.
2.15.7. Power of Personality.
2.15.8. Positive Me!

2.16. The Contractor shaP utilize Single Stop USA to determine if an Individual is
eligible for Supplemental Nutfition Assistance Program (SNAP), Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC). Eamed Income Tax Credit (EITC) or Child Care

"Tax Credit (CTC), health insurance, and/or Low Income Energy Assistance.
2.1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with local higher educational and vocational

training institutions in order to identify and provide vocational training and
educational opporlunities to individuals in the treatment and/or recovery service
setting.

2.18. The Contractor shall ponduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to
determine, ah individual's level of skills; strengths, and rebdinesslo Seek end

' enter the workforce ensuring the process'is t>ased on a person-centered focus
grounded in individual choice and self-determination.

2.19. The Contractor shall utilize Diagnostic Vocational Evaluation (OVE) for
conducting vocational assessments. DVE Is an assessment provided to
individuals to determine the following:

2.19.1. Vocational interests;

2.19.2. Aptitudes;

2.19.3. Skills;

Grsnlie Pathways EkhlWl A Contractor IniUab
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2.19.4. Capabilities; and

2.19.5. Educational attainment levels.

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize the vocational assessment and participant inputs to
design individual vocational plans of action .that Include appropriate levels of
services and resources, including but not limited to;

2.20.1. Resume writing.

2.20.2. Job application writing. ,

2.20.3. Improving dient Interviewing skills.

2.20.4. Motivational ihte.rviewing to increase a client's willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities may also
be required.

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure all staff are trained in Motivational Enhancement

Techniques (MET), which includes but is not limited to:

2.21.1. 6pen*ended Question, Affirmations. Reflective Listening and
Summarizing (OARS).

2.21.2. Four Motivational Interviewing principles: Express Empathy. Roll
with Resistance. Support Self'efficdcy. and Develop Discrepancy.

2.22. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed, for and receive, as
appropriate;

2.22.1. Financial assistance for transportation to dasses.

2.22.2. Educational supplies, Including but not limited to textbooks, as
necessary.

2.22.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search
functions.

2.23. The Contractor shall establish an employment plan for each partldpant that
addresses previous bam'ers to employment, Induding but not limited to:

2.23.1. Poor job history.

-2.23.2. Substance use disorder Impacting performance.

2.23.3. Criminal background.

2.24. The Contractor shall provide Individuals with external employment resources
and assist with gaining access to employment through activities that include,
but are not limited to:

2.24.1. Providing transportation assistance to job fairs.

2.24.2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

Grsrtllo Psthways A Contmcto; Initials
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2.24.3. Providing individuals with |ob*shadowing and internship
opportunities.

2.25. The Contractor shall en^re Individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are provided with resources that support those goals,
including but not limited to:

2.25. V Training and Class stipends.

2.25.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.25.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.26. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative
to offer opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees
in recovery as a means to reduce stigma, identify employment opportunities,
and Increase the number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.27. The Contractor shall utilize a sector-based approach to job development and
target a diverse.range of businesses ensuring activities Include, but are not
limited to:

2.27.1. Conducting personalized initial outreach to a business's hiring
rrianagers.

2.27.2. Explaining the purpose and benefits of the Initiative, including but
not limited to financial incentives that are available.

2.27.3. Requesting a meeting to explore the possibility of enlisting the
business in the effort.

2.28. The Contractor shall educate employers on services available to them for hiring
individuals which shall Include, but is not limited to:

2.28.1. State's transittonat benehts.

2.28.2. Support with transportation..

2.28.3. Retention case management.

2.28.4. Personal development platform.

2.28.5. Fedcap Academy.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Director manages the day-to-day
program operations which Includes, but is not limited to: . ^

3.1.1. Contracts.

3.1.2. Space.

3.1.3. Human resources.

3.1.4. Budgeting.

Granlle PalhWayi Exhibll A Cont/acfo/ Inlilels"^ ̂
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3.1.5. Ensuring efTictency of worlcfiow.

3.1.6. Ensuring iiTiplementalion and operation of all program services and
operations.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Eniployment Specialist job duties include, but
are not limited to: '

3.2.1. Administering Intakes and assessments.

3.2.2. Ccordindtir>9 employment-related activities and offsite trainings.

3.2.3. Providlr»g barrier remediation services.

3.2.4. Providing employment and training related activities and supportive
services In a classroom environment.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Job Developer identifies, develops and
maintains relationships with employers In order to create employment or on-
the-job/job shadowing opportunitiiss for individuals.

4> Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall track and report, on a quarterty basis, Department data
requirements for programs including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
opioid use disorder.

4.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as
age. gender, race, and ethnicity.

4.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.1.4. Start date of employment per Individual.

4.1.5. Type of position per individual.

4.1.6. Name of employers per individual.

4.1.7. Length of employment per Individual.

4.1.8. Aggregate percentage of Individuals employed per month.

4.1.9. Number of employers recnjited per month.

4.1.10. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month

6. Perfomiance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete
provided training programs.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuals gain
employment.

GrenliB Polhwoys EtfilbhA Conireaof'inlUali"^ ̂
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5.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent
(100%) of Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative employers.

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
.  initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal Information sharing and referral

agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with
- ail applicable confidentiality laws. Including 42 CFR Pan 2.

6.2. The Contractor shell complete client referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
substance use services within two (2) business days of a client's edmission to
the program.

6.3. The ConVactor shall provide the Department with timelines end Implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days oif the oontract effective date.

6.3.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated, irhplementation
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service
start dates.

6.3.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the oontract and
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of (he contract effective date.

Oronito Pothwoyti EiMNi A Conlmctor Iniilsi^
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Method and GondUlofis Precedent to Payment

1. the State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6,
Prtce Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with Federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. State Opioid Response
Grant. CFDA P93.788. Federal Award Idenifficallon Number (FAIN), TI081685.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded (Contractor's pufrent
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

. 4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance, with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits 6-1, Budget through Exhibit B-3.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses Incurred In the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure (he invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department In order to initiate payment.

4.4.The Slate shall make payment to the Cohtractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds
are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form Pt37, General Provisions Blo^ 1.7 Completion Date.

7. In lieu of hard copies, ail Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Meiissa.Girard(Sdhhs.nh.gov, or Invoices may be mailed to:

SOR Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

129 Pleasant St. 4"" FL
Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and In this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or. In part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services

Granllo Pathways £*hlWi B Coatredor lnKiata^(^
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provided, or K the &aid services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of. the General Provisions P*37, charges limited to
adjusting amounts between budget jlne items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, rnay be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Contractors Obligations: The CdntrBctor covenants and agrees that ell funds received by die Contractor
under the Cont^i shell be us^ only as payment to the Contractor (or services pfcvided to eligible
individudts and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agraes.as fottovn:

1. Compllanco with Fodoral end State Lewe: if the Contrector is permitted to determine the eliglbDity
of individueis such eligibility determlneUon shall be made in accordance widi applicable federal and
state laws, regulstions, orders, guidelines, polictos end procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Detorminatlon; Eligibility determinaticns shall be made on forms^ provided by
the Department for the! purpose and shall be made and remode at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documontetlon: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shell maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which nie shaD include all
information necessary to support an etigibiiity determination and sttch other information as the
Department requests. The Contrector shaji furnish the Department with'ail forms and docurhenlation
regardirtg eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hoarlngo: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as wet! as
indiyiduats declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The'
Conirector.hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form arid that each applicant or re-applicent shall be informed of his/her right to efair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Oratultioo or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of.this Contract to eccepi or
make e payment, gratuity or offer oi employment on behell of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performence of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of (his
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract end any sub-oontract or sub-agreement it it Is .
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of eny kind were offered or received by
any cfTiclals, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut^Contrector.

6. Retroectlve Peymente: Notwtihstending anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in eny
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood end agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
eny purpose or for eny services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
end no payments shell be made for experises incurred by the Contraclor for any services provided
prior to the dale on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) pt^or to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Porchaae: Notwithslending anything to the contrary contained in the Centred, nothing
herein contained sh6ii.be deemed to obligate or requirejthe Department to purchase services.
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors com. at a rate

- which exceeds the amounts reasonaWe end necessary to assure the quality of such service.-or at e
rate whlch excels the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible tndividual.s or other third party
funders for such service. If at eny time during the term' of tNs Contract or efter receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shell determlno^thel the Contractor has usod
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Conirector to .ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Dopertment may elect to;

7.1. Renegotiate the retes for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursemenlln

excess of costs;
■n'tEi>>lbiC-Special PrcMsfoAs ComrActorlnlUali.
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7.3. Demand repayment ot the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shell constituto en Event of Default hereunder. When the Coniractoris
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for el) funds paid by the Depehment lo the Contreclor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Deportment to be ineligible for such services at
eny time during the period of retention of records estat^lished herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

a. Mslnterwrwo of Reeordo: In odditlon to iho eligibility records spedfiod obove, tr>e Controctor
covenonts end ogrees to molnloin (ho fotlowlno records during Coniroct Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, rocords, documents and other data e>ridenc(ng ond roflocting all costs
end other expenses Incurred by the Contractor In the performonce of the Contrect, end ell
income received or coDected.by the Contractor during (he Contrect Period, said records to be
maintained Ir) eocprdanoe with accounting procedures and pracUces which sufficiently end
property reflect oil such costs end expenses, end which are ecceptebte to the Department end
to IrteJude, without limitatjon. all ledgers; books, records, and original evidence of costs such as

,  purchase requisitions end orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-Aind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, end other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records Shan inctude all records of application end
eligibility (including ell forms required lo delormlne eligibility for eoch such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ell Invoices submitted .to the Department to obtain - -
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Coniractor shall retain medical records on each patient/reclpienl of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
egency Tiscal year. Ii Is recommended that (he report be prepared In sccordance with the provision of
Office of MertegemenI end Budget Circular A-DI 'Audits of States, Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Slanderds for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities end Functions..issuad by the US GeneralAccouniingOfficefGAG siand8rd$)aa
they perloln lo financial compil8r>ce eudlts.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Oepartmenl of Health end Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have eaess lo ell reports end records m'einiained pursuant to
the' Contract for purposes of oudil, examination, excerpts end transcripts.

9.2. Audi! Liabilities: in eddiUon to-end nol in any way in limltailon of obligations of the Contrect, it is
understood ond agreed by the Coniractor that the Contractor shall, be held liable for eny ateie
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, all payments mede uryder the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confldontlellty of Rocor^e; All Informeiion, reports, ond records maintained hereunder or collected
in connocli.bn with the performance of the services end the Contract shell be confideniiai end shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, thai pursuant to state lews end the regulations of
the Oepartmenl regarding the use end disclosure of such (nformetlon. disclosure may be mede to
public officials requiring such Informeiion in connection with their official duties end for purposes
direcUy connected to the edministration of (he services end (he Contract; end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by eny party of eny information concerning e recipient for eny purpose not
direcUy connecied v«iih the edministrelion of the Oepartmenl or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on writter> consent of the recipient, his
attorney or,guardian.

C - Speclsl Pfovliloni .Cenuocw iftlUtli T

O^VII P0B»lOt5 pjta g:



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

OocuSign Envelope ID; 17F-E6EeE>1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F6SCB5l

OocuSIgn Envelope 10; 38A82ACF-40E8-44f6^B4-9230S0OC009B

Now Hampshlro Dop'artmont of Hoatth and Human Sorvlcoe
Exhibh C

Notwlthstondlnp anything to Iho contrary contained heraln the covananis and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the fotiovvlng reports at thefollowing
times if requestod by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim rinanda) reports containing a detailed description of

efl costs and non-atiowabte expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other informatjon as sha!) be deemed satisfBclory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereundor. Such Financial RepcHs shall be submitted on the form
doslgnsted by the Department or deemed aeiisfectory by the Deportmer^.

11.2. Fins! Report: A final report shall be submitted vMthin thir^ (30) doys after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shell be in a form satisfactory to the Department end shall
contain a summary statemeni of progress toward goals end objectives stated In thePropbsal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Servlcea: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase'by the .Department of the
maximum number of qnits provided for In the Contract end ujMri payment of the price limitation
hereundar. the Contract arid an the obligations of the parties hareunder (except such obtigation's as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall lerminote. provided however, (hat If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to'deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Alt documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contmct shell Include thefollQwing
statement:'

13.1. The preparation of thi$.(repoft. document oic.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of Now Hampshire. Department of Heallh and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United Slates Department of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorahip: All materials (wrinen. video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shao have prior approval from OHHS before prlnting, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any end ell original materials
producad, including, but not limited to, ̂ ochures. resource directones. protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shell not reproduce any. materials produced under the controctv^thoul
prior written epproval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facltlttoe: Compliance with Lawa and.'Regulatlone: In the operation of any facliilies
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal^
state, county and mun'tcipal authorities end vwih any direction of eny Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws wh'tch shall impose en order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of tha facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If eny govcmmchial license or
permit shaD be required for' the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said Gcense or permit, end will at all limes comply with the terms end
.conditions of Mch such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements.'the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that; during (he term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire lyiarshaiand
' the locel fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws end reguiafions.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); the Contractor will provide en Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) id the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of SSbO.OOO or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has SO or

ExhWi C - Special PtovWons Contmctof
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more emptoyees. It will maintain a current EEOP on Tile and submit en EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For redplants receiving le&s than $23,000, or public grantees
with fewer then 90 empioyees. regertflese of (he emouni of the sward, the recipient wtl) provide en
EEOP Cenjflcatton Form to the OCR certifying II Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Norw
profli organizations. Indian Tribes, end medical and educabonal insbtutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requiren>ent, but ere required to submit e certificalion form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; hnp://www.ojp.usdo|/about/ocr/pd(s/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engtjah Proflcloncy (LEP): As clortned by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Ser^ces for persons with Limited EngDsh ProfiderKy. and resulting agency guidance; national origin
dischmtriatlon Includes dlscrlmlnatioh on the basis of limited English pronclency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crirne Control end Safe Streets Act of 19M artd Tltte VI of the CivD
Rights Act of 1894, Contractors must take reasonable steps (o ensure that LEP persons have
meartingful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhoncomont of Contractor Employoo Whiotloblower Protocilona: The
foliovdng shall apply (o.ali contracts that exceed the Sim^fted Acquisition Threshold as defined in 46
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

.

(a)'Thls contract end employees working on this contract will be subject to the v4tistlet}tower rights
end remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whisOabtower protections estabUshedot .
41 U.5.C. 4712 by section 626 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.908.

(b) The Coniractor shell inform its employees In wiling. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 l^.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor' shall Insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c). In all
.  subcortlracts over the simplified acquisibon threshold.

19. Subcontractora; DHHS recogruzes that the Contrector may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions lor efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsilirflity and accountability for (he funcUoi^s). Prior to
subconlracbng, the Contractor shall evaluate (he subcontractor's ability to perform (he detegated.
funcbor>(5). This is accomplished-through b written agreement that specifies ecUvibes and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontraclpr and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing ssncbon's If
tho subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
corMfiiions as tho Contractor and the ContractoV is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

-  When the Contractor delegate's e func.bon to a euticontractor. the Contractor shall (to the following:

19.1. Evaluate (he prospoctivo subcontractor's ability to perfo.rm the acll^lles, t>efore delegating
(he funcbon

19.2. Have a written agreement with the aubcontrector that specifies activities endreporling
responsibllilles.and howsancbons/rovocabon will be managed If the 6Ut>coniractor'8
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor (ha subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhitfi C - Spectsi ProvtsJon» Contrsctsr Nitob
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18.4. Provlda (o OHHS en ennual schedule Mentlfylng ell subcontrsctora. deJegeted funcOonsand
responsi&Ditles. and when the aubcontractofa perfcnnanca wlD be reviewed

19.5. OHHS Shan. ol Its discretion, review end approve all subcontracts.

ir the Contractor kJentines deficiencies or oreos for improvemenl ere identified, the Contractor shall
Jake corrective action. v

20. Corrtrect Dennlllona: v

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct end Indirect Items of expanse determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting prirKlpies established
In accordance with stele end federal laws, regulations, rules end orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAI.: If applicable, shell mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Departmenl end containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Conlractorin accordance with the lerms.and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost end sources of revenue for each service to be provided

■  - under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each Mrvice that the Contractor Is to provide to oligibio individuals hereunder, shall
mean thai period of time or that specified activity determined by tho Department and specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract

20.5. FE0ERA17STATE t^W; Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contmct. the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulatiorts. etc. as they may be emended or revised from time to lime.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.-'

owiyii
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Rovlstona to Fonn P*97, General Provtolon0

1 .'1. Section 4. Gonditionel Nature ol Aafaament. Is replaced as lonoMe:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE.OF AGREEMENT.

Notwlthttanding any pro.vislon. ol (hie Agroemont (o the contrery, oU obllgaUons ol the State
hereunder. Including M^thout Umiiatipn. the continuance ol oaymenta. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement ere contingent upon coniinued appropriation or availability ol lunds,
Including eny subsequent chengos to the appropriation or Qvellablllty ol lunde affected by
any stale or loderal legbioUve or executive action that reduces, etlmfnates. or otherwise
modinofl the epprepHollon or ovoilability of lundihg for tNc Agreement and (he Scope ol
Services provid^ in Exhibit A, Scope ol Services, In wt>ole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable lor eny payments hereunder in excess ol epprepileted or available funds. In
(he event ol e reduction, termination or modilicetion of appropriated or available hmds. the
State shall, have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shal) have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Coniractor noiice of such reduction, termination or
modification, the Stble. shell nol be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Accounl(s) identified in block 1.6 of (he General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other'account in the.eveni funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section IQ.Termlnfltion. is amended by adding the following lenguage:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time (or any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 3D days after giving the Contractor written notice thai the State Is exercising its
option to tormlnaie the Agreement.

10.2 In (he ovcnl of early (ermlnaiion. the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop end submit to the State b Tronsltiori Plen (or services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services ur\der the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contreclor shaD futiy oooperale with (he State end shall promptly provide detailed
.  information to support the Transition Plan including, bul not limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agraemeni end Transition Ptan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Trensil'ton Plan to (he State
as requested.

10.4 In the event (hot services under the Agreemeni, including but not limited to clients receiving
scrvicos under the Agreement are irensitioned to having services dblivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide o process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plen.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other affeclod indlvlduats
about (he transition. The Contractor shell include Ihe proposed communications in its
TmnsiUon Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) eddiiionel yeers.
corttingent upon Bstlsfectory delivery of sorvicos. available funding, written egreemeni of the
parties end approval of Ihe Governor and Executive Council.

EjeVMC>>-8evitiortVExe«pUoniioSun(l3reContmciLer>guoe* CoflCroOor InlUoh.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-f REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor IdOhVfied In Section 1.3 of the Gdnerel Provision^ egrpea'to comply whh the provisions of
Sedions $tSt-Sl6.0 of the Dru^ree WoHtpia^ Ad of '198^. (Pub. L. 100^90. Title V. .Subtitle D; 41
U.S.'C; TO'l et M!q.), end further egren to have the Contrador's representetrve, es idehtifiad in .Siactiona
1.11 and 1;12 of Iha 'tjenarai Provisions execute tMfoDowin(j Ceitifrcettop:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

gS DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US O^PARTMEfa OF AGRICULTURE r CONTRACTORS .

This .pertlflcellon Is rerqulred by the regultnions Implementing S'ectlons SISI.-SISO of the Doig^free
Woiiipl8ce Advf t9i^(Pub. L. 1(XL690. Tdiey. SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.'C. 701 et ae^.). The Janue^^V
1989 regut^na Were amendwf arid published'at Part 11 ofUr'e May 2^. 19M F^ofal Piegister (pagbs
'21661-21'S91). and r^ulre .certification bygrehtaiM(and b'yinf^nce. sub-9re'nte:es'and.aubK '
contrpctora), ptHor to .award, that they will ma'mtein a drug-free Worlrpla^a. S^ion 3017.S30(c) of (he
regulatiori providas' that a graritpe (and by Infer'erKe. eub-grantees end eut-confredore) th'bl U d State
may el.ad to maXe one certi^lipn to the pep.art^eht In aech federal fiscal year ih lieu of cdrtrftcates for
(Bach gmnt duHng the Mderisl .fiscal year uvered by iKa cbrlifrcstion. The certlflcata eat out below Is a
material representptiorS pf fact upb'n.d^lch reliance Is placed when Ihe dgancy awards the'grani. False '
certtf^tlo.'n or vi'6tdlor).d the certiTicalion ̂ 1! be grou'rufs for suspension of paymente. sus^nsioh or
termln'atlo'n of griertts.' or government .widp euspphslpt^ or debafme'nt. CbritfadQris usiri'g th.ip form ehqutd
send it to; ■

Commlsslonbr
NH O^ertm'ent of Health and Human Services
129 Pieesani Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantaecedirias thai rt Will 6r will conltnUe to provide a drug-free'worXpldce by: '
1.1. Publtshlhg a statement notifying'erriploypes that'the unlawful manufedufe. distribution,

dispenUng.- poesefsibn or use of a controOed eub'si.ance is prohibited In the grantee'e
'  epbdf^ng the adtons that will be takari egainsi empipyeln for violation of e.uch

prohlbrtio.n;
1.2. Eetiablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness progrem to Inform employees pbout

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in ihe workplaca;
1.2.2. the grantee's policy of mamlaining e drug-free wo^Iace;
i .2.3. Any evallabie diug rounseling. rehabilrtation, end employee eeslstanpe prpg^s; and
1.2.4. The peniatties that riiay be itrip.osM upon employees for drug abuse ylolaliphs

occurring In.the Wortcplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that cadi omp|oyae'to be erigeged (n the porforrnbnce of the grant bo

giyen e Copjr of the statement Required by. ̂re^raph (a);
1.4. Notif^g the employee in the statement required by. paragraph .(a) ihet, es e condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will .
1.4.1. Abide by the terms d the slatemeni; end ■
1.4.2. Notify the er^ptoypr in writing of his or her convldipri for a violation pf e crinilnel dryg

statute occurring In tlie workplace no later than five calp.hdar days after such
coiivldwn; •

1.5. Notlfyir^g the egepcy in writing, within lep calendar days after receMng notice .linde.r
oubporpgraph l'.4.2-from on employee or otherwlsp receMng actual notice of such porivlptJon,
Erriptoyere of convicted erhpioyees m'utt provide notice, ihciuding position title, to every grant
pfTicer on whose grant aclK^ the corii^ed efnployee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhM D - CtrtBaOon regsnJIno Orup Free Vendor
Wor*d»ceRo^vir«msnt» • o 'mjO
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h6s designated a central point for tha receipt of such hotMS. Notice shaQ include the
iden^ic^ipn num^rfe) of each affected grant:

118. Tpkl^ one'of the follpvirir)g actions, within 30 caler^ar days pf receiving noticg under
eutiparag^h T.4.2, wtih re.spect to any emp(6)ree who Is ao convicted
1.6!1. Taking eppropriate persormel action against such en em'pto^, up to end in^uding

teiminalion. conilstertt wHh the requirements of the Rahi^Ditation'Act of 1673, as
amendad; or

1.6.2. Requiring such efhployee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse as'sislance or
rehabDitotJpn program 'opprb^ for such purposes by a Federol, State, or local Heatth.
law enfofcament, or btheV appropriate agency.

-1.7. Making a gobd foitheffdrt to coritjnu.e. to meintoinbdrug>froe workplace through
Implemenletibn ofpar^raphs l.i, 1.2,1.3,1.4,1.S, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the eitefs) for the performance of work done In
connection wHh the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stole, zip code) (list each locatton)

Check Q If there are Wo/kplacas on file that ere not Idehtrfied here.

Vendor Name:

Date Name:
Tiite: c,y \ r

ExMbRD-CartjftcaOonrQBanltnoDrijgFiM Verylor
wortutoca Rsqikrenwrto . ^
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CEfiTIFICATIONREOARDINQ LOBByiNQ

TTio Vendor identified in Socfion 1.3 of the Oenerel Frovisione agrees to co^i)r the pre^jpions of
Sedlon of PubDc Lew l6l*^21. Oove'mmeni wide Gutdar^ for New Rmiriciions on Lobbying, er\d
31 U.S.C. 1^2..and further agrees to have the Qqritrector'a representative; as Identified In Sections 1.11
end'1 .'12 of the Geiiersl Prp^slbns axeqite the foliowirig Cerilficetl'oh;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .• CONTRACTORS
US department of EOUCATtON r CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORiCULTURB . contractors

Programs (indicate applioable prbgrem covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title iv*A
.*Chlld Support Enfdrcerner>t Program linder TtUe IV-0
*Sodal ̂ ryicM Block Gror>l Prpgi^ under Tide XX
•M'edicaid Prbgr^' urider'TWo XI.X '
''Community Services B.tock Grant under Title VI
'Child Cere Develppm'ertt Biock Gfs'rtt under Title IV

The underalgned ce'itifies. to the best of his or he/ knowledge and belief, that:.

1. N6 Federal approdriat.bd funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undisiaigned, to
any parson for |r\fluenclng of'ett.epfpijrtg to Influertce pn of^r'or employee qf.ar^y eg<fr)cy. p.Mempef
of Congress, bn ofTiMr or employee of Cdngreu, or an erhployee of a Memtwr of Congress in
connection with the awafdirig of ahy Federal coni/act, coi\tin'tiation. renewal, amendnient. or •
modification of any Federal contract, grant; loan, or ccqMrative agreement (and by specific mention
su^rantee or sub-contractor).

2. If eny-funds other than Federal appropriated funds have beer) paid or wiil be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer .of employee of any ogertcy, a Merhbecof ̂dhgress.
on officer of erriployee of .Congress, of an empldyee of o Member of Cdngrefie In cohnedtlon with this
Federal MnUact grpnt, loan, of .cbopdfattve agreenrient (and by specific mention sub'-grahlee or sub^
contractor), the undersigned shall compleie end o'ubmh St.anderd Form .ILL, (Disclosure Fonin'to
Report Lobbying, Ir^ occdfddrice with Its Ihstfu'cbons, attached end Identified bi Standard ExhlbH E-l.)

3. The under^npd .ohalj reqvire that the lan'gubge of this cert.iftcai.ion be Inctuded in the award
document for subraW^s at oil' iiers (induding subcdrttracU, sub<;grDht,s, end cor\lract8 under grants,
loans, and cooiperatlve agre^'ents) ahq that el) eub-rddplents sKpl,! certify end dlsoiose accordingly.

This certrfication is a material repreUfitatibn of fact upon which rejience wes.p>)dced wh'en.this.iransbction
was mpdopr enlered into.; Submission of this ceiiification Is a prerequisite .for making or entering into this
tferisactlohlm'pospd.t>ySedloh13S2. title31.U.S.C.ode. Any person wtio .tails to flip .thoroqulfed
certificetlbn sh'bli'bb sbbjoci to a c^ penalty of not less thbn HO.ODO and not nibre than $100,0<k) for
each such"failure. , "

, Vendor Name;

Date Nsme;

frtJeio'^ S-^oA Q. ̂  i tecTor

EjtfSsti E - CclKiudon RogenSne LoMylng vendor inftiaa -

o*o»eisn»en> Pegs i of 1 Oete^L^lTLLl



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F65Ce5l

OocuSlsn Envelope 10; 36Afl2ACF-«OE&44F6-8C84-9230600C0698

New Hampshfre Department of Heaftfi and Human Services
Exhibit F

. CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEBARWENT. SUSPgNSlQM
.  &MP-PTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

Tbe Vpndor Identified In Section 1.3 of (he Genera! Previsions egrees to comply wtth (He prpvlilona of
Executive Offioe of the Pmsldent. Executive Qrder 12S49 and 4S CFR Part 76 regortling Dobamient.
Suspension, end OtHar Reaponsibility Maltert, end further egroM to have (he Cdntroctor'e
representative, as identified in Se^'ns 1.11 end 1.12 of (ha General Provisions execute the foUowlno
Certiftcatibn:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing ond oubmltting (his propbsal (conlre^). (ha preapecilve pdmbry porticlpahi it provldihg the

certifi.cation set out b.etow.

2. The In^l^ of e person to pro^e (he certification required beiow win not necessarily reoult In denial
of participatiori in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective paiiicipent aheU submit an
explartaliori Qf why H cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
Mnaidered In connection with the NH Dseportmsnl of Health end Human Services* (OHHS)'
determmatlon whether to enter Into this ironsecUon. However, failure of the prospei^e primary
pertlcipcmi to furnish a certifipatiori or en expUnation shall disqualify such pdrsori from particJpalion In
this transaction.

3. the certification In this clause is a material represenietion of fact upon which reilance was placed
when OHHS determined to ehtpr Into this trahi^ldn. If it Is later determined th^ the pfMpectrve
prtrna'ry particlpanl kn^r^gly're.ndcred an erroneous certificaiion. In eddltlbn to other remedies
evailable to the Federal Goyerrvhent, DHHS mey termirwie this transaction for cpuse or defaufl

4. The prospective primary participant ehal) provide Immediate Mtten notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this pr^osel (conlrect) b submitted .if at any time ttie prospective primary per^ipent learns
that lis-certtficalion was erroneous when submitied or has become erreneouo by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'coybred transaction,' 'debarred.* 'suspended.' 'inetj^ble.* 'lower tier dpvefed
•tranSectipn.' •paiticlpani.' 'person.' 'prirnqry covered trensaic(ic>n.r 'principal.' 'prbporsa!,' end
'voluntarily excluded.' es used In this' clause, have the meanings sat out In the OefinilionB end
Coverage sections of thb nibs implementing Executive Order 12S49:45 CFR Part 76. Sep the
attached defimtions;

6. The prospective prirr^ parbc^ant egrees by submitting thb proposal (contract) tM. .should the
p^posed covered transaction be entered into, ft sheD not knowihgly enter into.ehy lower .tier covered
tranu^n with a perebn'wh'p b debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered trpnsacilon. unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that, it wfll include the
clause iitJed 'Certlflcaliori Regarding Oebermsnt, Suspension. Ineiigibilrty pnd Voluntary ̂ elusion •
Lowef Ttdr Covered.Transa^.ns.' provided by OHHS. without m'odifrcbUort, in all Umei tier c^emd
transactions end in ell solicit^ons for lower tbr covered transactions.

8. A participant tn a covered trahMctlon may rely upoh a Certification of a prospective particlpanl In a
tower tier povered transaction thpt it b not deborrpd, suspended, i.neliglble. pr'involuiitanly eicctuded
frorn the coyeled transaction, unless ft knows thai the certificetton is erroneous.' A' par^poni may
decide the meihod.bnd frequency by.which ft determines the eliglbriity of Its pfinclpflb." Eefch'
pQrtlclparit may. but b noi required to. check the Nonprocuremenl List (of exclud^ p'stt'iei).

9. Nothing contained irS the foregoing shall be construed to require establbhmenl of o aystem of records
in order to rer^er in good fal^ the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

EjWdI! f - CertWcaflon RBgironp Oebirmeni, Svspemioo vendor
And outer RetporolMiay MetiQrv
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tnfometion of e participsnt i» not inquired to exceed that which it normeffy pottetted by a pKidant
pe^h In thb Ofdindry courae iof businett detii^t.

10. Except for trantectipni^ euthortzed ̂ ndar peregmph 6 of these Ihsdvctlont, if a parbdjsant In a
covered tmntedlon khowiinsty entere into a lower tier covered l^tection wtth a pe^n who is
eutpended. debarred, {.neligbie. or voiuntarily excluded frorh participaUon in this trensaetion. in
edditidf> to other remedim ovia^la to the F^erel oovemment, OHHS may terminate this trans^ctipn
for caitse or defauti.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prdspective prvnery pertidpent ceillfiet to the best of ita knowtedge bnd belief, that it ond its

principals:
11.1. ere not presently debarred. eytper>ded. proposed for debennenl. declered ineligible, or

yoluntahiy excluded from coyer^ trenteciions by eny Federel depaiftrnerit or agency;
11.2. have not wtlhin a three-:^r period preceding this prippdsei (contrpctil bMn convicted of or hed

a cl^ ju'dgment rphderc^ against Ihiem for commission of fraud or e criminal offense in
cohnectlbn wtth obtelriing, anemptirig to obtain, or performing b public (Federtil. Slate or iocai)
trsnswtion of a contract under a public trensaetion: vioiation of Federal or State antAfyst
otatuitt or,commission of embeatempnt theft, fo^ory. bribery, febificption or destruction of
records, making fotse statements, or receiving otoleh propeity:

11.3. ere not preaehtfy Indicted for otherwise citminaliy or cMIIy charged by a gdyemmehtal entity
{  {Federal. Slate or local), with commission of any of (he offenses' enumereted in paragraph (i)(b)

of this certification; end
11.4. have not within a thre^year period preceding this application/proposal hed ohe or more public

transactions {Federel, ̂ te or local) (ennineted for causa or de.feutl.

12. Where the prospectivo primary perbclj^ant Is unsbte to certify to eny of the statements in this
cartification. puch prospectivB participant shall ohach on oxplanaticr) to ih|s prppOMi {conireet).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By elgriing end subrnltting this lower tier proposal (contract)', the prospectivo lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR P.bft 76, cartlTies to ihe.bbtt of Its k'nowtedge and belief that It and lia principals:
13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, propdsed'fof debefrhenl. declared ineligible, or

vo.luntariiy excluded from participation In this trensa.^on by eny federel departmeni or agency.
13.3.' wtiero iho prbspedtlve lower tier pbrticipsnt Is unable 10 certify to any of the obo^. euch

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to thd proposal {contract).

14. The prospective iovrer tier participant further egrees-by si^ltting this proposal (contmct) that It will
Ind'ude this dtiusd entitled 'CorWcalion Regerdirtp Oabarmant. Susi^nslbn. Ineligibllrty. and .
Voluntary Exclusion ; Lpvrer Tier Cpyered Treniactlons,' without modrTicalion in all lower tier covered
transactions arid In all solicitations for lower tier'covorad tfensactions.

Vendor Name:

Date ■ Nome: ''

TKie:!^?* \tecioT^

Emsu f - Ccrtfflcstlon RegtrSho DsUnnefll. Siapsiulon Vendor InlUeb.
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cuoeoniero Pegs 2 o12 Dxtc 1



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

OocuSign Envelope ID: l7FE6E0E-1AC2^8F-BE9A-7428OFe5Ce51

DocuSign Envelope ID; 36A62ACF-4C€e^Fe-8CS4.9230500C0698

New Hampshire Depaftmeni of Heehh and Human Services
exhibit 0

CERT1RCATI0H OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMEWTS PERTAINIWS TO

FEDERAL WOMDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITM«BASEP ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTTOWS

The Vendbr iderittfied Irt Section 1.3 of the Oehsfel Provialdhs ̂ lees by elgnaiure of the Cohir8,ctor''s
representative as Identlfted in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General ProMslons, to execi^e the following
certification:

Vendor wiU comply, end will require, ony eubgrahteet or subcor^trectors to comply, wtth eny eppUceble
federa! nondiscrimlnet.ion r^ulripmenig. which ntoy Include:

• thb Omnibus Crtmb Control end ̂ fe Streets Act^ 1068 (42 UiS.C. Sectibr> 3760d)| which prohibRS
reclplanis of federal fun^ng under this etatute from dls'crtminatlng. either In empioymoht' pradlces or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, reiigl^. netlorSol origin, and sex. T^e Act
requlrba ceirtein reclpiente to produce en Eqiiat Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvqnile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 (J.S.C.Sedipn M72(b)) which edopte by
reference, the cM rights ̂ ligations of the Sofa ̂ rMls Act. Recipients o.f federal funding ur^er this
altfute ere prohibit^ from discrimhating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of r^. color, religion.'notional origin, and sex: The Act includes Equal
'Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• tha Civil Rights Act of 1084 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance frorh discrtmtneting en the.be'sis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitetron M of 1073 (20 U.S.C. SeClion 704). which prohibits recipients of Federal finarKial
assistance from discrimirtoting on the basis of disability, in regard to empbyinerii erid ttie .delivery of
cervices or benents, in eny program or activity;

• the Amertcons wtth Disabilities Act of 19S0 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131>M). which prohibits
discriminatibn.an'd ensures'equal opportunity for persons wtth disebililies In erhployment, iSlate end tocel
government setvicas. public eccomrnodalions. commercial facQities, erid.transportation';

• the Education Amehdrnents of 1072 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,16B5'66}. which prohibits
discrimination on the besls of sex'lh federally auisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscriminetion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106*07), which prohibits drscnmlnallon on the
basis of ege in programs or ectrvliies reteMng Fedsrai financial assistance. It does not Irtciude
employment discnrhtnalion;

• 26 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations • pJJDP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Depai^en't pf Justice Regulations - Ncndlscriminatior); Equal Emptoymont Opportun^. Policies.
ond Procddurbb); Executive Order N6.13276 (equel brdtedllbn of the laws (or fblth-based and pornmunlty
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which pro'vide furidamer\t8l principles end pblicy'maXmg
criteria for partnerships vrlth fetth>based and neighborhood organizations;

*26 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulallons** Equal Tre.atrhenl for. Faith-Based
OrigBnizationi); and Whistleblovrer protection's 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nationel.Defense Authortzalion
Act (NdAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. i 12*239. endcted January 2.2013) tfie Pilot Pr^ram for
Enhancement of Con^ct Employee WhlstJeblower PrptecUons. which protects erhployees pgoin&t
reprisal for cerUip whistle blo^g activities In cbrin^ion'with federal grante and contacts.

The certiTicate bet out below is e material representstiop of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant'. False ce''rtjficalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds f(V
suspension of payments, suspsrislon or l8iTnir\alion of grants, or- govemmenl wide suspension or
dabarment.

DMWG
Vendor bdOah
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In the event o Federel or Slate churt or Federal 6r Slate sdmlnbtfat'ive agency rr^es d finding of
dlscdrrilnallon after e due prbcMB hearing on the grounds of rape, color, rellglisn. national origin, or aex
against a recipient of funds, the rpc^ierit'wnll forward is popy cH the finding to'the ̂ ce for GMI lights, to.

appQc^le'Mntrectl.hg agency or division withli) the Depaitment of Health and Human Servlcas, arid
to the Department of Health end Human Servkei OfTtoe of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor iderrtlfied In Sectlcm 1.3 of the General Frovialons agrees by signalure of the pontrector'a
repfOs'enteUve es .idenllfled in Sections t.tl and 1.12 of the GonereJ Prbvlslohs. (b execute the fdlowing
certifieetion:

I. By elgning .and eubmffling this propoul (contract) (he Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions'
Indicoted above.

Vendor Name;

Data Name;name: ^

EiMbnO
Vensbr MUsh

Ce^letfw d CeiW™ #W*ir9 e riwU WiSwVrWWwx lew T/eWrwi • OipetMlw
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■w.iomn* Pegs 2 of 2 DalaSv^f



OocuSign Envelope ID; 1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-448F-BE9A-74280F6SCB51

OocuSign Envelope ID: 38A62ACF^0E8^F^4CB4.e230S0OC060B

New Hampstiiro Department of Hcatth end Human Servlcea
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REOARDINO EHVIRONMEWTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. C • Environmental Toba^ Srhdie, also kruwim as the Pro-<Dhlldren Act of 1094
(Ad), requires that om^ing nd be permltled in any portion of .any indoor factCty owned or leased or
eont^^ for by en entity ohd used routlnety or regularly for the provision of hedRh. day car^, education,
or library services to cKlIdren under the age of 16, If the safvicas are funded by FederOJ prOdrarhs either -
directly or'through State br local gdvemrhents, bf Federal grar)t, contract, ban, or ban guarantee. The
taw does not apply to ch9drer>'e aervtcas provided In private residences, facilities furled solely by
Medicare or Medeald funds, and pertiohs of focllille.s usM for lr\petlent dfup or elcbhol treatma.nt- FaDuro
to oom'ply'wfth the 'provi^n's of ih'e law may r^uR In the impositiof) of a cIvD.monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day ahdror Ih'q (mpbsttlon of an administrative compllBrice order on the raisppnslble entity.

f  ■ " ■ ' .
The Vendor Identified In Sectbn 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
represantatfve a^ idanlifiad In Spbtion 1.11 ̂ d 1.12 of the Gerwral Provisions, to axMula this following
certification:

1. By signir^ and submitting (his contract, the Vervlor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
eO apisRcable provisions of Put)IicLaw 103-227. Part C, known as the f^ro^hlldren Act ̂  1694.

Vendor Name:

9.
Data Nwe;

Edxlbil H - CdlBicaeoft Rcgwdtng Venqpr
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSdCI/(TE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
compfy wtth the Mddlth Irlsuranpe Portability and AccoMnfabllity Act. Pubiic L,8w 104-191 end '
with the Standards for Prtvacy and Security'of Indivlduaiy Identifiable Heaf^ Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 end 164 ep^icable tO business associates. As defined herpln, 'Dusiness
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to prot^jSd health information under this Agreement an(| 'Covered Entity'
sheQ rnean the State of New Marnpshire. Depaitment of Health end Hurnan Services.

(1 Peflrimona.

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* In section 164.402 of Titla 45,
. Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meanino given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal RegulelioftS;

c. 'Cover^ Entity* has the meanirtg given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d: 'DeslonatOd Refcord Set'shall have (he same meaning as (he term 'designated record set*
In 45 CFR Section 1S4;501.

e. "Data AQareoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data eggregab'on* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Cere Ooerallons* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operaltons*
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means the Heblth Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TrtieXIIL Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the Arhehcan Recovery end Reinvestnient Act of

.  2009. "
(  ' ■

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Pprtabllity end Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104*191 and (he Standards fpr Priyacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendmerits thereto.

i. 'Individual* shall have the same meaning as (he. term'individual* In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and 'shail.include a person who qualrfids as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR ̂ cUpn 164.501(g).

J  'Privacv Rule' shall rnean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 GFR Raris 160 and 164, promulgate under HIPAA by the United Stetes
Department of Hebtth epd Hurnan Services.

k. 'Pfotecte Health fnfofmatlon' shall have the same hiearilng as the term 'protecte health
Iriformatioh' In 45 CFR Sectjon 160.103; limited to the information create pr received by
Business Associate from or oh behalf of Covere Entity.

3/3014 EiMWtl Vcfidtv Infltth V
HsittMrmnnoe PofUtnty Ad
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I. 'Reoulred by La%/ ehiBH have the .&ame meaning as the term 'required by In 45 CFR
Set^ort 164.103.

I

m. 'Secretary' Bhalt mean the Secretary of the DeparVr^ht of Health and Human Seryfcea or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Ihfonnatjon at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and erhendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Irif^m^atlcn' means protected health Infortnatlon that Is riot
secured by e tectinoloiBy standard that renders protected health Inforrnatron unusabtb,
unreadable, or indaclpherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
astandards develpping organization that Is accredited by (he Ariisriun National Standards
Institute.

p. Other De'finiilons • All terms not .otherwise defined h.ereln shall have the meanlrig
established under 45 C.F.R! Paris 160.162 and 164, a^ amended from time to time, and the
HITECH ■ .
Act.

(2) Busiheas Associate Use and Disclosure of Prdtected Health InformaHon.

a. Business Associate ahall not use. dlsdoso, meintsin or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, ̂ siness Assdciate, ihcluding but not timited'to ell
its directors, ofTteers, employes ar^tf agents, shall not use, disclose, m.alhtaih or transmit
PHI in any manner that would .constitute e violation of the Privacy and ̂ curity Rule.

b: Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
,1. For the proper management and adminlst/atlon of the Guslri^ Associate;
II. As re.qulred by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes (or the health care operations of Cpver^

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Assoqipte is ̂ rmitted under the Agreement to dispose PHj to a
third pariy. Business Assodate must obtain, prior to. making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PH) will be held conndenlially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreerhent from such third party to r^otify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breath Notification

. Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, lo the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business. Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasoriabfy necessary to
providb seryioes urid^f Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for .disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to thd disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the BusirBusirtfiss

VKU Etftpin I Vendor Mcials^
HoBlVi Iftsmnoe Portebt^.Ad
avUnetiAiMdeio^reement
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Assbdate shall refrain from discloslrig the PHI uMI Covered Entity has exhausted ell
rem^ies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Assodate that Covered Entity has agfeed to
be bound by additional restrictions over ai^ above those uses or disdosures or Security
saf^uards of PHI pursuant fo the Privacy and Security Rulei the Business Associate
shall be bound by p'uch additional mstrlctions and shall not disdose PHI in vio|atior| of
such additional resbi^ons and shall etride by any eddrtionai security safiegua^s.

(3) ^ Oblloatlona and ActtyHlea ptBuslnofls Aoec^iate.

a. The Business Associate, shah notify the Covered Entity's P^a^ Officer Irhmediatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disdosMre of protect^
health InformaUbn not provided for by the Agree.ment including breaches of unsecured
protected heat^ Information end/or .any security incident that may have an irnpact on the'
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Assodate shall irnmediately. perform e risk eseessment wtien it becohie's
aware of any of Die above e'ltuations. The risk assessment sh^" ''^olude, but hot be
lirrtl^ to: ' '.

0 The nature end extent of the prblectdd health information Involved, including the
'  types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identifioation;
.0 The unauthorized person us^ the protected health Inform.atjon or to whom the

disclosure was made;
q VVhether the protected health inforrhatibn was actually acquired or viewed
' 0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information hbs been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate shall comptste ttte risk assessment within 48. hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment iri v^ng to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comp^ with alj sections Qf the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Nptjfi'catioiS Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
end records relatir^ to the use and disdosure of PHI received from, or creatqd or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Cbvered Entity to ̂ e Seaetery for
purp'OMS of determining Covert Entity's qomptisnce with HIPAA and the Prfvecy end
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate s.hall require all of Its business .esso.clatps that receive, use qf hsve
ecdess to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing .to adhere to the'same
restrictions end conditions on trie use end disdosure of PHI coritairied herein, induding
(he duty to retum'or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I)'. The Covered Entity
shall be considered b direct third party berieftdary of the Contractor's buslriess Sssoclate
agreements v^th Contractors Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

V30U ExNbni VeT¥5or WUalTt^. ̂
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from .such
business associates who shall be governed by Standard Paragraph #13 of the steward
cohtrad provisions (P«37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and dlscldsure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shatl make available durir^g normat business hours at ite offices el)
records, books, agreements, policies end procedures relating to the use ond disclosure
of PHI (0 the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered-Entity to diBte'mnirM
Business Associate's. complia.nce with the torms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (tO) buslne^ days of receiving d written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the •
Covered Entity, or directed by Covered Entity, to an indiyidual In order to meet the
requiiements under 45 CFR Sedion 164.524.

h. vyithin ten (10) business days of receiving e wriitah request from Covered Entity for an
a^ridment of PHI of a record about ah individua) cbntaihed In a Designate Recbrd
Siet, the Business Assodate shall make such PHI avallabie to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorpora'te any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its

. obligations under 45 CFR Section 1M-526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to .
such disclosures as would be required lor Covered Entity to respond to a r^uest by an
individual (or en accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) busirtpss days pf repeiying a written request from Covered .Entity for a
request for an accounting of disdbsures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such inforrnatidn as Covered Entity may require to ifulfill. its obligations
to provide en accounting Of disclosures wHh resf^ct to PHI In accordarice with 4S'CFR
Secbbh 164.528.

k. In the event arty individual requests access to, amendment of. o'r accounting of PHI
dfre<^ frorn the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such requesi to Covered Entity. Covered Entity ahali have the
responsibility of resj^ndin'g to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Indiylduai's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to vlolate HIPAA end the Privacy pnd Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individudrs request es required by such law and notify
Covered Entity 6f such response as soon as practicable!

4  1

i. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,-the
Buslr\es.s Associate shall rptum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received ifom, or created or received by the Buslne.ss Associate in connection vrith the
Ag'reernent, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not.feesible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate!shBll continue to extqnd the protections of the .
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the rbtum or destruction Infeaable, ifor so long as Business
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A&sbdste maintains sucH PHI. If.Coverad Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business ̂ sqciete destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to

' ̂ CbverM Br^tlty that the PHI has been destroyed.

(d) Obllaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(6) In its
Notice of Privacy PractlMs provided to individuels in accordarxce wi^ 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the eident that such change or limitation rhay effect Business As'sodate's
use or disddsure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity aheU promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or reVdcation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Indrvlduals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFA Sei^n 164.50$.

c. Covered entity shall p.romptty notify Business Associate of any restfictions-on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Coyered Eritity has agreed tb in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the e'xterit that such restriction rriay affect Business Associate's use or dibbloaure of
PHi

(6) Termination for Cause

(n addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P>37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of q breach hy Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit.1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
tbrrhinate the Agreement 0( provide en ppportun'ity for Business Associate to curp the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe specified by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination hor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall feport the
.violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIflcellaneouft-

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All tenns used, but not otherwise defined herein,
^hall have the safne meaning as thoM terms Iri the Privacy end Security Riiie. amended
from tlpid tp lirne. A reference In the Agreerneht. as amended to Include this Ej^tjibll (. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means (he Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendtnent. Coyered Entity bnd Business A^ociafe agree to take such action as iS
necessary to amend the Agreerhent, from time to time as. Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of. HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. . ^ ^

c. Data Ownership. • The Business Associate acknowledges ffiat it ha.s no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behatf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The.parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agrebmenl shall be resolved
to petmit Covered Entity to corrtpty with HIPAA. the Privacy arid Security Rule, .
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6. • Seoreoatioft. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pereon^s) or clrcumstahoe Is held Inyalxj, such invalidity shall not effect bther terms .or
conditions which can given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and cpndrtions of this Exhibit I ere ̂ dered severabie.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of .PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. die
d.efenae and iridemriificstipn pfovi^ns of section (3) e and Peragrpph 13 pf the
Standard terms and conditions (P-37). ehall survive the jermlndtion of the Agree.rnent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exe.cuted this Exhib.lt I.

Dopartmenl of Health and Humen Services qA\vCci rQY\ ■VOflb^
The StateState Nanna<Qf the VendorName^ the Vendor

S ■

Signature of Authorized Re'presentetrve Signaturis of Authorized Representative.

S .VvK "^n4rlc {g
Name of Authorim Representetrvo Name of Authorized Representative

.  G"? S4 o.\gr^-i fe.c^orr.
Title of Authortzbd RepresentativeTitle of Authorized Reprewntative

Date

3/2014 &MUII
HesRh imursnoo PortibBRy Act
BuiineuAtMciaiA ^reemem

p«09 6o(e

Vendor tnAUb



OocuSign Envelope 10:1BD56B3A-876B-4AD6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 17FE6EB£-1AC2-44eF-BE9A-74280F65C851

DocuSign Envetope lD: 38A62ACF-40E8-44F6>SCB4-0230SOOC069B

Now Hampshire Department of Heahh and Humtrt Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATI0N.REGARD1NG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABIUTY A^D TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federsl Funding Afxountsbility end Trensperency Act (I^FATA) requires prime ewerdees of Individuel
Fedml gfente equal to or greater then $25,000 end evmrd^ on or efler October. 1.2010. to report on
data relied to executive compensation |nd associate fnt^ter sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award b' below $25.000 but subsequent grant modifications reiult In e total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requl^ents, as of the date of the eward.
In Decofd8nwwtth.2CFR Pprt I7p (Reponirtg Subaward end iExecutive Compensation mrormeOon}, the
Oepartment of'Hejehh end Humoh Services (DH'hS) musi re'pOrt iHe folloMdrvg Infemnotion for ony
subaward or contr^ a^rd subject te the.FFATA rsportlng requirements;
1. Narqe of entity
2. ^burtt of award
3. Funding ogency <-
4. NAICSco^ for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program sou.rce
6. Award.tiUe descriptive of the pur^se of the funding action

• 1. Lpcellqh of Ihp entity
8. Prinze place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0}
10. Total d^pensatbn end names of the lop five executives if:

ib.i. More than 80% of enhua) gross rdyenuet orb fron^ the Federal government, and those
reWnOas are groater then I25M annually end ^

10.2. CompenMtlon ihloimetibn. Is not already avettable through reporting to the SEC.

Prtme grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the'end of the month, plus 3d dayb. In which
tlw award or ̂ aird emendrhent Is mode.
The 'Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provblons agrees to com^ vnth the.proyisiona of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 106-282 and PubBc Law 110-252,
end 2 CFR PaiH 170 (Reporting Subaward ar^ Executive Cornpenution Information), and further egreM
to have the Contractor's reprosentalive. as ideritiftad in Sections -1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provbfohs
execute the foOov^ng Certification:
The bebw named Vendor egrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Huinan Servtces and to comply wilh.ell applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Trarlspa'rehcy Act.

Vendor Name

Dale ■ Noto:

Eihfsn J - CerUhcstlflfl RastnSng Dw FeOSfSl Funding Vendor
AccountoMByAndTrsropsiencyAOfFFATA^Coinpleneo ^ .ri

OuOMOniori)' Pegs 1^2 Os^s.S gj x7
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FORMA

Ae the Vendor Mdntifiod in Section -1.3 of the Generai Provisions. I certify that the retponeee to the
below Dfit^ quMticns ere true and occurate.

1. the OUNS numtier for your entity (s: (*\\^ ^ *~}6 ̂
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed riscal yeer, did your busineea of organization

receive (1) 60 percent w more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federol contracts, strbcontracts,-
loans. grants. 8ub-gran't«.'ond/or cooperative 09reerpent8: Br>d (2) S2S.000.000 or mpre In'onnual
groao revenues frofn U.S. fedarat contracts, subcontracts, -loan's, grants, subgranis and/dr
cooperattva agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above b NO. stop here

If Ihe onsvwf to 02 above b YES. please answer the foDowing:

Does the public have access to information about the componsatiofl of Ihe executives In-your
business or organization fhr^h periodic reports filed ur^der section 13(e) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1634 (15 l>.S.C.78m{e). 760(d)) or section 61 (X of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

II the answer to 03 above b YES. stop here' '

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following;

The names end compensation of th^ frve most highly compensated oflicera in your business or
organizBtioh ere as fdOows:

Name: • Amount:

Name: . -• Amount:

Name: Amount:

Npme: Amount: •

Name: • • Amount:

Ej^iQillJ - C«<t)Ac«Oon RsgsrPlng ins FeOsfBl Fimrnp
AccotfilflWgry 4n0 Trsmpsrsncy Ad (PFATA) CompSsnce _ _
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The fbllowing terms may be reflected end have the descn'bed meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorfzed disclosure
uf^authofized ebquisltion. unautrwilzed access, or ariy similar term referring to
situations vrt>ere persons other than authorized users and for en other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to persbnally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. Wilh regard to Protected Hoolth
Iftformatton.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regutalions.

2. • Computar Security Incldant' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Secun'ty
Inddeni' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Securtty incident -
Handling Guide. National Instrtute of Standards end Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. Confidential Information' or 'Confidontial Data' means ait confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as aU medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits end personal Information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information arid
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and ell infonnation owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behaH of the Department of Health and
Hurrian Services (DHHS) or accessed' In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state Of federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI). 8r>d or other sensitive end confidential Information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives

- DHHS data or derivative data in accordance wlh the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either.failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to 8
system or Its data, unwanlad disruption or denial of servlca. the unauthorized use of
8 system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of Hardcopy documents, and mlsroullng of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put (he data at risk of uneuthorfzed
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate es'a protected rtetwprk (designed, tested, and

•  approved; by means of the State, to berismit) will be considered eh Open
rietwork and not adequately s.acure for tl^ tmnsmlsalof) of uhehcrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

. 8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means infonmatlon which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security numbef, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..

.  alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
f>ame. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgelod under HIPAA by the .United
Slates Department of Health end Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Infonmation' (or 'PHI') has the same meartir*g as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F R §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpail C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information (hat Is
r)Ot secured by a technology standard thai renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end la
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use end Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidenlial information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees end agents, must not
use, disclose, maintair) or transinil PHI in any manner that would consiitute a violation
of the Privacy end Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response (o a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without Hrst notifying OHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or otqect to the disclosure.

3. if OHHS noiiOes the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
rostrtctiono over end ebovo those uses or disclosures or security sefeguerds of PHI
pursuant to the. Privacy artd Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additionai restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation" of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any .addit ional security safeguards.

A. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivattve there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposiss that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DMHS for the purpose of inspecting to conHrm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. fMETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encrypbon. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applicatiorts, the Cqntractor attests the applicatiohs have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In ^ber security and that said
epplicafion's encryption dai)abl!itJes ensure becure transmission via the internet

2. Computer Disks and Podable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a rnethod of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Cbrifidentlal Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to ar>d. being received by email addresses of
perabns authorised to.receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If Ehd Uber fs employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure Gcckel layers' (SSL) rnust be used and the web .site must be
secure. SSL iancrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, blso Knoyyn as File Shpiing Sites. End U^er may not use.fite
hosting services, such as Dropbox qr Qoogle Cloud Storage, to transrriit
Confidential Data. I

6. Ground Mall Service. End User mey only transmit Confidential Data via certifiedffround
meiil within the continental U.S. and when sent to a nariied Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must b6 encrypled.end password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Netwodcs. End User mey not trarisrfill Confidential Data via an open
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wireless nety^rk. End Usdr must employ a virtual private net^rk (VPN) wtten
remotely transmitting via en open wireless network.

'  9.. Remote User Communication. If End User Is ernploying remote communication to
access or Mnsmit ConfidentlBi Data, e virtual private, rtetwonc (VPN) must bO
Installed on the End User^s mobile deyice(6) or laptop from which infomietJbn wlll be
trartsmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also khown as Secure Rta Transfer protocol, if
End User . Is employing eh SFTP to tr8r^smlt Cohfidehtial Data, End User wtll
structure the Polder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded fpr 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wirelass devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevertt Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor wiD have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form.lt may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also' apply In the Implementation of
cioud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities^ and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State.of NH systems
and/or Department confidenllarinformation for contractor provided systems.

3. The Conlractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

S. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAt^P/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers end devices niust have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest enti-vlrai. anti-
hacker. entl-spam, antl-spyware.-and entl-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must heve aggressive intmsion-detectioh end firewali protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complata cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of iha hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

^  1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confldential Infonmation on its systems (or its
sul><ontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; end' will
obtain written certiTtcation for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a pan of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of

' New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
.  in accordance with induslry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitlzatlon. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication dOO-SB. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltizatlon, National institute of Standards and Technology^ U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document end certify in writing el
lime of the data destruction, end will provide wrinen certification to the Department
upon request. The written certincation will include ell details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly desiroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction: .

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Date using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, vrfthin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic. Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, end eny
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
ccnftdantial information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Cor^trector will maintain policies and procedures So protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information llfecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the dale (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc;)-
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and accesa controls to
contractor eystams that conect. transmit, or store Department conftdential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ere In place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Oapartment conndenilal Information (or contractor provided systems.

5. the Contractor will provide router eecurfty ewareneoo end education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Departrrient conHdential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contractir^g any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of en Internal -process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Indudlng breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worV with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Oepartment-system-access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as perl of
obtaining arKl maintaining access to any Departmeni 8y8tem(8}. Agreements will be
completed end signed by the Contractor and any appll^ble $ut>^ntr8Ctor9 prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Oapartment determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 4S
CFR 160.103. the Contractor ".^1 execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
egreement.

9. The Contractor will work with (he Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

' Contractor to.monitor for any changes In risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contrector engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame et the Departrrients discretion vrith agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagemeni between the Department 6r>d the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contrector shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breech er>d minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, IncludiriQ but not llmliBd to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs end
costs essoclated with website end telephone cell center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor .must, comply wlih all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy end security of Confidential tnrormation. end must In all other respects
meiniein the privacy and eecority of PI end PHI at a level end scope that Is noi less
then the level end scope of requirements applicable to lederei agencies, including,
but not Hmlied to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern prolectlona for indrvldualiy Identifiable health
information and as epplicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrativo. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

.  prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less then (he level end scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Infoimatlon Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doltA'endorAtndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer end lha
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This irvludes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of Now Hampshire networtt.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
pertorm their official duties in Cjonnectlon with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure (hat el) End Users:

a. comply with such eafeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information thai Is fumlshed by DHHS
under (his Contract from loss, (heft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media conteining PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted end password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such infonmetion.
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e. limit dlsctosure of the CohfldentlaJ Information to the extent permitted by iaw.
f. ConfldentJal Information received under this Contract and Individually

Identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in en area that is
physlcelly and technologlceliy secure from eccess by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc Identiriers. etc.).

g. only eulhorlzed End Users may Iransmh the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files contelning personeliy Identinable Information, and In ell cases,
such data must be encry^ed at ell times when In transii. at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. In aD other instances Confidential Date must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate saleguards. as determined by e risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name er>d password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information eecure.
This applies to credentials used to access tha site directly or indirectly through
B third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight end compliance of their End Users. OHHS
■reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections, to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other epplicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches irnmediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section V(.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents end Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented incident Handling and Breach Notification '
procedures end in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. end
notwiihstandirig, Contrector's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must else address how the Contractor wlll:

1. Identify Incidents;

2.- Determine if personally idantifiable Information Is Involved In Incidents; -

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core, response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breech notification Is required, end. If so, identify appropriate
Breech nbttftcatlon methods, .timing, source, end contents from among different
options, and bear costs essocieted with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

incldenis enO/or Broaches that Implicate Pi must t)o addressed and reported,, as
eppUcable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

PHHSPrivacyOfficar@dhhs.nh.gov

.  8. DHHS Security Officer . -

DHHS'lnform8tionSecorityOfrfce@dhhs.nh.gov
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